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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am
presenting to our shareholders the results of Hanison
Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2013.

RESULTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the turnover of the Group
was HK$1,554.5 million, being 25.9% higher than the turnover
of HK$1,234.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2012.

In addition to the increase in turnover, the Group recorded an
increase in profit attributable to owners of the Company for
the year from HK$128.2 million for the last financial year to
HK$188.3 million for this financial year. Such increase is mainly
attributable to the profit on the sale of four units from our
property development project, Eight College, and revaluation
gain from investment properties.

The basic earnings per share for the year was HK3b5.1 cents,
compared to HK23.9 cents (restated) last year.

As at 31 March 2013, the net asset value of the Group
amounted to HK$1,219.5 million (2012: HK$1,051.3 million),
representing an increase of 16.0% over last year. Net asset
value per share at 31 March 2013 was HK$2.27 (2012:
HK$1.96 (restated)).

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK3.2 cents
per share for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: HK2.7
cents per share) to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 4 September 2013.
This together with the interim dividend of HK1.8 cents per
share (2012: HK1.5 cents per share) gives a total of HK5.0
cents per share for the year (2012: HK4.2 cents per share).
The proposed final dividend will be paid on 18 September 2013
following approval at the annual general meeting.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

RAAEREREZEZS ([EFC)MSMAREIR
2 Hanison Construction Holdings Limited ( &
BEIEIERABRAR) ([A2aE]) REKEB
NEl (SBR[ AEE])BE_T—=F=A
—t+—HLEFEZEE-

BE_F—=HF=A=+—HLH
HEEZRE

HE-_T—=%#=A=+—-HIEE &&
B §% 15 2 ¥ 588 #1,554,500,0007C © & &
EZTE-—HF=ZA=+-—BIFEZBE
1,234,700,0007T £ F25.9% °

BREEXEBLEAN AEBEHBHNARRAHE
BAEBEEFEMNE LEAMBRFEEBE
128,200,000t E A E AR K F E M B
188,300,0007T ° &% EFAEER B HEAREEY)
%R H Eight CollegelT 1 88 37 7 3% F| K2 1%
BEYEE GRS

REEFRERBF ABEIS M- EF A
B39 (4£ET) »

R-E—=ZF=ZA=Z+—R AEBZEE
SFE A 11,219,500,0007T (—E——4F : 8
#1,051,300,0007T) * & EF £ F16.0% ° i
—T—=F=-A=+—H SREEFESL
BRI (ZE——F B 196 (KE
5) ) e

iz 2

EEeREAR_ZS—=FHLANBAERZR
ARrRREMAZRE  REHE-T—=
FZA=+—BLEFEZRARKS  FREK
3L (ZZE—=F - FRBB2.7ML) -ERE
KB R ERRR BB RE 18I (=T — =4
BRARLL) - 2F LIRS SARBEES.01L
(ZZ2——F  SB%420) - BZ 2 KK
BAFRRREAFAGBEAK £ —=F
NA+N\HIKE -



BUSINESS REVIEW

The Hong Kong economy experienced a modest growth in
2012, mainly dragged by the weak external demand amid a
sluggish global economy characterised by the unsettled Euro
financial crisis, fragile recovery of the advanced economies
as well as the slowdown of the Mainland and other Asian
economies.

While the global economic environment still remains uncertain,
with downside risks stemming mainly from the Eurozone
economy, Hong Kong’s economy grew 2.8% year-on-year in the
first quarter of 2013, after growing by 1.5% for the whole year
in 2012. The domestic labour market remained in a state of
nearly full employment with the unemployment rate of 3.3% in
2012.

Over the years, property development market has continued
to flourish but housing has remained one of the HKSAR
Government’s key issues to tackle. The HKSAR Government
has taken various measures, such as the increase of stamp
duties charges (buyers’ stamp duty, special stamp duty and
double stamp duty), the reduction of loan-to-value ratio for
property mortgage finance, and the increase in supply of land
and public housing. These measures are beginning to take
effect: speculators are curbed away and the property market
has started to cool down and show signs of stabilisation.
However, with Hong Kong's strong economic fundamentals,
ample liquidity and low interest rate environment, the above
measures may only have short term psychological impact and
potential buyers would adopt a wait-and-see attitude. The long
term effect of the measures is yet to be seen.

While the launch of major infrastructure projects and public
housing plans by the HKSAR Government together with the
active participation of private sector developments provide
encouraging impetus for the construction industry, these have
also posed problems such as labour shortage and escalation
of material costs. In reality, many construction companies are
having difficulties in recruiting and retaining young and talented
construction staff, and the construction industry is facing
intense labour competition among the construction companies.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT F E#f& =

During the year, the Group achieved favourable results with
most of the business segments maintaining stable turnover.
With the sale of four of the remaining units of Eight College,
the Property Development Division recorded a turnover and
profit before tax of HK$325.8 million and HK$89.2 million
respectively. The values of the Group's investment properties
continued to rise, and a revaluation gain of HK$104.5 million
was recorded during the year. For the other business segments,
turnover for both the Construction Division and Building
Materials Division have improved, but the profit margin of
the Construction Division shrunk as a result of higher labour
and material costs. The Interior and Renovation Division has
maintained similar amount of turnover as last year.

The year 2012/13 has been a promising year with the Group
achieving a record high profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year. However, market competition for all
business segments remains keen.

HIGHLIGHTS OF CORPORATE ACTIVITIES

During the year, the construction industry has been vibrant
and the Construction Division worked in full swing and several
construction projects have reached the final phase.

The Interior and Renovation Division lodged an application for
inclusion in the list of Building (Maintenance Works) Category —
Group M2 (Probationary) of the Hong Kong Housing Authority
during the last financial year. After undergoing the assessment
stage, the application has been accepted in December 2012.
The successful inclusion in the list allows the Interior and
Renovation Division to undertake certain public sector works.

As for Property Development Division, we continued the sale
of the remaining units of Eight College and four units were
sold during the year. The last unit was later sold subsequent
to the financial year ended 31 March 2013. We have also
launched the pre-sale of The Bedford, the Group’s boutique
industrial high-rise at Nos. 91-93 Bedford Road, Tai Kok Tsui,
Kowloon and pre-sale of LUXEAST, the Group's 49% interests
in the parcel of land situated at A BT & EETRE X5

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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WA 8= =588 (West of Wenyuan Road and South
of Houfutinggang, Haining, Zhejiang Province, the PRC) for
the development and construction of office, retail, carparking
spaces and other development pertaining to the land. As at this
annual report date of 25 June 2013, three units of The Bedford
were sold and for LUXEAST, a total of 24 commodity house
purchase and sale contracts (Ef/F B E&[F) and a total of
22 purchase letters (FRBEZE ) were signed.

FUTURE DIRECTIONS AND PROSPECTS

Upon entering 2013, there are positive signs in the global
economy. Nevertheless, the fundamentals of the advanced
economies remain weak, with growth still heavily constrained
by high unemployment, fiscal uncertainty and structural
problems. Hong Kong as a highly externally-oriented economy
is not envisaged to see a sharp rebound in 2013, and the
HKSAR Government only forecasts the GDP growth for 2013 to
be around 1.5% to 3.5%. We believe the challenging market
conditions will persist in 2013, it is therefore important for the
Group to move forward in a cautious pace.

The HKSAR Government’s various cooling measures had
resulted in a moderate downtrend in property prices and
a drastic drop in property transactions. With the HKSAR
Government’s determination to curb the overheated property
market, speculators stay away and prospective buyers factor
the additional stamp duty charges into their total acquisition
costs and wait with expectation for further price deduction.
Under these uncertain circumstances, developers can no
longer count on selling flats at ever higher prices as before.
However, if no dramatic change in the external environment
such as interest rate rises or market liquidity constrains as a
result of US’s change in quantitative easing policy, and internal
environment such as unemployment rate surges or investment
sentiment deteriorates, the market generally believes that
property prices in Hong Kong may only undergo a short-
term correction, and will become stabilised in the near future.
Besides, Hong Kong property market is still the mainlanders’
favourite.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT *E#HEE

Over the years, the Group has acquired several pieces of land
at relatively low costs. The construction work of The Bedford will
be completed in the coming financial year, and followed by The
Austine Place, which is expected to complete and offer for sale
by around year 2015.

As a number of large-scale Government infrastructure projects
are under way, public sector construction activities remain
intensive and private sector building activities continue to
flourish. However, the challenge that the overall building and
construction expenditure are expected to rise robustly cannot
be ignored. We will ride on our construction capabilities and
experience to secure more construction contracts in both
private and public sectors, and will make every effort to control
our costs.

The Group is in very good shape and will continue to make
good progress in delivering value to our shareholders. We are
confident about our future prospects and ability to pursue
profitable growth. This will be achieved by our experienced
management team, committed staff, co-operative clients and
supportive shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to
our shareholders and customers for their continuous support.
| would also like to thank the management team and staff for
their contribution towards the success of our business.

Cha Mou Sing, Payson
Chairman
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Construction Division ..
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OPERATIONS REVIEW 7 [o] B

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION A

The turnover for the Construction Division was HK$1,041.5 HE T =F=A=+—HIFE 2%
million for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: HK$833.8 B2 58 A E1,041,500,000 (Z &2 — =
million). During the year, several construction projects had 4 : 5 ¥#833,800,0007T ) o F A - EB {0 LI
reached the peak phase and some had come to the completion BEASEH B LTKPEER-

phase.

The total amount of contract on hand as at 31 March 2013 was RZZE—Z=ZF=ZA=+—H AHMHFES
HK$1,470.9 million, of which HK$1.2 million was derived from K BELREER1,470,900,0007T B EFE
a project under joint venture arrangement with a joint venture =~ EEBtE BNV v HMELTH T2 FBALE

partner. 1B A7 ¥1,200,0007T

Major Projects Completed EERMEETR

(1) Construction of Sports Centre and (1) HEBEPHEZX
Community Hall in Area 101 at Tin KEI01Z A EEE
Shui Wai with a joint venture partner LRTERGE

(2) Construction of Lam Tin North (2) HEEEBHEREE
Municipal Services Building with a A4t TR RE
joint venture partner

(3) Construction of Student Hostel (3 HEAEBEBEIKRE
Phase 3 for The Hong Kong F-HBELEFES
Polytechnic University

(4) Construction of shopping centre at (4) HEXIE LIRS E

Discovery Bay, Lantau Island

Construction of Phase 14, N1C
(Block 1 & 4) at Discovery Bay,
Lantau Island

MBI A S

B 32 K | L) ey 5
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Maijor Projects in Progress ETHPMEETR

(1) Construction of proposed industrial redevelopment, The (1) @2 N EEAAENEBEI-IZFMEZET
Bedford, at Nos. 91-93 Bedford Road, Tai Kok Tsui, 3 5778 B The Bedford
Kowloon

(2) Construction of public rental housing development at  (2) EERFFBBEMIEALEELREE
Tseung Kwan O Area 65B |

(3) Construction of proposed residential redevelopment at  (3) BEENEEDEEHI46M1485FMEZ T
Nos. 146 & 148 Argyle Street, Kowloon EERIAH

(4) Construction of proposed residential redevelopment, The — (4) EENEEBEFEHISHFHERTEE
Austine Place, at No. 38 Kwun Chung Street, Jordan, 5218 B The Austine Place
Kowloon

(5) Construction of Composite Development at Nos. 1-21  (5) BEEAFEEIT THI-21IHEAREE
Dundas Street, Kowloon E|

(6) Construction of the redevelopment at No. 23 Tong Chong ~ (6) BEEBHI A BERE2IFNERER
Street, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

. 14 HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Awards

During the year, the construction team has received recognition
by the award of the following accolades:

1

Development Bureau (DEVB) of the HKSAR Government:
Considerate Contractors Site Award (CCSA) — under
Considerate Contractors Site Award Scheme 2011 (Public
Works Site — New Works) in respect of the construction
of Lam Tin North Municipal Services Building with a joint
venture partner

Hong Kong Construction Association (HKCA): Proactive
Safety Contractors Award 2011

Occupational Safety and Health Council (OSHC): Safe
Lifting Competition 2012/2013 (Category — Tower Crane)

Hong Kong Construction Association (HKCA):
Environmental Merit Award 2011

Subsequent to the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the
Group has also received the following accolades:

(%)

Environmental Campaign Committee: 2012 Hong Kong
Awards for Environmental Excellence (Construction
Industry) — Certificate of Merit in respect of the
construction of public rental housing development at
Tseung Kwan O Area 65B

3]
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Outlook

According to the Census and Statistics Department, the gross
value of construction work for private sector sites increased
from HK$29.4 billion in 2011 to approximately HK$38.2 billion
in 2012, the gross value of construction work for public sector
sites increased from HK$35.3 billion in 2011 to approximately
HK$42.7 billion in 2012, and the gross value of construction
work for locations other than sites increased from HK$43.6
billion in 2011 to approximately HK$44.3 billion in 2012. The
above data shows that construction industry has had another
busy year in 2012.

To achieve the objective of promoting economic growth through
infrastructural development, the HKSAR Government has
been planning its infrastructure investments over the past
few years. Some of the mega infrastructure projects include
the South Island Line (East), Shatin to Central Link, The Tuen
Mun Western Bypass and Tuen Mun Chek Lap Kok Link, the
Hong Kong Section of The Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Express Rail Link, Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge, Hong
Kong-Shenzhen Western Express Line, Hong Kong-Shenzhen
Joint Development of the Lok Ma Chau Loop, West Kowloon
Cultural District (WKCD), Kai Tak Development Plan, and North
East New Territories New Development Areas. For the public
sector sites work, the HKSAR Government will increase land
supply and build more public housing in the coming few years
in response to the Hong Kong citizens’ housing appeal. Looking
forward, these Government construction works, together with
the building construction works from the private sector, will
provide opportunities to construction companies to undertake
more project works in the near future.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The result of this is that the labour shortage in the construction
industry will intensify and wages will thus be pushed upward.
The Hong Kong Construction Association (HKCA) revealed
that 68% of the construction industry workforce is over 40
years old; 43% over 50 years old, 10% over 60 years old and
only 13% of them are under the age of 30. This has revealed
the severe aging problem in the construction industry. In
reality, many construction companies are having difficulties
in recruiting and retaining young and talented construction
staff, and the construction industry is facing intense labour
competition among the construction companies. Apart from
the local construction industry’s demand for labour, many
Asian countries, particularly Mainland China, are appointing
Hong Kong construction companies or recruiting Hong Kong
construction personnel to upgrade their infrastructure and
buildings. Therefore, labour shortage is of immediate concern.

Similarly, other construction related costs such as building
materials costs have also increased. This leaves the
construction companies with very low profit margins.

Under such circumstances, we will endeavour to identify areas
of cost savings and devote resources and efforts in training and
retaining our talented construction personnel. We will maintain
our competitiveness through continuously enhancing our
productivity and operating efficiency.
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INTERIOR AND RENOVATION DIVISION

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Interior and Renovation
Division recorded a turnover of HK$180.4 million, as compared
with HK$188.5 million last year. The Interior and Renovation
Division maintained steady turnover for the year under review.

The contract on hand as at 31 March 2013 amounted to
HK$59.0 million.

Major Projects Completed

(1) Interior fitting-out works for the residential development at
Area N1d, Phase 14, Discovery Bay, Lantau Island

(2) Builder's works and fitting-out works for the conference
and resort hotel at North Area N3, Discovery Bay, Lantau
Island
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Major Projects Awarded

(1) Alterations and additions term contract for building works
for The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

The following projects were awarded subsequent to the
financial year ended 31 March 2013:

(2) Spatial reorganisation works to Core FJ, 7/F of The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University

(3) Renovation of Ronsdale Garden at No. 25 Tai Hang Drive,
Jardine’s Lookout, Hong Kong
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Outlook

Investment activity was strong in 2012. Increasing investments
in property and building projects provide business opportunities
for interior and renovation contractors. With vibrant sales in
the property market, that was a lot of momentum into 2012
for the interior and renovation market and this momentum will
remain in the medium term despite the latest round of cooling
measures released in late February 2013 which has cooled off
the market a bit.

In recent years, more shopping malls are being built or
renovated in Hong Kong and many other Asian countries.
The rise of Asian consumerism has prompted investment in
modernising retail distribution channels and has created more
opportunities for the industry.

However, labour costs and material costs have been driven up
inevitably and the market has experienced keen competition
over tender prices. In view of the escalating labour costs
and surging material prices, we have to be prudent toward
assessing the tender requirements and calculating tender
prices.

As an acknowledged contractor in the renovation and fitting out
of high quality properties, our Interior and Renovation Division
has an impressive record of prestigious interior fitting out and
building refurbishment projects for office, industrial building,
luxury residential building, educational institution, shopping
mall, hotel and clubhouse in Hong Kong.
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To preserve their properties in good shape and with the
expectation of an upsurge in property value after renovation,
many property owners are willing to spend money for repair
and renovation. With the increasing number of ageing buildings
along with the government’s building management and
maintenance schemes, repair and maintenance businesses are
expected to remain busy in the coming few years.

Apart from our good reputation and professionalism in the
interior and renovation works for different types of projects for
the private sector, we have also been accepted for inclusion
in the list of Building (Maintenance Works) Category — Group
M2 (Probationary) of the Hong Kong Housing Authority in
December 2012. The successful inclusion in the list allows the
Interior and Renovation Division to tender for and undertake
certain public sector works of the Hong Kong Housing
Authority. This will avail ourselves to expand our renovation
works into the public sector, to diversify our source of revenue,
and to achieve sustainable growth in future.

During the year under review, we have also been accepted as
one of the contractors of the Fortune Real Estate Investment
Trust (“Fortune REIT”). Fortune REIT holds a portfolio of retail
malls and properties in Hong Kong. We foresee that more
opportunities will be given to the Interior and Renovation
Division to undertake projects of various natures.

The operating environment is expected to remain highly
competitive. However, with the support of our experienced team
and sophisticated equipments, we are well positioned to take
advantage of the present situation to secure more renovation
works, while being mindful of the continuous needs for quality
and cost control.
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BUILDING MATERIALS DIVISION

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the turnover of the
Building Materials Division was HK$272.2 million, compared
with that of HK$232.9 million last year.

The implementation of various infrastructure projects and
increase in building construction activities have created more
business opportunities for the Building Materials Division. A
number of projects were undertaken during the year under
review.

Trigon Building Materials Limited (“Trigon HK”)
and Trigon Interior Fitting-Out Works (Macau)
Limited (“Trigon Macau”) (collectively, “Trigon”)

Trigon HK and Trigon Macau are two of the subsidiaries of the
Group under the Building Materials Division, specialising in the
supply and installation of interior products such as different
types of suspended ceiling system, metal cladding system,
demountable partition system, fire related protection system,
decorative moulding, raised flooring and wood flooring.

Major Projects Undertaken

(1) Lam Tin North Municipal Services Building — Supply and
installation of false ceiling

(2)  Victoria Park Swimming Complex — Supply and installation
of false ceiling

(3) Che Kung Temple Station — Supply and installation of false
ceiling

(4) West Island Line — Sai Ying Pun Station and tunnels —
Supply and installation of false ceiling

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(%)

(6)

(7)

(8)

9)

TMTL 447, Tuen Mun Station — Supply and installation of
false ceiling

Sheng Kung Hui St. James’ Primary School
installation of false ceiling

— Supply and

TPTL 195, Po Wu Lane, Tai Po — Supply and installation
of false ceiling

KIL 11073, West Kowloon — Supply and installation of
aluminium suspended ceiling

Proposed industrial redevelopment, The Bedford, at Nos.
91-93 Bedford Road, Tai Kok Tsui, Kowloon — Supply and
installation of suspended ceiling system

STTL 502 proposed residential development at Lok Wo
Sha, Ma On Shan — Supply and installation of suspended
ceiling system

Major Projects Awarded

(1)

(2)

TPTL 183 proposed residential development at Fung
Yuen, Tai Po — Supply and installation of suspended
ceiling system

Composite Development at Nos. 1-21 Dundas Street,
Kowloon — Supply and installation of drywall system

The contract on hand of Trigon as at 31 March 2013 amounted
to HK$42.2 million.
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Tai Kee Pipes Limited (“Tai Kee”)

Another subsidiary under the Building Materials Division, Tai
Kee, focuses on the supply of pipes, fittings and other related
accessories through project sales.

REBRAA ([FREL])

BREMBHBNE—RMNBARRLIEES
TiRRBEHERE B REMBREET-

RENEFETRE

Major Projects Undertaken

(1)

Science Park Phase 3 — Supply of copper pipes and
related accessories

Public Rental Housing Development at Tseung Kwan
O Area 65B — Supply of copper pipes and related
accessories

Public Housing Development at Macau (Lot CNba) —
Supply of copper pipes and related accessories

Public Housing Development at Green Island, Macau —
Supply of copper pipes and related accessories

A commercial building at Yip Kan Street, Wong Chuk
Hang — Supply of copper pipes and related accessories

The contract on hand of Tai Kee as at 31 March 2013
amounted to HK$22.2 million.
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Million Hope Industries Limited (“Million Hope
HK”) and EE AR EEMB (EM) BRAF (“E
H#”) (collectively “Million Hope”)

Million Hope HK and its factory, £, specialise in the design,
supply and installation of aluminium windows and curtain walls
in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Million Hope is one of the
authorised manufacturers of the renowned German brand
product “Schiico”.

Major Projects Undertaken

(1) Lam Tin North Municipal Services Building — Design,
supply and installation of aluminium curtain wall,
aluminium cladding, canopy, skylight and feature

(2) Proposed industrial development at TWTL No. 36 Hoi
Shing Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories — Design, supply
and installation of aluminium window, window wall,
canopy and aluminium cladding

(3) Proposed residential development at Nos. 13-27 Warren
Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong — Design, supply and
installation of aluminium window, curtain wall, aluminium
cladding, louvre, grille, skylight, canopy, balustrade and
metal ceiling
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4)

(%)

Proposed industrial redevelopment, The Bedford, at Nos.
91-93 Bedford Road, Tai Kok Tsui, Kowloon — Design,
supply and installation of aluminium curtain wall, window
wall, window, louvre and aluminium cladding

Area 4-5 (Phase 1) Cheng Nam Xin Qu, Haining — Design,
supply and installation of aluminium door, window and
curtain wall

Major Projects Awarded

(1

3)

Proposed residential development, The Austine Place, at
No. 38 Kwun Chung Street, Jordan, Kowloon — Design,
supply and installation of aluminium window, sliding door,
window wall, cladding and balustrade

Proposed residential development at No. 11 Warren
Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong — Design, supply and
installation of aluminium window, sliding door, window
wall, cladding and balustrade

Redevelopment of Block E Building in NKIL 5748 for
The Hong Kong Baptist Hospital — Design, supply and
installation of curtain wall, window and louvre

No. 59 Mount Kellett Road, The Peak, Hong Kong —
Design, supply and installation of curtain wall, window
and canopy

The contract on hand of Million Hope as at 31 March 2013
amounted to HK$184.1 million.
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Outlook

The market demand for building materials should remain strong
in Hong Kong as the HKSAR Government has launched various
infrastructure projects and planned the construction of more
public housing to resolve the long lasting housing problem
in Hong Kong, and property developers continue their active
participation in the real estate market.

In the global commodity market, the metal prices such as the
copper and aluminium prices dropped during the year 2012,
resulting from the sluggish economy in Europe and the slow
recovery of the US property market. Copper and aluminium
are commodities with high beta, and will correlate with the
global economic growth, the commodity stock production
and balance. Mainland China is the key growth driver for
most commodities. In 2012, Mainland China accounted for
41% of global copper demand and 45% of global aluminium
consumption. The copper and aluminium prices are very much
dependent on the economy of Mainland China.

Copper pipe supply business and aluminium window
installation business are respectively the main business for Tai
Kee and Million Hope. We are very cautious and watchful for
these commodities price fluctuation, and will take necessary
actions to pledge against the risks.

Over the past years, our Building Materials Division has secured
a steady client base, both in the public and private sector.
Trigon has firmly established itself in the supply and installation
of false ceiling business. Tai Kee, with renowned reputation
in the piping business, is focusing on the supply of pipes for
project sales. Million Hope has obtained sufficient orders on
hand to keep its Huizhou factory busy for 2013.

Going forward, we will strengthen our marketing team to source
new products with good quality and expand our client base and
increase our market share.
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

The Property Development Division recorded a turnover
of HK$325.8 million, representing the sale of four units of
Eight College, the Group's wholly-owned luxurious residential
development in Kowloon Tong, during the year under review
(2012: HK$138.0 million). Subsequent to the year end, the
last unit was sold. The sale results were encouraging and have
brought about promising returns to the Group.

During the year, the construction work of The Bedford, a
boutique industrial high-rise at Nos. 91-93 Bedford Road, Tai
Kok Tsui has reached its final phase. Pre-sale has launched
and three units were sold subsequent to the financial year
ended 31 March 2013.

The foundation work of The Austine Place was completed in
early 2013 and superstructure work has been commenced
thereafter. The Austine Place is a boutique residential building
with retail podium, situated at a superb location of No. 38 Kwun
Chung Street, Jordan, offering luxury residences at a nexus of
transportation.

Pieces of agricultural land at Tong Yan San Tsuen in Yuen Long
were acquired by the Group in May 2012. A land exchange
application for residential use was made in 2012 with the Lands
Department.

Another proposed residential development of the Group at D.D.
129, Lau Fau Shan in Yuen Long had completed gazettal stage
and we are waiting for the offer of land premium.

For the proposed residential development project with Sun
Hung Kai Properties Limited at So Kwun Wat, Tuen Mun,
planning application to the Town Planning Board has been
completed during the year. Land exchange application to
convert the land to residential use will be made with the Lands
Department.
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For the Group’s 49% interests in the parcel of land situated at
FENIEEEMR N BEAE &= = EEAl (West of
Wenyuan Road and South of Houfutinggang, Haining, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC) for the development and construction
of office, retail, carparking spaces and other development
pertaining to the land, LUXEAST, pre-sale has commenced in
late 2012. As at the date of this annual report, a total of 24
commodity house purchase and sale contracts (B REEE &

[@) and a total of 22 purchase letters (2B 2 ) were signed.

ERNAEEEAOR RSN FENTIEEE
mEXsEEmA - gE=EE AN —E L
izt bR R EEBAE  EH - FE
EhEMHBEER (RS THR]) RZ-F
——EFREMBBRE - RILFHREH BAR
Rl T24mmEEEARR22INEERES -

Outlook

The property price in Hong Kong has surged continuously
during the past four years with the Centa-City Leading Index
rising from 60.10 in April 2009 to 120.14 in early June 2013.
Amid a sustained low interest rate environment, the upsurge
is demand driven, mainly due to the shortage of both private
and public housing during the past few years which cannot
meet the demand of the Hong Kong people. The strong inflow
of liquidity resulting from the quantitative easing policy from US
has further pushed the property price upward.
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The continuous rise in property rents and prices over the past
four years have increased the cost of living of the Hong Kong
citizens. The HKSAR government sees the immediate need
to response to the Hong Kong citizens’ housing appeal. While
the supply of more land and public housing will take time, the
HKSAR government has taken measures aiming to bring the
property price down to an affordable level, and to curb away the
speculators. Various cooling measures such as the imposition of
buyer stamp duty, special stamp duty and double stamp duty
have taken effect to stabilise the property price and restrain
speculative activities. However, the market generally believes
that the effect is of short term only, as the shortage of land and
housing supply cannot be overcome within a short period of
time.

In the long run, due to the increase in population and improved
household wealth of people in Hong Kong, the demand for
basic housing and desire for quality residences will continue to
exist. However, with the HKSAR Government’s determination to
increase the supply of land and public housing, and imposition
of measures to cool down the overheated property market,
property developers can no longer count

on selling flats at ever higher prices as

before. Nevertheless, under the high

land premium and continuing increase

in construction costs, it is unlikely that

property prices would drop substantially.

It is generally agreed that Government’s

effective measures are needed to address

the structural problem in Hong Kong's

property market to allow for a healthy

market adjustment for a more stable and

sustainable environment in the long run.

Over the years, the Group has acquired
several pieces of land at relatively low
prices. We have sufficient land reserve
for development over the next five years.
This will ensure steady performance of
our Property Development Division in the
coming few years.
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PROPERTY INVESTMENT DIVISION

The Property Investment Division recorded a turnover of
HK$21.9 million as compared with that of HK$18.5 million last
year. The increase was mainly attributable to the rental income
from a newly acquired commercial building.

During the year, some workshops at Shatin Industrial Centre
were sold. The Group completed the acquisition of 100%
interest of a commercial building situated at No. 151 Hollywood
Road, Hong Kong (the “Commercial Building”) in November
2012. Given that the Group would like to seize the opportunity
to add a high-quality property to its property portfolio and at
the same time maintain a steady gearing ratio and reserve the
funds for other existing development projects, 40% interest
of the issued shares of the Group’s subsidiary, representing
40% interest of the Commercial Building, was subsequently
sold. Completion of the disposal took place in December 2012
and the Group now maintains 60% interest in the Commercial
Building.

Leasing performance of Shatin Industrial Centre was steady,
attaining an occupancy rate of 100% at 31 March 2013.

Other investment properties of the Group include No. 31 Wing
Wo Street and No. 151 Hollywood Road in Sheung Wan, some
units at Kin Wing Industrial Building in Tuen Mun, various land
lots in D.D. 76 Ping Che in Fanling, various land lots in D.D.
128 Deep Bay Road in Yuen Long and Hoi Bun Godown in
Tuen Mun in which the Group has 50% interest, all contributed
to satisfactory income for the Group during the year.
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Outlook

The cooling measures introduced by the HKSAR Government
in late February 2013 was for the first time applicable to
commercial property, which had been the destination for a
lot of hot money diverted from the residential market after the
previous rounds of measures.

Hong Kong's commercial sales market remained subdued in
May 2013, with investors deterred by the higher transaction
costs from the reduction of loan-to-value ratio and double
stamp duty implemented in February 2013. Certain potential
buyers might have switched from buying to leasing. The leasing
sector is expected to remain stable.

However, the acute shortage of commercial space continues
to exist and there is a lack of new supply of commercial land
feeding into the market. The HKSAR Government measures on
the commercial property may have short term role but will be
subtle if the issue of undersupply is not addressed. Tenants in
Hong Kong will continue to seek out cost effective commercial
space while options are limited.

Throughout the years, the Property Investment Division
has been developing its property portfolio with a mixture of
properties in different natures. This year, the Group has added
a commercial building in its portfolio and this has prepared the
Group to grow with market movement.

While remain cautious on market circumstances, we will
continue to assess opportunities to build up our investment
property portfolio to generate steady income streams to the
Group.
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PROPERTY AGENCY AND MANAGEMENT
DIVISION

The turnover of the Property Agency and Management Division
for the year was HK$13.7 million, compared to that of HK$9.0
million last year.

The Property Agency and Management Division is providing
property management services to Golf Parkview in Sheung
Shui, One LaSalle and Eight College in Kowloon Tong and
No. 151 Hollywood Road in Sheung Wan.

It is also providing rental collection and leasing agency services
to 8 Hart Avenue and The Cameron in Tsim Sha Tsui and
No. 151 Hollywood Road in Sheung Wan.

During the year, the Property Agency and Management Division
continued to provide project management service to the large-
scale integrated development project in Haining City, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC under a new set of agreements entered
into on 2 April 2012. Commencing from 1 April 2012, the
Property Agency and Management Division was also engaged
to provide site supervision service to the above project. Details
of the transactions for the provision of project management
and site supervision services were made in the Company's
announcement published on 2 April 2012.

In Hong Kong, the Property Agency and Management
Division acted as the project manager for two of the Group’s
redevelopments, The Bedford at Nos. 91-93 Bedford Road, Tai
Kok Tsui and The Austine Place at No. 38 Kwun Chung Street,
Jordan as well as for a client in the redevelopment project at
Nos. 11-13 Grampian Road.

Outlook

Looking forward, we will continue to enhance our service
platform to provide high quality, efficient and cost-effective
property management, rental collection and leasing agency
services. We will also ride on the seasoned experience and
expertise of the project management team to facilitate smooth
running and completion of the projects.
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HEALTH PRODUCTS DIVISION

There are three subsidiaries of Health Products Division
under the Group, Care & Health Limited (“Care & Health”),
Healthcorp Trading Limited (“Healthcorp”) and Retailcorp
Limited (“Retailcorp”). They are engaged in wholesale in
Chinese and western supplements and retail chain store
businesses respectively.

This year, the Health Products Division recorded a turnover of
HK$56.1 million as compared to HK$52.6 million last year.

Retailcorp operates chain store retail business under the trade
name of HealthPlus. As at 31 March 2013, there were 13 retail
outlets (including a HealthPlus shop at St. Teresa's Hospital in
Kowloon) and 1 service centre in operation.

Three HealthPlus shops namely Sincere (Sheung Wan), Lok
Fu Plaza, and Tuen Mun Town Plaza were closed due to
substantial increase in rental by the landlord. To cope with our
development and accommodate our customers from different
districts, three new retail shops were opened in this financial
year. The shops are situated at The Pacifica Mall in Lai Chi Kok,
Kwun Tong MTR Station and Tuen Mun MTR West Rail Station.

Retailcorp carries a full range of different
health product lines including “Lingzhi
Master”, “Metro Chinese Medicine Series”,
“Natural Extracts”, “HealthMate” and “28
Chinese Herbal Soup for Postnatal Women”.
It also serves a large variety of vendor goods,
including imported organic groceries, sugarless
snacks, health devices, etc. Four new
products namely “Yunzhi” for strengthening
immunity system and can adjunct radiotherapy
and chemotherapy, “Smart Eyes Plus” for
preventing the risks of eye degeneration,
“Chlorella” for removing heavy metals and toxic
substances from body, and “Nano-Calcium” for
strengthening bone density were launched in
this financial year. Retailcorp will join the 21st
International Baby/Children products Expo in
August 2013.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Healthcorp is engaged in the wholesale and retail of western
health supplements and “28 Chinese Herbal Soup for Postnatal
Women”. To promote our products, Care & Health and
Healthcorp will jointly participate in the Food Expo 2013 and
Hong Kong Brands and Products Expo 2013.

After the implementation of “Registration of Proprietary
Chinese Medicine” by the Department of Health on 3
December 2010, “Guidelines on labels of proprietary Chinese
medicines” and “Guidelines on package inserts of proprietary
Chinese medicines” (regulation No. 143 and 144) on 1
December 2011, a new regulation “the Undesirable Medical
Advertisements (Amendment) Ordinance 2005” has been
enforced on 1 June 2012. We are committed to complying with
the requirements imposed by the Department of Health.

Retailcorp and Care & Health were awarded the “Caring
Company” honour from The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for the 7th and 8th consecutive year and going to 8th
and Sth consecutive year respectively. HealthPlus was also
awarded the “Quality Tourism Services Scheme” and the “No
Fakes Pledge” Scheme. Bu Yick Fong “28 Chinese Herbal
Soup for Postnatal Women” has become the first Chinese
material medica product awarded the “STC tested” Mark from
Hong Kong Standards and Testing Centre.

In e-Marketing channels, we have developed a fan page on
Facebook and an e-shop in order to strengthen customer
relationship management and to provide interactive ways to
connect with potential customers.

Outlook

Going forward, we will continue to explore e-business in
order to expand local and overseas markets. We will focus on
distributing the Chinese and western supplements into different
retail chains in order to enlarge our market share. It is always
our mission to fulfill our members and customers’ expectations
by providing professional services and sourcing healthy
products.
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SUMMARY OF RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the turnover of Hanison
Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) was HK$1,554.5 million,
being 25.9% higher than the turnover of HK$1,234.7 million for
the year ended 31 March 2012.

In addition to the increase in turnover, the Group recorded an
increase in profit attributable to owners of the Company for
the year from HK$128.2 million for the last financial year to
HK$188.3 million for this financial year. Such increase is mainly
attributable to the profit on the sale of four units from our
property development project, Eight College, and revaluation
gain from investment properties.

The basic earnings per share for the year was HK3b5.1 cents,
compared to HK23.9 cents (restated) last year.

As at 31 March 2013, the net asset value of the Group
amounted to HK$1,219.5 million (2012: HK$1,051.3 million),
representing an increase of 16.0% over last year. Net asset
value per share at 31 March 2013 was HK$2.27 (2012:
HK$1.96 (restated)).

GROUP LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group’s liquidity and financing requirements are regularly
reviewed.

For day-to-day liquidity management and to maintain flexibility
in funding, the Group has access to banking facilities with
an aggregate amount of HK$1,402.8 million (HK$957.8
million was secured by first charges over certain leasehold
land and buildings, investment properties, properties under
development, assets classified as held for sale and bank
deposits of the Group), of which HK$810.7 million loans have
been drawn down and approximately HK$130.7 million has
been utilised mainly for the issuance of letters of credit and
performance bonds as at 31 March 2013. The bank loans
under these banking facilities bear interests at prevailing market
interest rates.
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The Group follows a prudent policy in managing its cash
balance, and endeavours to maintain its sound cash flow
generating capability, its ability to take on investments and
acquisition projects, in order to enhance shareholder wealth.
The total cash and bank balances of the Group amounted
to HK$293.3 million as at 31 March 2013 (2012: HK$184.9
million), and accounted for 19.0% of the current assets (2012:
11.4%).

During the year, the Group has a net cash inflow of HK$273.6
million in its operating activities (mainly due to the decrease
in debtors, deposits and prepayments, progress payments
receivable and amounts receivable on contract work), a net
cash outflow of HK$283.1 million in its investing activities
(mainly due to purchase of investment properties and
placement of pledged bank deposits, netting off proceeds
received from disposal of investment properties and capital
distribution from jointly controlled entities), and a net cash
inflow of HK$118.1 million in its financing activities (mainly due
to new bank loans raised and advance from non-controlling
shareholder, netting off dividends paid to shareholders and
repayment of bank loans). As a result, the cash and bank
balances increased, while the bank borrowings increased. Net
bank borrowings (total bank borrowings less total cash and
bank balances) amounted to HK$517.4 million at 31 March
2013 (2012: net bank borrowings of HK$549.4 million).
Accordingly, the gearing ratio of the Group, calculated on the
basis of the Group’s net bank borrowings to shareholders’
funds, was 42.4% (2012: 52.3%). The net current assets have
decreased by HK$145.5 million to HK$261.8 million as at the
year-end date and the current ratio (current assets divided by
current liabilities) was 1.20 times (2012: 1.34 times).

With its cash holdings and available banking facilities, the
Group’s liquidity position will remain healthy in the coming
year, with sufficient financial resources to meet its obligations,
operation and future development requirements.
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TREASURY POLICY

The aim of the Group’s treasury policy is to minimise its
exposure to fluctuations in the exchange rate and not to engage
in any highly leveraged or speculative derivative products.
Treasury transactions unrelated to underlying financial exposure
are not undertaken. Foreign currency exposures of the Group
arise mainly from the purchase of goods. The Group will
determine if any hedging is required, on an individual basis,
depending upon the size and nature of the exposure, and the
prevailing market circumstances.

In order to enhance the deployment of internal funds with
maximum benefit, to achieve better risk control, and to
minimise cost of funds, the Group's treasury activities are
centralised and scrutinised by the top management.

The surplus cash which is generally placed with reputable
financial institutions is mostly denominated in Hong Kong
dollar. Most of the income, expenses, assets and liabilities of
the Group are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group
therefore does not have any significant exposure to gains or
losses arising from the movement of foreign currency exchange
rate against the Hong Kong dollar.

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

At the year-end date, shareholders’ funds of the Group were
HK$1,219.5 million including reserves of HK$1,165.8 million,
an increase of HK$163.2 million from HK$1,002.6 million at
31 March 2012. On that basis, the consolidated net asset value
of the Group as at 31 March 2013 was HK$2.27 per share,
compared to the consolidated net asset value of HK$1.96 per
share (restated) at 31 March 2012. Increase in shareholders’
funds was mainly attributable to profits retained after the
payments of dividends during the year.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group intends to keep an appropriate mix of equity and
debt to ensure an efficient capital structure over time. During
the year under review, the Group has borrowed Hong Kong
dollar loans amounting to HK$810.7 million from the banks (at
31 March 2012: HK$734.3 million). The borrowings have been
used as general working capital for financing the properties
for development and investment purposes over the years.
The maturity profile of the loans spread over a period of six
years with HK$456.9 million repayable within the first year,
HK$326.8 million repayable within the second year, HK$3.0
million repayable within third to fifth years and HK$24.0 million
repayable more than five years. Bank loans that are repayable
more than one year after the end of the reporting period but
contain a repayment on demand clause with carrying amount
of HK$353.8 million have been classified as current liabilities.
Interest is based on HIBOR plus a competitive margin.

MAJOR ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 21 September 2012, Excel Pointer Limited (“Excel
Pointer”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement to acquire an investment
property for a consideration of HK$318,000,000 from an
independent third party. The transaction was completed on 30
November 2012. On 1 November 2012, the Group entered into
a sale and purchase agreement to dispose 40% of the issued
share capital of Superior Choice Holdings Limited (“Superior
Choice”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group and
immediate holding company of Excel Pointer, to Sky Champion
International Limited (“Sky Champion”) for a consideration
of US$4, representing the relevant carrying value of Superior
Choice at that time. Immediately upon the completion of the
disposal of 40% equity interest in Superior Choice on 17
December 2012, Sky Champion provided a shareholder’s
loan to Superior Choice amounting to HK$63,600,000 and a
guarantee of HK$63,600,000 to a bank for banking facilities
granted to Excel Pointer. The Group now maintains 60%
interest in the investment property.
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On 15 April 2011, the Group entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement to acquire 100% of the
issued share capital of Wisdom Mount Investment
Limited (“Wisdom Mount”) for a basic consideration of
RMB79,872,000 (approximately HK$95,976,000) and a
contingent consideration of RMB11,962,000 (approximately
HK$14,253,000).

Wisdom Mount, incorporated in British Virgin Islands, is an
investment holding company which owns 49% equity interest
in BERZREMEHSBFR QA Haining Jiafeng Real Estate
Development Limited (“Haining Jiafeng”). The Group and the
other joint venturer have the right to appoint the same number
of directors of Haining Jiafeng and all of the strategic financial
and operating decisions require unanimous consent of the
Group and the other joint venturer. Accordingly, the Group
exercises joint control over Haining Jiafeng with the other joint
venturer. Haining Jiafeng is engaged in property development,
which owns the land use right and has the right to develop
and construct office premises on the land located in Haining,
the PRC. The vendor, Clear Shine International Limited, is
an indirect 65% owned subsidiary of Mingly Corporation, an
indirect subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of, and has
significant influence over, the Company. The acquisition has
been completed on 30 June 2011.

COLLATERAL

As at 31 March 2013, certain leasehold land and buildings,
investment properties, properties under development for sale
and assets classified as held for sale of the Group, at the
carrying value of approximately HK$1,168.2 million (at 31
March 2012: HK$898.5 million), were pledged to the banks to
secure the Hong Kong dollar loans of HK$530.7 million (at 31
March 2012: HK$464.3 million). In addition, bank deposits of
HK$24.4 million was pledged for bank loans granted to one of
the Group’s jointly controlled entity in PRC.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2004, legal actions in respect
of allegations of copyright infringement and defamation have
been taken against certain subsidiaries of the Company
carrying on health products business. No further steps have
been taken against the Group in respect of such actions
after the court hearing for directions to appoint experts and
exchange witness statements since 2004. At 31 March 2013,
the directors are of the opinion that in view of the uncertainty, it
is not practicable to assess the financial effect.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the end of reporting period, the Group had the following
commitments:
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As at the end of both reporting periods, the Group had
committed with an independent third party to contribute
HK$231,500,000, representing 23.63% of the anticipated
project costs for the joint development of a site in So Kwun Wat,
Hong Kong.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Group is implementing a manpower policy that aims to
maximise the output of existing staff resources in order to
achieve productivity gains. We believe that through improving
our staff's job-related competencies, our overall operational
efficiency can be improved without the need for substantial
increase in headcount.

The number of full time monthly employees of the Group,
excluding its jointly controlled entities, was around 736 (of
which 142 employees were in Mainland China) as at 31 March
2013. In addition to salary payments, other benefits include
provident fund schemes, discretionary bonuses, on-the-job
training, education sponsorship subsidies, a medical insurance
scheme, a group life and personal accident insurance scheme.

Employees and directors are remunerated according to
individual and the Group's performance, industry trends,
prevailing market conditions, the nature of the job and value
creation. The Group recruits and promotes individuals based
on their development potential, merits and competencies, and
ensures that their remuneration packages are at a reasonable
market level. All directors, full time employees and consultants
of the Group are entitled to participate in the share option
scheme of the Company. The principal terms of the share
option scheme are summarised in the Report of the Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Good corporate governance practices are crucial to enhancing
shareholder value. With this in mind, the directors of the
Company are keen on maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. This is reflected in terms of a quality Board of
Directors (“Board”) and the emphasis on transparency and
accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
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COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company
has complied with all the Code Provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”), except for the
deviations set out below in respect of which remedial steps for
compliance have been taken or considered reasons are given
below:

(a)

(b)

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. The non-executive directors
(including the independent non-executive directors) of the
Company are not appointed for a specific term. However,
pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company
amended on 2 August 2005, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the directors,
including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive directors shall retire from office by rotation, and
every director shall be subject to retirement at least once
every three years. As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
corporate governance practices of the Company are no
less exacting than those in the CG Code.

Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code stipulates that
independent non-executive directors and other non-
executive directors should attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, the Chairman
and non-executive director of the Company, Mr. Cha Mou
Daid, Johnson, non-executive director of the Company,
and Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin, non executive
director of the Company, were unable to attend certain
or all general meetings of the Company held during the
year as they had other important business engagement.
Details of their attendance record of meetings are set out
in the “Attendance Record of Directors and Committee
Members” section of the annual report. To ensure
compliance with the CG Code, the Company has taken
and will continue to take all reasonable measures to
arrange the schedule in such a cautious way that all
directors can attend the general meetings.
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(c) Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code stipulates that the
Chairman of the Board should attend the annual general
meeting. The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Cha Mou Sing,
Payson, was unable to attend the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 28 August 2012 as he had other
important business engagement. However, the Managing
Director, present at the annual general meeting, took the
chair of that meeting in accordance with Article 78 of the
Articles of the Association of the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, and assumes
responsibility for strategy formulation, corporate governance
and performance monitoring. It develops and reviews the
Group’s strategies and policies, formulates business plans
and evaluates performance of the operating divisions against
agreed budgets and targets through regular discussion on key
and appropriate issues in a timely manner. It also exercises
a number of reserved powers, including: approval of annual
and interim results and significant changes in accounting
policy or capital structure, internal control system, material
transactions (in particular those which may involve conflict of
interests), major capital projects, setting Group’s remuneration
policy, dividend policy, appointment of directors, supervision
of management and other significant financial and operational
matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the Managing Director and the
senior management, who fulfill their duties within their scope
of authority and responsibility. Divisional heads are responsible
for different aspects of the businesses. Major functions
delegated to management include preparation of annual and
interim results, execution of business strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board, implementation of an adequate internal
control system and compliance with the relevant statutory
requirements.
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All directors are kept informed of major changes that may
affect the Group’s businesses on a timely basis, and can
avail themselves of the advice and services of the Company
Secretary so that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Each director can have recourse
to independent professional advice in performing their duties at
the Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for
directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities.

Board Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance
of skills and experience desirable for effective leadership of
the Company and independence in decision making. The
biographies of the directors (and their relationships, if any)
are set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” section of this annual report, which
demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
qualifications.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors, representing at least one-third of the Board. One
of the independent non-executive directors, Dr. Lau Tze Yiu,
Peter possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.
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During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Board of the Company comprised the following directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Managing Director)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager)

Dr. Lam Chat Yu

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson (Chairman)
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson

Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Pak Joe

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter

Dr. Sun Tai Lun

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant to
the Listing Rules from time to time.

Coming from diverse business and professional backgrounds,
the non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors bring a wealth of expertise and experiences to
the Board, which contributes to the success of the Group.
Through active participation in Board meetings, taking the
lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests
and serving on Board committees, all of them make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

All independent non-executive directors are free from any
business or other relationships with the Company. The
Company has received written annual confirmation of
independence from each independent non-executive director in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
has assessed their independence and concluded that all
independent non-executive directors are independent within
the meaning of the Listing Rules.
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Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson (Chairman of the Company)
indirectly owns as to 50% interest and Mr. Wong Sue Toa,
Stewart (Managing Director of the Company) together with Mrs.
Wong Lui Kwok Wai (spouse of Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart)
indirectly owned as to an aggregate of the remaining 50%
interest in Queentex Industries Limited and its subsidiaries. If in
case a conflict of interest arises, those directors or any of their
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) who have a material
interest will abstain from voting on the relevant resolution(s).

Save for the information (including the relationships, if any,
among the directors) as disclosed in the “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual
report and the business relationship between the Chairman and
the Managing Director as disclosed above, there is no other
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship
among the directors and between the Chairman and the
Managing Director.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company established a Nomination Committee on 20
March 2012 to deal with matters in relation to the appointment
and re-election of Directors.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination Committee
will identify suitable individuals by making reference to
criteria including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, length of service and time commitments
of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs and other
relevant statutory requirements and regulations. New directors
are sought mainly through referrals or internal promotion.

The Company’s circular sent together with this annual report
contains detailed information of the directors standing for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.
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Chairman and Managing Director

The positions of the Chairman and Managing Director are
held by Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Wong Sue Toa,
Stewart respectively. The Board has adopted a set of written
terms setting out the roles and duties of the Chairman and the
Managing Director.

The Chairman provides leadership for the effective functioning
of the Board in the overall strategic planning and development
of the Group. With the support of the Managing Director and
senior management, the Chairman is also responsible for
ensuring that the directors receive adequate, complete and
reliable information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing
on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Managing Director focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved by the Board. He is in charge
of the Company’s day-to-day management and operations.
The Managing Director is also responsible for formulating
the organisational structure, control systems and internal
procedures and processes for the Board’s approval.
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Directors’ Induction and Development

Every newly appointed director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses
as well as his/her responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws,
rules and regulations. The Company Secretary from time to
time provides the directors with updates on latest development
and changes to the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements. During the year ended 31 March
2013, all directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
A summary of training received by the directors is as follows:
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Training Areas

ELE
Accounting/
Corporate financial/
governance/ management
updates on laws, or other
rules & regulations professional skills
TEEREE- a5t Mk
RAIRBRFIEH B HAM
B EMR HERRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart THBEA (EFEAHE) 4 4
(Managing Director)

Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager) Bt &4 (BAEE) v 4

Dr. Lam Chat Yu MEFIEL v v

Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson (Chairman) & 454 (/&) 4 4

Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson ERERE v v

Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin ERPLE v 4

Independent Non-executive Directors BV FEHITESE

Mr. Chan Pak Joe BRIAY S v v

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 2rRiEt v v

Dr. Sun Tai Lun N A v v
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the guideline
for securities transactions by directors and employees who are
likely to be in possession of inside information of the Company.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the directors and the
directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2013.
No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code by the
employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD AND COMMITTEES

Board Proceedings

The Board held four regular meetings and one non-regular
meeting during the year ended 31 March 2013 and the

principal businesses transacted include:

° Assessing business performance and planning future
business directions;

o Approving interim and final results and reports;

° Approving business acquisition and property transactions;
° Determining payment of dividend; and

° Approving the continuing connected transactions.
Meeting schedules are normally made available to the directors
in advance. Notices of regular Board meetings are given to all
the directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For other

Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally
given.
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Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all the directors at least 3 days
before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the
Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions. The Board and each director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary. The directors receive a regular supply of information
about the business activities, financial highlights and operations
review so that they are well informed prior to participation in
Board meetings.

The Financial Controller attended all regular Board meetings
and when necessary, other Board and committee meetings to
advise on business developments, financial and accounting
matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and other
major aspects of the Company.

According to current Board practice, any transaction with a
material amount will be considered and dealt with by the Board
at a duly convened Board meeting. The Company’s Articles of
Association also contain provisions requiring directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such directors or any of
their associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) have a material
interest.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company has been established
since December 2001. The Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors and Dr. Lau Tze Yiu,
Peter is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and possesses
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a partner or former partner of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, the Company's existing external auditors. Members
of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter (Chairman) *
Mr. Chan Pak Joe #
Dr. Sun Tai Lun #

# Independent non-executive director
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The major duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

° Reviewing the financial statements and reports and
considering any significant or unusual items raised by
the qualified accountant or external auditors before
submission to the Board;

° Making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditors, approving their remuneration and terms of
engagement and reviewing and monitoring the external
auditors’ independence and objectivity;

° Reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures;

° Reviewing the Group’s operating, financial and accounting
policies and practices; and

° Reporting to the Board on the matters in the CG Code.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year and
the major works performed are as follows:

° Reviewing and recommending for the Board's approval
the financial results and reports for the year ended 31
March 2012 and for the six months ended 30 September
2012;

° Reviewing the continuing connected transactions of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2012;

° Recommending to the Board of the re-appointment of
external auditors for the year ended 31 March 2013; and

° Reviewing certain aspects of the internal control system of
the Group.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 March
2013 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on
20 March 2012. Members of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

Mr. Chan Pak Joe (Chairman) *
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter #

Dr. Sun Tai Lun *#

Mr. Tai Sai Ho

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart

# Independent non-executive director

The major duties of the Nomination Committee include the
following:

° Reviewing structure, size and composition (including
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° Identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorship;

° Assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors of the Company;

° Making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors of the
Company and succession planning for directors of the
Company in particular the Chairman and the Managing
Director; and

° Reviewing the Board Diversity Policy and the progress on
achieving the objectives set for implementing the policy.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

REEEG

Jo

ARAREZEEER _E—-F=A=-+H
PR ilRBEREEMENT:

RIAEEE (ZEETE) !
£l i
BRRmEBL*
ikt
FEELE

PN IEMITES

REZBENEIETIEMT:

s EJLEBFRIEFENRE ABLA
B (BEREE ME - KR M EROER
FE)  WHERREAARRB R AR
MBS EESEHE IR ER

s YVEAKAEBEERAELIEENAL
THERRABALHESZEHBLILMA
EFgRHtER:

o  ERARBEIUIFMITERNBILIML:

s MARAEZZEIAEHZEALAR
RAER (LHEEXTFRREFAKIE)EFT
AEmMEESREESR:

. Mﬁé%AWEyEkﬁ%&%ﬁ R Pt
B E H) B AR ITEE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT &6 W EE

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year
and the major works performed are as follows:

° Reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

° Reviewing and make recommendations to the Board
on the re-appointment of directors who are subject to
retirement from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting; and

° Reviewing and adopting a Board Diversity Policy and
making corresponding changes to the terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee for adoption by the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Company set up the Remuneration Committee in
December 2004 which replaced the Bonus Committee
established in December 2001. Members of the Remuneration
Committee are as follows:

Dr. Sun Tai Lun (Chairman) *
Mr. Chan Pak Joe #

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter #

Mr. Tai Sai Ho

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart

# Independent non-executive director

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee include the
following:

° Formulating remuneration policy and practices and
determining the remuneration packages of the executive
directors and the senior management; and

° Ensuring that no director or any of his associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) will participate in deciding his
own remuneration.

RERN RBEEZEGHEITT T —XE
BERIT:

mE}
s"ft'ﬁi
H_I,
i
&

o RHNEFEMRE - ABLMAEN:

s RIRAEFSERENZINAGE
THBRRBFAERBEEENES:
K

e RBIKEMNEFTEXNEZTEBERLE
REZESHRESEIERREEE AT
BEEERWN-

FMESE

RAFR-_ZEMFE+-_ARIFHNEES
Mﬂﬁﬂ_%?—¢+_ﬂﬁ4%%,§§
-FMEZEEMKEIT:

BRRmEL (ZEgLmE)"
BRIBE R & *
gt
ittt
FTHREE

PN IEMITES
FTNEEEMEETENT:

o REFMEREER KEFTHRITESM
SREEABNFIEE: &

e HMRWEBEEFHHAEMEBEA(E
FRETRA) 28 mER S H S A
Z/;KL}TF_ °

FRERIZ IR AR AR
2012/2013 F R

61




62

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 1 ¥E &G E

In determining the remuneration, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed background information such as key economic
indicators, market/sector trend, headcount and staff costs.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the
year and the major works performed are as follows:

° Reviewing and determining the change of remuneration
package for the executive directors and senior
management and the change of remuneration
package for other employees of the Group for the year
commencing 1 April 2013; and

° Approving the maximum bonus pool and the actual bonus
amount to be distributed to the executive directors, senior
management and other employees of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2012.

Other Board Committees

In addition to delegating specific responsibilities to the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, the Board also established two board committees
in April 2002 to handle the Company’s general business and
acquisition/disposal of property within a designated threshold
respectively, namely the General Business Committee and the
Property Acquisition/Disposal Committee. The composition of
two committees is all the executive directors of the Company.
During the year ended 31 March 2013, the General Business
Committee approved the transfer of shares by way of written
resolutions.
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Attendance Record of Directors and Committee
Members

The individual attendance record of each director at Board
meetings and general meetings during the year ended 31

March 2013 is set out below:

EERZEEHREHELEK

NTREBE-_F—=F=-A=1t—HLFE"
EREEHEESS RRRAGHHFELE:

2012 2012 2013
Annual Extraordinary Extraordinary
General General General
Board! Meeting? Meeting® Meeting*
—E-ZF —E-ZF —E-=f§
Name of Directors EEHE Ezg REBFAE RRBFAIAE RREBIA
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson (Chairman) *  BREL4E (£/E)* 55 01 o1 o1
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart THEEE (EFHLE)
(Managing Director) 5/5 171 171 1/1
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager) Bt Rk (HEE) 55 11 11 /1
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson * EHEEE - 55 01 0/1 0/1
Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin * ERPEE 5/5 11 011 11
Mr. Chan Pak Joe * BiakxE ! 5/5 171 11 11
Dr. Lam Chat Yu WEFHEL 3/5 01 i 01
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter # ZFRfgLe 5/5 1 11 11
Dr. Sun Tai Lun * BRfmiEL? 5/5 11 11 11

* Non-executive director

# Independent non-executive director
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The individual attendance record of each member at committee UTRBE-_E—=F=-A=+—HIFE"
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2013 is set out  fEARIKEHEZE @ SHMN T FiLek:

below:
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Committee® Committee® Committee’
Name of Directors EENA EREEE REEE®R FWZzEE
Mr. Chan Pak Joe # PRAGE oA # 2/2 1/1 2/2
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter * 2 FREE L 2/2 1/1 2/2
Dr. Sun Tai Lun * YN I 2/2 1/1 2/2
Mr. Tai Sai Ho Bt St 4 -8 11 2/2
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart FHELAE -8 1/1 2/2
# Independent non-executive director PR IEITES
Notes: B eE
1 During the year, there were 4 regular Board meetings and 1 non- 1 FAENAERGER —RIEEREE-
regular Board meeting.
2 The annual general meeting was held on 28 August 2012. 2 BEBAFRKRER_TE——FNA=+N\HE
17e
3 The extraordinary general meeting was held on 12 December 3 BEFIRER-_ZE—-F+A+=-HHR
2012. 7o
4 The extraordinary general meeting was held on 1 February 4 BRENAER _E—=F_F—HB %77

2013.
5 Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter was the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 5 AFRELTAERZESEF -

6 Mr. Chan Pak Joe was the Chairman of the Nomination 6 R CERIRRBEZETER -
Committee.

7 Dr. Sun Tai Lun was the Chairman of the Remuneration 7 FERAmEBLAFMNEZESERF-
Committee.

8 Neither Mr. Tai Sai Ho nor Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart were 8 Htt L ERTHELETIEREZTE SR
members of the Audit Committee. =)
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

Financing Reporting

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements. In preparing the financial statements, Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards have been adopted, appropriate
accounting policies have been applied, and reasonable and
prudent judgments and estimates have been made.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditors on
the financial statements of the Company are set out in the
“Independent Auditor's Report” section of this annual report.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal
control system to facilitate effective and efficient operations, to
safeguard assets, to prevent and detect fraud and error, and
to ensure the quality and timely preparation of internal and
external reporting and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure
with clear lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of
responsibility and authority to the senior management, who are
accountable for the conduct and performance of the respective
business divisions under their supervision.
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The directors review monthly management reports on the
financial results, statistics and project progress of each
business. Monthly management meetings are held to review
business performance against budgets, forecasts and risk
management strategies. Any major variances are highlighted for
investigation and control purposes.

A centralized cash management system is maintained to
oversee the Group's investment and borrowing activities. There
are established guidelines and procedures for the approval and
control of expenditures. The aim is to keep the expenditure
level in line with the annual budget and within the cost budget
of an approved project. Expenditures are subject to overall
budget control with approval levels set by reference to the level
of responsibility of each manager and officer. Depending on the
nature and value, procurement of certain goods and services
are required to go through the tendering process. No individual
in the Group, irrespective of their rank and position, are allowed
to dominate the entire expenditure process from commitment to
payment.

During the year under review, the Board confirmed that there
were no significant weaknesses and areas for improvement
have been identified and appropriate measures taken.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2013 is set out below:

EENeENEANERERS  EREBEE
BB EE R RRBEE -BANTEE
BEe® $EXBRALARE FAAKRRE
ERRELLE WIRAEEENEZR U
fEE M B

AEBER—ETFRRSERRG UEER
SENRERBEES - —RIINESI REF
BN LARERLEMZESIF X B 2 EM
XHKPREFERE  RiEREBEDEIE
MITREMEERERA T K - FXXEEE
TBERS - mESULERTEREENEE
ETROIEER -REEMEENEE BE
—LERRRY BERENBIE - EAKE
W ORB A (PRESRLBAA) KA

RTE AR R N R EER SRR -

EOBEFE EFeRIELRBEAEKRD
9938 MH B EM M )T 2 RAER I E R
TR I ©

1% 6 Fr B

BE_Z-—=F=A=+—HIFE KQF
P ONBAXBIEM Z Fr B an T -

HK$
okt
Audit Services EZRTE 1,910,000
Non-audit Services IEBE LR
Reviewing the financial results and EHHE_ZE——-FNA=TH
report for the six months ended IERBE R BEE RS
30 September 2012 340,000
For the reporting work for major transaction FERXHIRETIE 350,000
Others Htb 33,600
TOTAL palc] 2,633,600
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
exchange of views between the shareholders and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board as well as Chairmen of the
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, or in their absence, other members of the
respective committees, and where applicable, the independent
Board committee, are available to answer questions at the
shareholders’ meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings
on each substantial issue, including the election of individual
directors.

To ensure compliance with the CG Code, the notice of the
meeting, the annual report and the circular containing
information on the proposed resolutions will be sent to
shareholders at least twenty clear business days before the
meeting. Voting at the 2013 annual general meeting will be
by way of a poll. The results of the poll will be published on
the day of shareholders’ meeting by posting on both the Stock
Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.

Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting and
Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

General meetings shall be convened:

(@) on the written requisition of any two members of the
Company deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong (Unit 1, 4/F., Block B, Shatin Industrial
Centre, 5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit, Shatin, Hong Kong)
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company; or
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(b) on the written requisition of any one member of the
Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee) deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong (Unit 1, 4/F., Block B, Shatin Industrial
Centre, 5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit, Shatin, Hong Kong),
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the
Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of
the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Communication with the Board
The Company continues to enhance communications and

relationships with its investors. Enquiries from investors are
dealt with in an informative and timely manner.
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Shareholders and other stakeholders may communicate with
the Board by addressing their enquiries and concerns to the
Company Secretary through the following channels:

By mail

Hanison Construction Holdings Limited
Attention: Company Secretary

Unit 1, 4/F, Block B,

Shatin Industrial Centre,

5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit,

Shatin, Hong Kong

By email
info@hanison.com

By telephone/fax
Tel: (852) 2414 3889
Fax: (852) 2490 3341

To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at www.hanison.com, where extensive
information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information and other
information are posted.
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EPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries, associate and jointly
controlled entities are set out in notes 47, 19 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 102.

An interim dividend of HK1.8 cents per share amounting to
HK$8,777,000 were paid to the shareholders during the year.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK3.2 cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2013
amounting to HK$17,162,000 to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members on 4 September
2013. The proposed dividend will be paid on 18 September
2013 following approval at the annual general meeting.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements during the year in the investment
properties of the Group are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed
securities.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserve of the Group during
the year are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 106 of the annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2013 comprised the aggregate
of share premium, dividend reserve and retained profits of
HK$333,547,000 (2012: HK$330,355,000).

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, dividends
may be declared and paid out of the profits of the Company,
realised or unrealised, or from any reserves set aside from
profits which the directors of the Company determine is no
longer needed. With the sanction of an ordinary resolution,
dividends may also be declared and paid out of share premium
account subject to a solvency test as set out in section 34 of the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s former share option scheme was adopted on
3 January 2002 and was terminated on 21 September 2011.
Pursuant to the Company’'s new share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) which was adopted and became effective on 21
September 2011, all directors (including independent non-
executive directors), full-time employees and consultants of the
Company, its subsidiaries and/or its associates are eligible to
participate in the Scheme.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the participants who
have been granted options under the Scheme to subscribe for
ordinary shares in the Company with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interest in the Company and to encourage them
to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

(@) Maximum number of shares available for
issuance

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at
the date of approval of the Scheme. A total of 48,755,967
shares of the Company is available for issue under the
Scheme which represents 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of approval of the Scheme
and represents 9.09% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.

The overall limit on the number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from
time to time.
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(b) Maximum entitlement of each participant

(D

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each participant (including both exercised and
unexercised options) under the Scheme or any
other share option schemes adopted by the
Company in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the shares in issue unless otherwise approved
by shareholders of the Company.

Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in rule 1.01 of the Listing
Rules), would result in the shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and to be granted to such person in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of the grant:

(i)  representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
shares in issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares on date of grant in
excess of HK$5.0 million,

such grant of option shall be subject to prior
approval of the shareholders of the Company who
are not connected persons of the Company as
defined in the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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(c)

(d)

(e)

Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

Within ten years from the date on which an option is
granted or such shorter period as the Board or the
relevant committee thereof may specify.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised

At the time of granting an option, the Board or the
relevant committee thereof must specify the minimum
period(s) and/or achievement of performance targets, if
any, for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

Options may be exercised at any time after the minimum
periods of time held and/or achievement of performance
targets, if any, specified in the terms of grant at the time of
grant.

Amount payable upon acceptance of the
option

A consideration of HK$1 shall be paid upon the
acceptance of the option.

No option has been granted under the former share
option scheme and the Scheme since its adoption.
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() Basis of determining exercise price of the
option

The exercise price of the option shall be no less than the
higher of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be
a business day;

(i) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five Stock
Exchange business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and

(iii)  the nominal value of the shares of the Company on
the date of grant.

(9) Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on
20 September 2021 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Save as disclosed above, the Company had no outstanding
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights as at
31 March 2013 and there has been no issue or exercise of any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during
the year.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this annual report were:

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Managing Director)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager)

Dr. Lam Chat Yu

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson
Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Pak Joe

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter

Dr. Sun Tai Lun

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Dr. Lam Chat Yu, Mr. Tai Sai Ho and Mr. Wong
Sue Toa, Stewart shall retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election. All remaining directors continue in
office.

The term of office of each independent non-executive director
is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

5%

AKRARRAFERBERNFHRBPZESHT
T

EIERFVTES
ERMBEE

BITES

FHBEL (EFLHLE)
B STt ()
WEFBL

EUTEE
BRI
1R 5

BAFHATES
BRARE 524
B FEEt
BRmEL

RIBARR 2 HEERMBNFELIOMHAE - M
EFEL Bt ReE NEEBELEANREE
BB RBAFRELBESR EFTAE
®OBERXER AR NESHERT-

BRUFNTEFT LAY BRARRZABE
BRANEE REARFESESLE-

RGBT ZBRRBFAS LEBREIER
ZEE HEEAARSEEAHE ARG
PAR—FRERLNBEZBERT OEERE
BRON ATRAKER I 2 RBEH



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS £ &t =

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EEREIME
EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in note 12 to the  BBEEFME 2 F1BHINLG A P EHRKH
consolidated financial statements. For the year ended 31 HFl2 - HEZZ—=F=-A=1+—HULFE"
March 2013, the emoluments of the senior management, SRERECTM (HERTEHNATR (=
whose biographical details are set out in the “Biographical ERERERERE] EPRRERRE TR
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section of KK FI22ERHNAZERSFALTOTAN=
this annual report and include three of the five highest paid AANE)TIAATAER :

individuals analysis presented in note 12 to the consolidated

financial statements, fell within the following bands:

Number of

Individuals

2013

Emoluments of Senior Management by Bands A
EREEE2FHMAR —

HK$500,000 — HK$1,000,000 75 #500,0007T — 7 #1,000,0007T 3

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 751,000,001 7T — 7 #1,500,0007T 2

HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 75 #1,500,001 7T — & #2,000,0007T 4

HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 75 #2 000,001 7T — & #2,500,0007T 1
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Directors

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, aged 70, is the chairman and non-
executive director of the Company. He joined the Group in 1989
and has over 40 years of experience in property development.
He is the chairman and executive director of HKR International
Limited (“HKRI") (a controlling shareholder of the Company).
Mr. Cha is also a director of Asia Television Limited, an
independent non-executive director of New World Development
Company Limited (“NWDCL"), Eagle Asset Management (CP)
Limited (the Manager of Champion Real Estate Investment
Trust (“CREIT”)) and Hongkong International Theme Parks
Limited (owner and operator of Hong Kong Disneyland Resort),
and a director of a number of public and private companies
in Hong Kong and overseas. HKRI, NWDCL and CREIT are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Cha holds an honorary
doctorate degree of Social Science from City University of Hong
Kong. He is a Justice of the Peace. He is a brother of Mr.
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson and an uncle of Mr. Cha Yiu Chung,
Benjamin, both of whom are the non-executive directors and
the deemed substantial shareholders of the Company under
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”).
Mr. Cha is also a director of CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
(“CCM Trust"), a substantial shareholder of the Company under
Part XV of the SFO and the executive chairman and CEO of
Mingly Corporation (“Mingly”), a company under the control of
members of Cha Family.
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Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart, aged 67, is the managing director
of the Company and joined the Group in 1989. Before he joined
the Group, he was a director for several listed companies and a
director of HKRI (a company listed on the Stock Exchange and
a controlling shareholder of the Company) until his resignation
in December 2001. Mr. Wong is also a director of all the
subsidiaries of the Group. He has extensive experience in the
construction and real estate fields. Mr. Wong holds a bachelor
degree in science from San Diego State University and a master
degree of science in civil engineering from Carnegie-Mellon
University in the United States of America. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM).

Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson, aged 61, was appointed as
a non-executive director in November 2001. He is a non-
executive director of HKRI (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange and a controlling shareholder of the Company)
and a director of Mingly (a company under the control of
members of Cha Family). Mr. Cha is also an independent
non-executive director of Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited
and a non-executive director of China International Capital
Corporation Limited. Mr. Cha is active in many non-profit
making organizations including serving on the Counsel and
Finance Committee of The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
He is a brother of Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and an uncle
of Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin, both of whom are the non-
executive directors and the deemed substantial shareholders of
the Company under Part XV of the SFO.
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Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin, aged 39, is a non-executive
director and joined the Group in November 2001. He is an
executive director of HKRI (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange and a controlling shareholder of the Company)”.
He gained his experience in hotel and commercial real
estate development as a business development executive
with Mandarin Oriental Hotel Group from 1995 to 1999 and
has been an executive in various capacities with HKRI since
2002. Mr. Cha is a non-official member of the Harbourfront
Commission of HKSAR Government and had served as a non-
official member of the Business Facilitation Advisory Committee
of the HKSAR Government between 2009 and 2011. He holds
a bachelors degree in international politics and economics
from Middlebury College and a master degree in business
administration from the Stanford Graduate School of Business
in the United States of America. Mr. Cha is a nephew of Mr.
Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson, both
of whom are the non-executive directors and the deemed
substantial shareholders of the Company under Part XV of the
SFO.

Mr. Chan Pak Joe, aged 60, was appointed an independent
non-executive director of the Company in November 2001. He
has been an executive director of The Luk Hoi Tong Company
Limited for over 29 years. Mr. Chan is the founder of the “Li
Zhi Bursary” of Tsinghua University in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC"). He is also the Vice-Chairman of “Love Relay
Grant-in-Aid” of Fudan University in the PRC since September
2005. His community services include having served as a
director of YMCA and as a member of the Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee of the Hong Kong Housing
Saociety.

" According to the announcement dated 7 June 2013 published
by HKRI, Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin resigned as head of Asia
Pacific business unit with effect from 17 July 2013.
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Dr. Lam Chat Yu, aged 61, has been an executive director
of the Company since he joined the Group in November
2001. He has more than 20 years of investment experience
in the technology sector, including 15 years in Silicon Valley,
California, the United States of America and over 15 years
in Asia. Dr. Lam is also a non-executive director of Mingly (a
company under the control of members of Cha Family) and
an alternate director of Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited for
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson. Dr. Lam earned his doctorate in
management from The Sloan School, Massachusetts Institute
of Technology. Prior to joining the Group, Dr. Lam was a Vice
President at C.M. Capital Corporation in the United States of
America, where he specialised in software venture companies
and listed technology companies in the United States of
America.

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter, aged 54, was appointed an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2004. Dr. Lau is an Associate Professor of the
Department of Accountancy and Law of the Hong Kong
Baptist University and an Associate Dean and BBA Program
Director of the School of Business of the Hong Kong Baptist
University. He holds a bachelor degree in commerce from
Saint Mary’s University in Canada, a master degree in business
administration from Dalhousie University in Canada and a
doctorate degree of philosophy in accounting from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is a member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Ontario in Canada (CA), a member
of The Certified Management Accountants Society of British
Columbia and Yukon in Canada (CMA), a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (FCPA),
and an associate member of The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong (ATIHK). He was also a president (1992-1993) of the City
Lions Club of Hong Kong.
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Dr. Sun Tai Lun, aged 62, was appointed an independent non-
executive director of the Company in November 2001. He is
the chairman of China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings
Limited and an independent non-executive director of Dah
Sing Financial Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange. Dr. Sun has over 37 years of experience
in the photographic products industry. He holds a bachelor
degree in pharmacy from the University of Oklahoma, the
United States of America, and a doctorate degree of philosophy
in business administration from Southern California University
for Professional Studies, the United States of America. He is
the Vice Patron of the Community Chest of Hong Kong since
1999, the Court member of City University of Hong Kong, the
Honorary Fellow of City University of Hong Kong and Chapter
Honoree of City University of Hong Kong Chapter of Beta
Gamma Sigma. Dr. Sun also serves as the chairman of the
Advisory Committee on Travel Agents. Dr. Sun was awarded the
Bronze Bauhinia Star in 1999 and appointed as The Justice of
the Peace in 2002.

Mr. Tai Sai Ho, aged 62, is an executive director and the
general manager of the Group. Mr. Tai joined the Group in
1989 and has over 38 years of experience in public and private
sectors of the building and civil engineering industries in Hong
Kong. He is also a director of all the subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Tai holds a master degree in business administration from
Asia International Open University in Macau, a master degree in
construction management from University of New South Wales
in Australia and a bachelor degree in civil engineering from
National Cheng Kung University in Taiwan. Mr. Tai is a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors (FHKIoD) and the Hong
Kong Institute of Construction Managers (FHKICM).
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Senior Management

Mr. Au Yiu Man, aged 52, joined the Group in 1990. He is
a director of the interior and renovation division of the Group
and has 34 years of experience in the building industry in
Hong Kong. He holds a higher diploma in Civil Engineering
(Municipal) and Endorsement Certificate in Design of
Reinforced Concrete & Steel Structures from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.

Mr. Cheung Hok Chuen, aged 43, joined the Group in 1999.
He is a director of the building materials division of the Group
and has over 18 years of experience in the building industry
in Hong Kong. He holds a BSC in Surveying from Hong Kong
University.

Mr. Chow Ka Fung, Matthew, aged 44, joined the Group
in 1998. He is a director of certain divisions of the Group
and oversees the property development division, property
investment division as well as property agency and
management division. Mr. Chow specialises in property
development, investment, marketing, management and project
management in Hong Kong and the PRC for more than 21
years. He holds a bachelor degree in land management
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Chow is a
Registered Professional Surveyor (General Practice) under the
Surveyor Registration Board (RPS). He is also a member of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (MRICS), a member of
the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators (MCIArb) and a member of
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors (MHKIS).

Mr. Chuk Kin Lun, aged 62, joined the Group in 1989. He is a
director of the construction division, building materials division
and interior and renovation division of the Group. He has over
33 years of experience in planning, estimating, tendering and
quantity surveying in the public and private sectors of the
building and civil engineering industries in Hong Kong. Mr.
Chuk holds a bachelor degree in civil engineering and is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers
(MHKICM).
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Ms. Chung Lai Ling MaryAnne, aged 51, joined the Group
in 2006. She is a director of the health products division of
the Group and has over 26 years of experience in various
capacities in Hong Kong. She holds a BA in Mathematics for
Commerce from York University.

Mr. Ho Chi Tong, aged 48, joined the Group in 1998. He is a
director of the construction division, building materials division
and interior and renovation division of the Group. He has 26
years of experience in quantity surveying consultancy and
construction contracting. He holds a professional diploma in
quantity surveying from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a Registered Professional Surveyor (QS) under Surveyor
Registration Board (RPS) and a member of The Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors (MRICS) and Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors (MHKIS).

Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung, aged 47, joined the Group in 2007. He
is a director and the General Manager of the building materials
division of the Group and has over 27 years of experience in the
building industry in Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Lee held the position of the director of Million Hope Industries
Limited. Mr. Lee holds a higher diploma in mechanical
engineering.

Mr. Lo Kai Cheong, Casey, aged 62, joined the Group in 1996
and is the Company Secretary and the Financial Controller
of the Group. He is also a director of the building materials
division, interior and renovation division and property agency
and management division of the Group. He has over 29 years
of finance and accounting experience in various industries.
He holds a bachelor of business degree in accounting and a
master degree in business administration from Edith Cowan
University in Australia. Mr. Lo is a member of CPA Australia
(CPA (Aust.)) and a fellowship member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (FCPA) and Association of
International Accountants (FAIA).
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Mr. Lun Tim Ho, aged 54, joined the Group in 1990 and is a
director of the construction division and interior and renovation
division of the Group. Mr. Lun has 30 years of experience
in the construction field. He holds an associateship and a
higher diploma in the building technology and management
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member
of The Chartered Institute of Building (MCIOB), Hong Kong
Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM), Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors (MRICS), The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors (MHKIS), and The Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers — Building (MHKIE).

Mr. Yuen Cheuk Kong, aged 53, joined the Group in 1989.
He is a director of the construction division, building materials
division and interior and renovation division of the Group. He
has 31 years of experience in the public and private sectors
of the building and civil engineering industries in Hong
Kong. He holds a diploma in management studies, a post-
experience certificate in building studies and a higher certificate
in structural engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and a bachelor degree in construction management
and economics. He is also a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT EEZRp HEBRM RESFER
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING HiRAa
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2013, the interests of the directors and chief
executive in the shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) were as follows:

NZE—=F=A=+—H EFE&EaTK
BHAARRRZ R = miREE S R
BB EXVER 32K B ER AR Ti%aaﬂﬁlﬁ
IRBLEMAREFTETESFRHZIIFRE
Uﬁ SPRI ) ZBEE AR T KR Q%Z%
oy UNN

x#%>9$

>m

E‘\

Long position in shares of the Company RAQNBABRNMZIFE
Number of ordinary shares Total % of
EERBRAHE number of issued
ordinary share
Name Capacity Personal Corporate Other shares capital
interests interests interests SRR HEEBT
o] 5% AAER AR Hittg s ROBY KROEIE
Cha Mou Sing, Payson (1) Beneficial owner 735,712 620,264 118,620,077 119,976,053 22.37%
s EREBA note (a) note (b)
(2) Interest of controlled corporation Wizt (a) Bt (b)
S ¥t VN 5
(3) Beneficiary oi discretionary trusts
BERETRIXEA
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson Beneficiary of discretionary trusts - - 117,865,219 117,865,219 21.98%
B BBETIIEEA note (b)
BiiaE(b)
Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin  Beneficiary of discretionary trusts - - 115,666,069 115,666,069 21.57%
B BEETZIEEA note (b)
oE=a(0)
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (1) Beneficial owner 4,499,285 3,416,780 - 7,916,065 1.48%
Tz EREEA note (c)
(2) Interest of contralled corporation Mzt (c)
SRLT VNP 5
Tai Sai Ho Beneficial owner 456,018 - - 456,018 0.09%
AR EafEA
. 86 HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes: [

The shares are held by Accomplished Investments Ltd., in which
the relevant director is deemed to be interested by virtue of Part
XV of the SFO.

These shares are held under certain but not identical
discretionary trusts, of which Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, Mr.
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson and Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin are
among the members of the class of discretionary beneficiaries.

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart’s corporate interests in the Company
arise from the fact that he owns 50% of the share capital of
Executive Plaza Limited, which holds 3,416,780 shares of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company or their associates
held any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the
Model Code, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the

SFO.

(@) RIBEESHRAEEOIEXVEL  ZEFRHE—H
BEESWR AEA R 2 A F)Accomplished
Investments Ltd.#5 %5 o

(b) ZEBROBAETIRARBERASE 82
S BMEEERERPEES/ET TR
HiSERZBBEXEAENES ZKE -

() FHBEAEARARAZATIERLSEBME
BEOZETRIEMNESREGRARZE
2N EIVEE3,416,7800% B 1D ©

BREXFIREEN R_F—=F=A="1—
B BMEARREZRRESTBRABRERS

ZHBALT BARERE S MG RGIFEXVER
HARESTRIZBANE AN R A M B R Pk AR IR 78
7 NS GBI EXVER 35216 HE AR R AR
BREPMEFE 2 ELMAZARRRREE
LR (&R ESFMAEERMFEXVE)
MR - BB R EFEm IR R °

FRERIZ IR AR AR
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits
(including debentures) of the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the directors, or their spouses or children
under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such rights during the
year.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2013, in addition to those interests as disclosed
above in respect of the directors, the interests of the substantial
shareholders in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO were as
follows:

BERMBARAESZZH

Br EXFTREEIN RAFREMER A2
Bl S B AR AT I B 2 B 3 AR R EA e HE 2 AT
K77 NS ARRREFFBARRASAMEAM
AR (BRARES)BSH G MM EEFX
HEBIERM T N\R2FREBAREAR
NAES M F R BITREZIAERN -

TERRZEDR

RZE—=F=A=+—H BREXFFEEH
REZZEZIN FERERAR ARG &AE
R EERIEESF R EE GO EXVEE
3361 BRARRRIRIEZIGEH MFEZ &R
ez mT

Long position in shares of the Company RAQNBRBRNMZIFE
Number of % of issued
Name Capacity ordinary shares  share capital
BRITRAE
=8 5% EBERRE Batt
Great Wisdom Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 262,794,667 49.0%
(“Great Wisdom”) (note 1)
Great Wisdom Holdings Limited BEmEE A
(TGreat Wisdom |) (Fff5E1)
HKRI (note 1) (1) Beneficial owner 262,795,006 49.0%
BB (MIFELD ExnEAA
(2) Interest of controlled corporation
REH AR 2 S
CCM Trust (note 2) (1) Trustee 366,277,599 68.3%
ZFEA
CCM Trust (Ff15E2) (2) Interest of controlled corporation

R VNCIPA: i
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Notes:

Great Wisdom is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HKRI and
therefore HKRI is deemed to be interested in the 262,794,667
shares held by Great Wisdom in accordance with the SFO. Mr.
Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson and Mr.
Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin*, all being directors of the Company,
are also directors of HKRI.

These share interests comprise 103,482,593 shares directly
held by CCM Trust, 262,795,006 shares indirectly held through
HKRI. As CCM Trust controls more than one-third of the share
capital of HKRI (held as to approximately 41.48% by CCM
Trust), it is deemed to be interested in the respective share
interests of HKRI. CCM Trust is holding these shares as the
trustee of certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which
members of the Cha Family (comprising, inter alia, Mr. Cha
Mou Sing, Payson, Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson and Mr. Cha Yiu
Chung, Benjamin, all being the directors of the Company) are
among the discretionary objects. Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson is
also a director of CCM Trust.

Please refer to note” in relation to Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin
on page 80 of this annual report.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS £ &&=

GEE

Great Wisdom 3 BB EE 2 2 BB AT -
Ut IRIBEH RS GO BEEEERR AR
Great WisdomF#5 5 2 262,794,667 B f% 1
BEEZ ARRESEHELLE EREL
ERERBPRENABEBRENES -

ISR D ERBIERCCM TrustEE#FE 2
103,482 593/ A 17 + 262,795 ,0065% &1 % i
BBEERA 2D - ARCCM TrustiZ &
BHEEE 2 IR E =5 2 — (CCM TrustiF A 49
41.48% K )  BIER AR BB EEREE R
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

During the year, the interests of the directors of the Company
in businesses which compete or were likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the principal businesses of the
Group (the “Competing Business”) as required to be disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:

EERHFEHPZER

RAFER RAREFNEAREAREETER
BEEIHEEAERF A RERTME ([5
FUER ) MRE ETRANETRE Z M
EBTEE 2RI

Name of
Name of director = company Nature of interest Competing business
Exns NCIECE ] ERME REMER
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(FM$5EL) (B¥zE2)
Cha Mou Sing, HKRI Director of HKRI and a member of the (a) Property development and
Payson class of discretionary beneficiaries of investment
certain but not identical discretionary (b)  Property management,
trusts of which the trustees are deemed leasing and marketing
substantial shareholders of HKRI under services
Part XV of the SFO
BEHE EEHEE EAEEES RETIAANEETEZH (@ DEBRERA
BXmAERZKE MBREBEZFLE ) PEERE HER
BIRPIEXVEL 2 FEFEZEEARR T 35 1 B RS
NWDCL Independent non-executive director of (a) Property development and
NWDCL investment
(b)  Property management,
leasing and marketing
services
it R Nt R BIIENITES (@) PMEEREKRE
(b) MxEE -HER
T 35 HE & AR 75
CREIT Independent non-executive director of (a) Property investment

Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited,  (b)

the manager of CREIT

BEEXER BREEEETEE (BBE)BRAR(EEE ()
RERZEE) 2BIFNTES (b)

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

Property management,
leasing and marketing
services

MERE

MEEE HE M
T 15 1 B R 15



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE£ &%

EEEE
+ HEHE

Name of

Name of director company Nature of interest Competing business

Espns ACIEE ERME BEMER

(Note 1) (Note 2)

(BEEL) (Ky7E2)

Cha Mou Daid, HKRI Director of HKRI and a member of the (a) Property development and

Johnson class of discretionary beneficiaries of investment

certain but not identical discretionary (b)  Property management,
trusts of which the trustees are deemed leasing and marketing
substantial shareholders of HKRI under services
Part XV of the SFO

EHE EREE EREEEE NETTRAMNBEELEZE @) DMEBEREKRE
BXmAERNZKE MBEZILFRE () WEeER HER
SIRPIEXVES - ZFEFEZEFEARR TS B AR S
REBHEFERR

Cha Yiu Chung, HKRI Director of HKRI and a member of the (@) Property development and

Benjamin (Note 3) class of discretionary beneficiaries of investment

certain but not identical discretionary (b)  Property management,
trusts of which the trustees are deemed leasing and marketing
substantial shareholders of HKRI under services
Part XV of the SFO

BRH (FzE3) EiES EREXEF LETIAENGBEETEZH @ DERERLRE
BEEAERZKE MREESRE () YETE HER
BIRBIEXVER L EEFE 2 EEABER 3% 1 B RS

Notes: B EE

(1) Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson and (1) ETEELE EREEERERPLETIAR
Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin are non-executive directors of AIFERNITE S - Tﬁﬁlﬁ\/,\ﬁila &1
the Company, who are not involved in the daily management of Ttk llit A RRESIE B H E TG B A
the Group. Accordingly, the Company is capable of carrying its Fat ?IE%E‘“IEQ:FJ?E\'J,%%M
business independently of, and at arms length from the above

mentioned competing business.

REXBEBMER
B F‘Jﬁﬁﬁhéﬁ‘t{’ﬁﬂj

B R A

(2)  Such businesses may be made through subsidiaries, affiliated (2)
companies or by way of other forms of investments.

FL2RHN L FRFOEEHAE R EEN
MEE" ©

(3)  Please refer to note” in relation to Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin (3)
on page 80 of this annual report.

B EXFTIEEE SN SEEEMEM EARKE
EBERAEEARFUERARARTELZ
RS (RAREERIN) R ER -

Saved as disclosed above, none of the directors is interested
in any business apart from the Group’s businesses, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with businesses of the Group.

FRE AR AR AR
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group entered
into the following transactions which constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:

(1) Construction and Renovation Services
Framework Agreement

As HKRI, together with its wholly-owned subsidiary, holds
approximately 49% of the issued share capital of the
Company, and is, therefore, a substantial shareholder of
the Company and a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules, the various construction
transactions (“Construction Transactions”) and renovation
transactions (“Renovation Transactions”) entered into
or to be entered into between HKRI and its subsidiaries
on the one hand and the members of the Group on the
other hand constitute continuing connected transactions
(“Continuing Connected Transactions with HKRI”) for the
purposes of the Listing Rules.

On 20 January 2010, HKRI and the Company entered
into the Construction and Renovation Services
Framework Agreement (“Agreement”) to govern the
outline terms upon which HKRI and its subsidiaries and
members of the Group propose to engage in the various
Construction Transactions and Renovation Transactions
during the three years ending 31 March 2013. A joint
announcement was published on 20 January 2010
regarding the Continuing Connected Transactions with
HKRI in accordance with the Listing Rules.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The Agreement, its terms, the transactions contemplated
thereunder and the annual caps (“Cap”) on the total value
of the Continuing Connected Transactions with HKRI
were approved by an ordinary resolution passed at an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 22
March 2010.

The Cap expired on 31 March 2013. Therefore, on 20
December 2012, HKRI and the Company entered into a
new Construction and Renovation Services Framework
Agreement (“New Agreement”) for the same purpose
for the three years ending 31 March 2016. The New
Agreement, its terms, the transactions contemplated
thereunder and the new annual caps (“New Cap”) on the
total value of the Continuing Connected Transactions with
HKRI were approved by an ordinary resolution passed at
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
1 February 2013. A joint announcement was published
on 20 December 2012 regarding the Continuing
Connected Transactions with HKRI in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

The Cap and the total income recognised by the Group
in respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions
with HKRI for the year ended 31 March 2013 are stated
below:
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thag  BARR HIETRETZR S R
HABREZSBREXFHRBZFE
ER(TERDBEARAR -T—FF
ZAZ T HEERENARE LA ER
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ERR=ZE—=%=A=+—HEm-
Bt - RZE——F+_RA=+8 &FE
BERANFAARBNIVEE=Z
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EREEREERGZ ([FipE]) - &
EBEENFERER S 2 BENTH
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RRIAERSRB EHEEBEERFE
BEXSIHBANEEERRBR EMMRAR
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A EREAEEERE K 2 HERE
RPEWmIT

Income
Recognised by
the Group for
the Year Ended
31 March 2013

BE-ZE—=F

=B=+—H

Type of Transaction Cap LEFER
X585 ER AEEERZKREHE
HK$ HK$

ke ks

Construction Transactions EERZ S 400,000,000 141,757,000
Renovation Transactions KBRS 50,000,000 892,000
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(2) Project Management Service Agreements

On 2 April 2012, Cross-border Project Management
Service Agreements, Non-PRC Project Management
Service Agreements and Site Supervision Agreements
(the “Agreements”) were entered into between Hanison
Project Management Limited (“HPML”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and the Haining Project
Companies (note A) pursuant to which HPML will provide
project management services in both Hong Kong and
the PRC and site supervision services in the PRC to
the Haining Project Companies (“Project Management
Services and Site Supervision Services”).

The Haining Project Companies are indirect subsidiaries
of CCM Trust and on 30 June 2011, the Company has
completed the acquisition to acquire 49% interest in
Haining Jiafeng Real Estate Development Limited through
acquiring the entire share capital of Wisdom Mount
Investments Limited (note B). CCM Trust (as the trustee
of certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which
members of the Cha Family, comprising, inter alia, Mr.
Cha Mou Sing, Payson, Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson and
Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin, all being the directors of
the Company, are among the discretionary objects) is a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, the
Haining Project Companies are connected persons of
the Company and the provision of Project Management
Services and Site Supervision Services constitutes
continuing connected transactions for the purpose of the
Listing Rules.
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The transactions for the provision of Project Management
Services and Site Supervision Services are only subject
to announcement and reporting requirements and no
independent shareholders’ approval of the Company is
required under the Listing Rules. The Agreements, its
terms, the transactions contemplated thereunder and the
annual cap (“Cap”) on the total value of the continuing
connected transactions (“Continuing Connected
Transactions with Haining Project Companies”) were
approved by the board of directors and an announcement
in relation thereto was made on 2 April 2012.

The Cap and the total income recognised by the Group
in respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions with
Haining Project Companies for the year ended 31 March
2013 are stated below:

REEEEERBIIBEBRE 2R
SEEBTFTETRANAERBRAT
WA EES ARG B ARE 2 HE - %%
AR HER HBEBTRET IS RIF
BRAERS (HBEIEE AR ZIFEA
ER| BB FELR (LR BE
Bl HENAEHBR T ——F
/mA—HFIE-

RBE_ZT—=F=A=+—HILFE
N FREAEEEEEIER AR ZFFE
BERZEKEINT

Income
Recognised

by the Group for
the Year Ended
31 March 2013

BE-Z—=F

=A=+—H

Type of Transaction Cap LEELKXEH

REEH FR mR 2z

HK$ HK$

B S

Project Management Services EHEEERBEZS 4,913,000 3,815,000
Transactions

Site Supervision Services Transactions I EE RERX 5 4,144,000 2,801,000
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the
directors engaged the auditor of the Company to perform
certain work on continuing connected transactions of
the Group in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has provided a letter to the directors of the Company and
confirmed that, for the year ended 31 March 2013, the
above continuing connected transactions:

(a) had received the approval of the directors of the
Company;

(b) had been, in all material aspects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group for
transactions involving the provision of services by
the Group;

(c) had been entered into, in all material aspects,
in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreements governing such transactions;

(d) had not exceeded the relevant annual cap amounts
for the financial year ended 31 March 2013.

The independent non-executive directors reviewed the
continuing connected transactions described in (1)
and (2) above (collectively the “Continuing Connected
Transactions”) and confirmed that the transactions had
been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to (or
from) independent third parties; and
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(iii) in accordance with the agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Note:

A.  Haining Project Companies refer to /8% & &% = b &
AR A A (Translation: Haining Fusheng Real Estate
Development Limited) and B ERZZEESR A A
(Translation: Haining Jiafeng Real Estate Development
Limited).

B. BEZEHREHESGMRADT is an indirect subsidiary of
CCM Trust. BEZZLREMEHFR QA is an indirect
subsidiary of CCM Trust and a jointly controlled entity of
the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contact for undertaking the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of any business of the
company was entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for about 54% of the turnover of the Group and
the largest customer is an independent third party, accounted
for about 21% of the turnover of the Group. Save as disclosed
above, none of the directors, their respective associates, or
any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has any
interest in any of the five largest customers of the Group for the
financial year ended 31 March 2013.

The five largest suppliers of the Group in aggregate accounted
for about 15% of the total purchases of the Group for the year.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group strictly complies with the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in making
mandatory contributions for its staff. Details of charges relating
to the retirement benefit schemes are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Sue Toa, Stewart
Managing Director
25 June 2013

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF
HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 102 to 230, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2013, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

B 2B A RS

FHanison Construction Holdings Limited
(EBRIZERERAR)ZHERE
(REESHEFMA T BERALA])

K 1% 8B B 5E AKX 2 #Z Hanison Construction
Holdings Limited (L B5AIZ =R B R A F))
(IERRD RENBAR (KB E5E])#H
REL102E 2308 Z4r & B HE - BERZE
—=F=ZA=+—H2HFEMBEHRRE 8=
ZALFEZRARER HEEZERER
REEREHRRGEEFSRIR URETE
FETBORBIZ REMHRAER -
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o2 EBH R SRR REREED G0
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¥ATZRB DRABEERARUGAH
BREAUE 2 ABPREES  ER A
BETFEMNRFRERMER L EAR
SR -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT & 37 #% & b ¥ &5

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Group’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Y& 7 #Z & Bl i &

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March
2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 June 2013
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[] CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

. n/\IZlJ‘l& i‘%

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z-—=—F=-A=+—HILLEE

2013 2012
—E—= —E——fF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 BET T P IT

Turnover o 7 1,554,479 1,234,656
Cost of sales $HE AR (1,290,467) (1,070,562)
Gross profit EH 264,012 164,094
Other income HE bz A 9 5,435 4,721
Marketing and distribution costs MiGHEERDHER (44,281) (24,695)
Administrative expenses TR (121,982) (99,302)
Gain on change in fair value of REMFEZ AT EZESH 2

investment properties Wz 104,489 72,195
Gain (loss) on change in fair value of HEE B 2R E 2 AVAE

investments held for trading ) W (BE) 89 (51)
Loss on change in fair value of MEVBIAREZAFE

derivative financial instruments BE) o EE (427) (2,100)
Share of profit of an associate baN el =N b 839 1,467
Share of (loss) profit of jointly D FEEIESIE

controlled entities (E18) m Al (546) 25,130
Finance costs 5 E A 10 (5,731) (5,382)
Profit before taxation B 351 Al g A 11 201,897 136,077
Taxation MIAX 13 (16,711) (7,910)
Profit for the year REE A 185,186 128,167
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: T~ 1] A = & {5 78 4F & 34 Fll

(BE)
Owners of the Company PIN/NEIE R =N 188,265 128,167
Non-controlling interest FEIE IR 2 (3,079) =
185,186 128,167
(Restated)
(geE7)

Earnings per share — basic (HK cents) &A% 22 F| — & A (781l) 15 35.1 23.9

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COI\/IPREHENSIVE INCOME

/\‘/\ =) Eﬁj‘l&

1R

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_ZT—=F=A=1+—RHILFE

2013 2012
—E—-=5F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit for the year REE i A 185,186 128,167
Other comprehensive income Hi2EEA
Exchange differences arising on MEBIINEREECELEZTE
translation of foreign operations 1,810 3,461
Total comprehensive income AEZE2HEWAEE
for the year 186,996 131,628
Total comprehensive income Tﬁ'J/\iJETE$$r£EH5U\
(expense) for the year ()%
attributable to:
Owners of the Company VINNETEZ =N 190,075 131,628
Non-controlling interest FEIE IR HE 2 (3,079) -
186,996 131,628

FEAZER AR A A

2012/2013 F R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

;\/\IZI ,\ﬁ ﬂk/ﬂ%
At 31 March 2013

RZZE—=F=R=+—H

31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-=5F —T——4F
=A=+—-H | = A=+—H
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 BET T ST IT
Non-current assets EMEBNEE
Investment properties L= C7/ES 16 747,090 415,910
Property, plant and equipment VI - B R 17 108,341 82,036
Prepaid lease payments AR ERIE 18 7,024 6,740
Interest in an associate w%/& 52 % 19 21,238 20,399
Interests in jointly controlled entities 2L [E12 %I E 58~ #E2s 20 129,592 138,680
Pledged bank deposits Eﬁ#ﬁfﬁfﬂ_w\ 30 24,401 -
Deferred tax assets BEETIREEE 34 848 784
1,038,534 664,549
Current assets MBNEE
Properties under development BERPCFEME
for sale 21 815,553 626,500
Properties held for sale FIEGREWE 31,886 167,306
Inventories FE 22 31,412 31,514
Amounts receivable on FEY A #) TIERIE
contract work 23 122,017 169,092
Progress payments receivable JE WU 2 3RIR 24 76,522 108,540
Retention money receivable e R E & 25 114,691 119,506
Debtors, deposits and prepayments  FEURFIA « 74 &
?’EJ—JL/%\IE\ 26 42,412 206,327
Prepaid lease payments FENHEER 18 218 215
Amount due from a jointly JrE Uk £ B 42 %llgﬁfi’f(
controlled entity 27 449 246
Amount due from an associate JrE U Bt 2 A B 5K IR 27 1,921 2,300
Investments held for trading BEBE RS 28 372 283
Taxation recoverable AR B A I8 1,753 382
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBITA 29 277 213
Bank balances and cash RTTEBEIRS 30 293,338 184,924
1,532,821 1,617,348
Assets classified as held for sale DEAEFELEEE 31 8,500 =
1,541,321 1,617,348
Current liabilities nEaE
Amounts payable on contract work ~ FE{S & #) T2 KT 23 68,566 77,576
Trade and other payables JEASF FRIE &ﬁﬁfgﬁmlﬁ 32 379,401 388,138
Taxation payable FESFRIR 20,832 7,395
Derivative financial instruments PTESMBTA 29 - 2,619
Bank loans — amounts due RITER——FR
within one year &S 3R I8 33 810,700 734,300
1,279,499 1,210,028

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #:&

ISR R

At 31 March 2013

RZZE—=F=A=+—8

31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-=5F —=E——4F
=ZA=+-8 | =ZA=+—H
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
M5 BET T BT T
Net current assets mEEEFE 261,822 407,320
Total assets less current liabilities REERNBAEG 1,300,356 1,071,869
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Other long-term payable H i = B FE ST 508 37 14,253 14,253
Amount due to a non-controlling 1S SR AR AR 2R 5 IE
shareholder 38 63,600
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIBEE 34 6,118 6,286
83,971 20,539
1,216,385 1,051,330
Capital and reserves B K
Share capital [N 35 53,632 48,756
Reserves 1S 1,165,832 1,002,574
Equity attributable to owners of RArER AEGREZ
the Company 1,219,464 1,051,330
Non-controlling interest FEPE AR R 2 (3,079) -
1,216,385 1,051,330

The consolidated financial statements on pages 102 to 230 F102B £ FE2308 FT%ll 2 brE A TSR - 48 E
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of FEE@W T —=F/NxA 1+ 7 HZENKE
directors on 25 June 2013 and are signed on its behalf by: B WH NIESREKEE

Wong Sue Toa, Stewart Tai Sai Ho
FitE it
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EFE EE

FRERIZ IR AR AR
2012/2013 F R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

PNy
AN = T’Eﬁﬁx@]%

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_T—=F=A=+—HIFE

Share  Contributed Special
capital surplus reserve
Ra  HARR  RHER
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
BT EETn BBt

Property Non-
revaluation  Translation Goodwill  Accumulated controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve profits Total interest equity
NRERRE  RERRE  BEEE  RehEA B FERER  BRAE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

AETT  E¥Tn A%t Mt ERTn Mt BETR

(Note 36) (Note 36) (Note)
(Wa36) (Ko (W=
At 1 April 2011 W=2——%NA-A 48,756 13,645 21,941 982 1,420 (78) 853514 940,180 - 940,180
Profit for the year KEERF = = - - - - 128,167 128,167 - 128,167
Exchange differences arising on BERINFBEEL
translation of foreign operations ERER - - - - 3461 - - 3461 = 3461
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEE2ERALE - - - - 3461 - 128167 131,628 - 131628
Dividends paid Bh ke = = - - - S Q0478 (20478) - (0478)
At 31 March 2012 W=E-—%#=ZA=+-A 48,756 13,645 21,941 982 4,381 (78) 961,203 1,051,330 - 1,051,330
Profit (loss) for the year AEERT (BE) - - - - - - 188265 188,265 (30790 185,186
Exchange differences arising on REIRBEEL
translation of foreign operations ERzS - - - - 1,810 - - 1,810 = 1810
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEE2ERALE - - - - 1,810 - 188265 190,075 (3079) 18699
Bonus shares issued BETAK 4876 (4.876) - - - - - - - -
Dividends paid BRZBRE - - - - - - (2194)  (21941) - (21,941)
At 31 March 2013 R-ZE—=£=fA=1+-H 53,632 8,769 21,941 982 6,691 (78) 1,127,527 1,219,464 (3079) 1,216,385
Note: On 1 November 2012, the Group entered into a sale and Wax: RZTE——F+—A—HB A£EEFVE

purchase agreement to dispose of the 40% issued share capital
of Superior Choice Holdings Limited (“Superior Choice”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, to Sky Champion
International Limited (“Sky Champion”), an indirectly wholly
owned subsidiary of Mingly Corporation, for a consideration of
US$4, representing the relevant carrying value attributable to
the 40% equity interest of Superior Choice at that time. Mingly
Corporation is ultimately controlled by a substantial shareholder
of the Company. No gain or loss was resulted from the disposal.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
,\\, < Iﬁ 72 //|L@] 2%

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_ZT—=F=A=1+—RHILFE

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E-CF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BET T ST T
Cash flows from operating activities REEBEXEB 2RSSR
Profit before taxation B 151 Bl Vg A 201,897 136,077
Adjustments for: FHEE
Share of profit of an associate SaK[SE: AN bg (839) (1,467)
Share of loss (profit) of jointly DG EIEFF
controlled entities 518 () 546 (25,130)
Dividend income A& B A 9) 9)
Interest income FLEUA (635) (45)
Interest expense MBS 5,731 5,382
Depreciation of property, WE BEREHBIITE
plant and equipment 6,704 5,492
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEMHE WER&REZ
plant and equipment (Uz) BB (57) 218
Gain on change in fair value of REMKX 2 A VA
investment properties ) o W (104,489) (72,195)
Loss on change in fair value of PTEMB IR AFE
derivative financial instruments H) 2 E1E 427 2,100
(Gain) loss on change in fair value of %T’EE BZREZRFE
investments held for trading = # )2 () EE (89) 51
Reversal of impairment loss on property,  HEWE BERFZREZ
plant and equipment Es 1RO (2,309) -
Reversal of impairment loss on prepaid FENEE A2 EEEE
lease payments (412) -
Impairment loss recognised 2R E W IB R E R B
on trade debtors 3,000 -
Operating cash flows before movements 2B &4 E BRI L ER LA
in working capital 109,466 50,474
Decrease in inventories FERL 102 2,016
Increase in properties under BRERPZFEMEZ2EZM
development for sale (53,633) (18,303)
Decrease in amounts receivable EUE 4 TR FRIERE A
on contract work 52,617 13,864
Decrease (increase) in progress JE W T SR IR R > (3 0)
payments receivable 32,018 (90,848)
Decrease (increase) in retention FEUIR B £ R 4> (38 40)
money receivable 4,815 (14,332)
Decrease (increase) in debtors, JEUR FRIE - Tﬁ/i\&
deposits and prepayments fiﬁﬁmﬁﬂl > (#8h0) 159,665 (149,079)
Decrease in amounts payable & H TR/
on contract work (9,010) (49,475)
(Decrease) increase in trade and JE A< SR T8 K2 B A JE A< R IE
other payables R A ) 20 (8,737) 147,874
(Decrease) increase in derivative PTEMB TRz (B4 )Em
financial instruments (3,110) 306
Cash from (used in) operating activities KE (AR)EEBEEB 2R 284,193 (107,503)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENBEFER (4,877) (4,029)
Interest paid ERHE (5,731) (5,382)
Net cash from (used in) operating activities 28 (AR ) LB¥ KBRS 558 273,585 (116,914)

FRERIZ IR AR AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #F& IR e R8I &

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_Z—=F=-A=+—RHLFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —T—fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cash flows from investing activities REBREXEB 2RSSR
Interest received 2 F S 635 45
Dividend received from investments Eﬂﬁlh{’ﬁﬂj%? BB
held for trading 9 9
Dividend received from jointly B HEEH BB E
controlled entities - 70,000
Purchase of investment properties RNBEIREYE (335,209) (205)
Purchase of property, RNEWME BB RFME
plant and equipment (5,889) (2,706)
Acquisition of a jointly controlled entity W i 2[R 42 %U%ﬁg - (97,188)
Proceeds from disposal of investment Hj’%?xé%%ﬁﬁ SIE
properties 70,308 14,800
Proceeds from disposal of property, Hj’i%% 5 K&
plant and equipment A PSSR I8 68 109
Deposit received for disposal of EH&ZHj%?xé%%ET@
investment properties 1,250 -
Repayment from (advance to) BR(ER) THERA
an associate 379 (2,300)
(Advance to) repayment from HAEHERE 2 (B ER
a jointly controlled entity (203) 593
Capital distributions from HEZEHEEDIRER
jointly controlled entities 10,000 -
Placement of pledged bank deposits FRERBRITHER (24,401) -
Net cash used in investing activities RSB 2B & 55 (283,053) (16,843)
Cash flows from financing activities KEBMBEXB 2R
Dividends paid R EE AR 2 (21,941) (20,478)
Repayment of bank loans EEBIRITER (110,600) (110,289)
New bank loans raised FERITE R 187,000 234,000
Advance from a non-controlling FEFERR AR R B R
shareholder 63,600 -
Net cash from financing activities REMEXEBR 2R /T 118,059 103,233
Net increase (decrease) in cash and ReRRSEBEEMORD) F5E
cash equivalents 108,591 (30,524)
Cash and cash equivalents FUHReEREEE
at the beginning of the year 184,924 215,913
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREE o 177) (465)
Cash and cash equivalents FREASERESEE
at the end of the year,
representing bank balances and cash RERITEBRRS 293,338 184,924

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under the
Companies Law (2001 Second Revision), Chapter 22
of the Laws of Cayman Islands. Its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company and
the principal activities of its subsidiaries are building
construction, interior and renovation works, supply and
installation of building materials, sale of health products,
property investment, property development and property
agency and management.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised standards and interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA").

iRe BTSRRI AT
For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=F=-A=+—HILFE

—REIR

ARBREFASEHEZIE_T_ERQ
AER(ZEE-—FF _BITR)  ERES
HEEMAZ A HE#REERAGF
HEMWREBBBARZAMARXR ([H
KA LM ARBZEMPER KT
REFMA 2 MU FN A F RO QA

e MBmRABEZY] BETARLRR
ZHREE-

AR B —FRERBR AR - EHEA
AZEBXRBRETRE KO NEE
T HEETREENH BREERE
7 MERE MFEERIMFERER
e

g
=

R REIERI 2 FEMH
o 2 A

RAEE AEEERATHEES:
A S M 2 B RIS ST 2 R R R
e
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to Financial instruments:
HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of
financial assets

Amendments to HKAS 12 titled “Deferred tax: Recovery
of underlying assets” which is mandatorily effective for the
current year has been applied by the Group in advance in
the financial year ended 31 March 2012.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective.

Amendments to Annual improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 cyclet

Amendments to Disclosures — Offsetting financial
HKFRS 7 assets and financial liabilities!

Amendments to Mandatory effective date of
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 9 and transition
HKFRS 7 disclosures®

Amendments to Consolidated financial

HKFRS 10, statements, joint arrangements
HKFRS 11 and and disclosure of interests
HKFRS 12 in other entities: Transition

guidance!
Amendments to Investment entities®
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B #3R K MfaT
For the year ended 31 March 2013
BE_Z—=F=-A=+—HLEE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments®

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial
statements!

HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements!

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other
entities!

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement!

HKAS 19 (as revised Employee benefits!
in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised ~ Separate financial statements!
in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised  Investments in associates and

in 2011) joint ventures!
Amendments to Presentation of items of other
HKAS 1 comprehensive income*
Amendments to Offsetting financial assets and
HKAS 32 financial liabilities?

HK(IFRIC) — INT 20  Stripping costs in the production
phase of a surface mine!

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013.

z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015.

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=F=-A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures was issued, including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11,
HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and HKAS 28
(as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described
below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated
and separate financial statements” that deal with
consolidated financial statements and HK(SIC) — INT
12 “Consolidation — Special purpose entities” will be
withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 10. Under
HKFRS 10, there is only one basis for consolidation that is
control. In addition, HKFRS 10 includes a new definition
of control that contains three elements: (a) power over an
investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and (c) the ability to use
its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor's returns. Extensive guidance has been added in
HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures (Continued)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in joint
ventures”. HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement
of which two or more parties have joint control should be
classified. HK(SIC) — INT 13 “Jointly controlled entities
— Non-monetary contributions by venturers” will be
withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 11. Under
HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified as joint
operations or joint ventures, depending on the rights
and obligations of the parties to the arrangements. In
contrast, under HKAS 31, there are three types of joint
arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled
assets and jointly controlled operations. In addition, joint
ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be accounted
for using the equity method of accounting, whereas jointly
controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted for
using the equity method of accounting or proportionate
consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated
structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those
in the current standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional
guidance on the application of these five HKFRSs for the
first time.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

B

ECE-ZHF=ZA=+—-HItFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that these five
standards will be adopted in the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning 1
April 2013. The directors of the Company have assessed
the control in respect of its subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entities and an associate under the new definition in the
new and revised HKFRSs. The directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of these five standards will
not have material impact on amounts in connection to
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and an associate
of the Company currently reported in the consolidated
financial statements. The application of HKFRS 12 will
result in more extensive disclosure in the consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements. The standard defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and
requires disclosures about fair value measurements.
The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both
financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair
value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except in specified circumstances. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are
more extensive than those in the current standards. For
example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures based
on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently required
for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7 “Financial
instruments: Disclosures” will be extended by HKFRS 13
to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”
(Continued)

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS
13 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning 1 April
2013 and that the application of the new standard may
affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements and result in more extensive disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of
items of other comprehensive income”

The amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income” introduce new terminology
for the statement of comprehensive income and income
statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a
“statement of comprehensive income” is renamed as
a “statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income” and an “income statement” is renamed as a
“statement of profit or loss”. The amendments to HKAS
1 retain the option to present profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in either a single statement or
in two separate but consecutive statements. However,
the amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other
comprehensive income to be grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are
met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive income
is required to be allocated on the same basis — the
amendments do not change the option to present items
of other comprehensive income either before tax or net of
tax.

BB mR M
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=+—HILLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of
items of other comprehensive income”
(Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The
presentation of items of other comprehensive income
will be modified accordingly when the amendments are
applied in future accounting periods.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
investment properties and certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the effective date
of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with those used by other members of the
Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interest in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to
non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interest even if this results in the non-
controlling interest having a deficit balance.

3.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

B
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continuea)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

e  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations” are measured in accordance with that
Standard.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
standard.

3.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance
with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets”, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from construction contracts, interior and
renovation contracts and building materials installation
contracts is recognised using the percentage of
completion method by reference to the value of work
carried out during the year as determined by quantitative
surveyors’ reports.

Revenue from sale of properties is recognised when the
respective properties have been completed and delivered
to the buyers.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ##=&

For the year ended 31 March 2013

B

ECE-ZHF=ZA=+—-HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or loss
for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
item is derecognised.

Transfer from investment property to owner-
occupied property

An investment property is transferred to property,
plant and equipment when it is evidenced by the
commencement of owner-occupation. The fair value,
at the date of transfer, which is the deemed cost of the
property for subsequent accounting is in accordance with
HKAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment”. The property
interest held under an operating lease which is previously
classified as investment property under the fair value
model is continued to account for as a finance lease after
the transfer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and
buildings held for own use are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in

profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B #3R K MfaT

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis except for those that are classified
and accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and buildings
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a
finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments represent the up-front payments
to lease medium-term leasehold land interests in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets
of the associate, less any identified impairment loss.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Investments in associates (Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after assessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group's investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Joint ventures

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which venturers have joint control
over the economic activity of the entity are referred to as
jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of jointly controlled entity used
for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, investments in jointly controlled
entities are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the
jointly controlled entities, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly
controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that
jointly controlled entity (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ##=&

For the year ended 31 March 2013

B

ECE-=ZHF=A=+—-HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Joint ventures (Continued)

Jointly controlled entities (Continueq)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in a jointly
controlled entity. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled
entity, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the jointly controlled entity are recognised in the
Group’ consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the jointly controlled entity that are
not related to the Group.

Inventories

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are carried at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes
land cost, development costs and directly attributable
costs including, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting

policy.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE_Z-—=F=A=+—-HILHFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FTEEFHR &

(Continued)

Inventories (Continued) F& (&)

Properties held for sale BESEME

Properties held for sale are completed properties and are RIEGSEMETEXMELSIEREE
classified under current assets. They are stated at the EoHRKAERAIZRFERE CRIE
lower of cost and net realisable value. EHYBR e

Others Hith

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net FEERRKAERAZRFEME 2RIE
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted BYIER AT IR INBE AT E

average method.

Non-current assets held for sale BEHEZERBEE

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their WEEETXERAEER S MIERA
carrying amount will be recovered principally through SFEFAmMKE - AFERBEEES DR

a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. FHELE - Z1IE 1¢1§ﬁ/\ﬁ’§ﬂ”ﬁ7ﬁuL%
This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is NIERBEEN R TR LSRG
highly probable and the non-current asset is available EHE - EREXNAHHEELAR ™
for immediate sale in its present condition. Management HEEHETRDEABRT —FRE
must be committed to the sale, which should be expected BERERABE TR HE-

to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one
year from the date of classification.

Investment properties classified as held for sale is DBEARELRE ZREMEDNRATFE
measured at fair value. & o
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

B

ECE-ZHF=ZA=+—-HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Construction, interior and renovation and
installation of building materials contracts
Where the outcome of a construction, interior and
renovation or installation of building materials contract
can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of
the contract activity at the end of the reporting period,
as measured by surveys of work performed. Variations
in contract work, claims and incentive payments are
included to the extent that the amount can be measured
reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction, interior and
renovation or installation of building materials contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that
it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is shown as amounts receivable on contract
work. For contracts where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as amounts
payable on contract work. Amounts received before the
related work is performed are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position, as a liability, as advances
received. Amounts billed for work performed but not yet
paid by the customer are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under progress payments
receivable or debtors.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of
the two categories, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

3.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=F=-A=+—HILLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEFHRK #)

(Continueqd)

Financial instruments (Continuea)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL are financial assets
held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continuea)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continueq)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, and
changes in fair values arising from remeasurement are
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including progress
payments receivable, retention money receivable, debtors,
refundable deposits, amount due from a jointly controlled
entity, amount due from an associate, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Loans and
receivables are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the loans and
receivables, the estimated future cash flows of the loans
and receivables have been affected.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=+—HILLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEFHR #)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) M#EIE (&)

Financial assets (Continued) MBEEE (#)

Impairment of financial assets (Continuea) HBEESHE (&)

Objective evidence of impairment could include: RENE B AR BE:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or e BITANEHAOFTEBEERYHKR
counterparty; or e

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency o EHX MRESHEXRF B XA
in interest or principal payments; or =Ek

e it becomes probable that the borrower will enter e ERARUEKEEWEXMKE
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or 48 9%,

e  disappearance of an active market for that financial e HAVMBR#MEZBRENKEEK
asset because of financial difficulties. KGR M%S -

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade ETHBEEER (W0 EKEKIE) M

receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired 5 WA AW IEERREMNEE Bl

individually are, then, assessed for impairment on a SR EE N (EE - ENEE A MR E

collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a BEDRRAEEEASEN BT NG

portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past 8%~ HBE BB TR IR AR E B 5

experience of collecting payments, an increase in the B30 - BREUERR ﬂiﬁﬂféfﬁﬁfﬁﬁ’\]il

number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the S AN HbL A B IR 50 9 T R R B

average credit period, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when EAREEREREEDRE LNEE
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, EREEEEZRERFEFIRTEELMD
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s STARBREERERECHNERETE
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated eREaPERMERE-

future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continuea)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continuead)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade debtors, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade debtor
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to the profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
(ZE_FT—=F=A=+—BLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Financial instruments (Continuea)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continuead)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fee paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities excluding derivative financial
instruments

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
other long-term payable, amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder and bank loans are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continuea)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continuead)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

B

ECE-ZHF=ZA=+—-HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment loss on assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indicator exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment loss on assets other than
goodwill Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but to the extent
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

B
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in jointly
controlled entities, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting periods.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets for investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model in accordance
with HKAS 40 “Investment property”, such properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale. Such a
presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model of
the Group whose business objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the current and deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

B
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors of the Company
have reviewed the investment property portfolio of Group’s
subsidiaries and concluded that none of the investment
properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, the directors of the
Company have determined that the “sale” presumption
set out in the amendments to HKAS 12 is not rebutted.
As a result, the Group has not recognised any deferred
taxes on changes in fair value of investment properties as
the Group is not expected to have tax consequence on
disposal of those investment properties.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deductible from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefits cost

Payments to the Group’s defined contribution retirement
benefits schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are charged as an expense when employees
have rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=+—HILLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of preparing the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the year, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interest as appropriate).

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make the following estimates
that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. The key
assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (cContinued)

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 March 2013 at their
fair value of HK$747,090,000 (2012: HK$415,910,000)
(Note 16). The fair value was based on valuation of
these properties conducted by independent firms of
professional valuers using property valuation techniques
which involve certain assumptions of market conditions.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties and corresponding adjustments to
the amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated
income statement.

Construction contracts

Revenue from construction contract is recognised under
the percentage of completion method which requires
estimation made by the management. Anticipated losses
are fully provided on contracts when identified. The
management estimates the contract costs and foreseeable
losses of construction based on the budgets prepared
for the contracts. Because of the nature of the activities
undertaken in construction businesses, the management
reviews and revises the estimates of contract costs in
the budget prepared for each contract as the contract
progresses. Where the contract revenue is less than
expected or actual contract costs are more than expected,
additional losses may need to be recognised. As at 31
March 2013, the carrying amounts of amounts receivable
on contract work and amounts payable on contract
work are HK$122,017,000 and HK$68,566,000 (2012:
HK$169,092,000 and HK$77,576,000) respectively.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (cContinued)

Estimated impairment of trade debtors

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss
for trade debtors, the Group takes into consideration
its estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the
impairment loss for trade debtors is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at
31 March 2013, the carrying amount of trade debtors
is HK$19,593,000 (2012: HK$159,844,000), net of
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$5,649,000 (2012:
HK$2,649,000) disclosed in note 26.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes bank loans disclosed in note 33, net of
cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and accumulated profit.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4%

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of

the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital

share issues, as well as the issue of new debt and the
redemption of existing debt.

*AAH—J-Z__LBT
%'Jéﬁ*ﬁﬁ%ﬂ’\]ﬂ

BB wERM

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=F=-A=+—HILFE

ExEREE 2

ZAUN T%%Eﬁ;ﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁi\§$ T% (=18
o BENEBEENEZ A
SEEBIREBE KBTI ARET
MEGEERNRAEGFEAREEEER

structure through the payment of dividends and new 281 -

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. MBEIAR
Categories of financial instruments B ITRER
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-=5F —T——F
=A=+—H | =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T P I
Financial assets WBEE
Investments held for trading RIEEBEZIRE 372 283
Loans and receivables (including B M SRIE
cash and cash equivalents) (BERERASEEY) 538,570 595,975
Derivative financial instruments PTHE T A 277 213
Financial liabilities MEaE
At amortised cost iSO 1,058,477 948,057
Other long term payable (Note) H R EAE FIB (M) 14,253 14,253
Derivative financial instruments PTHEB T A - 2,619
Note: The amount represents contingent consideration payable s eRAR—_T——F=A=t+—AL

for acquisition of a jointly controlled entity for the year
ended 31 March 2012. Details of the acquisition are set
out in note 37.

FEZERBARZHER BN
ARE - W Z RIS TR 5E37 »
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=+—HILLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include progress
payments receivable, retention money receivable, debtors,
refundable deposits, amount due from a jointly controlled
entity, amount due from an associate, bank balances
and cash, pledged bank deposits, derivative financial
instruments, trade and other payables, other long term
payable, amount due to a non-controlling shareholder and
bank loans.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk
The functional currency of the group entities is mainly

HK$, the currency in which most of the transactions are
denominated.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities,
included retention money receivable, debtors, bank
balances and cash, pledged bank deposits and derivative
financial instruments, of the group entities at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=-+—HILFE

BT HE %)

MERAREEBRRBR (#4)

EWER (&)

AEBRERBRRERARAINEELZ
EREENERREREREFRES &
WkiR - RITRES MRS B EMRTE
REPTEN B TEANREERENAT

31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-=f=ZA=+—H —ET—-®#=ZA=+—H
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
8E =R BE 8fE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BET T BB T
Macau Pataca (“MOP”") SBFITT 643 - 1,354 =
Australian Dollars (“AUD”") BT 403 - 2,041 =
Renminbi (“RMB”) ARE 36,944 - 12,146 -
United States Dollars (“USD”) ETT 2,527 - 1,547 2,619

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise. The Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts
to manage the Group’s foreign currency exposure in
relation to foreign currency forecast sales and foreign
currency denominated monetary items. The Group does
not currently designate hedging relationship on the foreign
exchange forward contracts for the purpose of hedge
accounting.

7R 62 B3R A 3 B SN SRR - AT - B

BEEZYERIIMNERR XHNERE
B E B ERIMNE R BT AE
BIAIMNERE SN E R AEE ARG
HEMIMNESHEEHIRA 2INERR
R N 62 18 30 4 S 3 0h & 5t T Y HME
EANBEEEMEIPEEER-

BRI IR AR AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

B

ECE-ZHF=ZA=+—-HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Company is mainly exposed to fluctuation in
exchange rate of MOP, AUD, RMB and USD against
HK$. However, the financial impact on the exchange
differences among the foreign currencies and HK$ is
expected to be immaterial to the Group, therefore, no
sensitivity analysis has been prepared.

Interest rate risk

The cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to the
Group’s variable-rate bank loans which are linked to
the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) and
bank balances at the prevailing market deposit rate. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4%

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The directors of the Company consider the Group’s
exposure of bank balances to interest rate risk is not
significant as interest bearing bank balances are within
short maturity period. The Group’s sensitivity to interest
rate risk has been determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for variable-rate bank loans at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the

B MR
For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=-+—HILFE

H#EIAR %
HMEREREEEERBK (&)
FEEB (#)
AREEEERINAEEBITLESHIE
WEFIRER I TR B ASBEITE
$ 0 2EHIE R $%@ﬁﬂ$ﬂﬁzw
RE DR BRI R B2 B IRITE R
A7 FIRERMET DI EBRERE

HTHIRH KRB 1;@%513“&1!@;%2%51%
BE - BRAEEMEERFRE ~&

amounts outstanding at the end of the reporting period B 7 = R B R R 2 R B 2 SRR E 20
was outstanding for the whole year. The Group’s sensitivity N
to interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period while
all other variables were held constant is as follows:
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E——F
Reasonably possible change FIEAIE S BB A E (L 50 basis 50 basis
in interest rate points points
50% F 5085+
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Decrease in profit for the year asa  ZN 4 & AR A —
result of an increase in the interest BRI = _EF5024 -+
rate by 50 basis points (3,385) (3,066)
Increase in profit for the year as a AN S M3 p0—
result of a decrease in the interest B3 A = R 5024+
rate by 50 basis points 3,385 3,066

BRI IR AR AR
2012/2013 F R
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=+—HILLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as
at 31 March 2013 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
majority of counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 83% (2012:
81%) of the total progress payment receivable was due
from the Group’s three (2012: three) largest customers,
engaged in property construction business in Hong Kong,
within the construction segment. In addition, as at 31
March 2012, the Group has concentration of credit risk as
78% (2013: Nil) of the total trade receivable was due from
two independent third party customers for property sales
within the property development segment.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Equity price risk

The Group’s held for trading investments include
listed equity securities in Hong Kong. These listed
equity securities are subject to market price risk. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk profiles. Details
of the investments held for trading are set out in note 28.
The management considers that the market price risks of
these investments are not significant to the Group.

Commodity price risk

The Group was exposed to commodity price risk from the
outstanding commodity forward contracts at 31 March
2012. The management considers that the price risks
of these derivative instruments are not significant to the
Group.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank loans and ensures compliance with
loan covenants.

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=-+—HILFE

BT HE %)

MERAREEBRRBR (#4)

IR A B 4% 2L B

AEBREEEZREBENREB LT
ZIEARFE S o It E AR SR AAR T
SERER - ERED GRS T ERRIZE
ZIREMG FEWERU T AR - 5
EEBERE ZFBHNKIE28 - EEE
RA/UFRENTHERAREANEE
I NEAER °

& B 4% AL b

AEEPEMNEMmEBRARKE -F
—CFZA=t—HRZARTEzZERH
AR EEBRRELTETANER
JeR\ e 34 7 % [ 3 SRR A

RBESER

EEERDESRRE NEBEZEN NG
FEEERRAEBERECHEEME
MR e RN e FE 2 KT MRER SR
ERBHRNTE BEEEITRITER
Z BN M FERIT & B FRGE ©

BRI IR AR AR
2012/2013 F

153 N



il 154

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 B #3R K Mf 3T

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=+—HILLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group relies on bank loans as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31 March 2013, the Group has
available unutilised borrowing facilities of approximately
HK$461,366,000 (2012: HK$432,598,000). Details of
bank loans are set out in note 33.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on
the agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative financial
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.

For derivative instruments that settle on a net basis,
undiscounted net cash outflows are presented, based
on the contractual maturities as the management
considers that the contractual maturities are essential
for any understanding of the timing of the cash flows of
derivatives.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
BHE-_Z—=—F=-A=+—HLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. MBIR %)
Financial risk management objectives and BMFEREREEEERBR (&)

policies (Continued)

Liquidity tables nBEER
As at 31 March 2013 RZB-=%
SHES e
Weighted
average On demand Total Carrying
effective  or less than 1-2 2 -5 undiscounted  amount at
interest rate 1 year years years cash flow  31.3.2013
i
—E-ZF
¥ RERY A¥RESL =A=1-H
BERAZ FR-F 1-2% 2-5% REAE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Bttt BETT B%Tn BETT A%t BETn

Non-derivative financial liabilities FE£T4 Bt & &

Trade and other payables JE T FRIA R E At
ERTRIE - 145,832 38,345 - 184,177 184,177
Bank loans - variable rate * FITER—FE* 1.97 826,637 - - 826,637 810,700
Other long-term payable Hth REEMFUE - - - 14,253 14,253 14,253
Amount due to a non-controlling  JER JEIZARAR R 7B
shareholder - - 63,600 - 63,600 63,600

972,469 101,945 14,253 1,088,667 1,072,730

FB AR AR AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_Z—=F=-A=+—RHLFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. A% IR #)
Financial risk management objectives and MBERKREEEERBK (&)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity tables (Continued) REBESE (&)
As at 31 March 2012 RZT-—ZF
=A=+—*H
Weighted
average On demand Total Carrying
effective or less than 1-2 2-5  undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 year years years cash flow 31.3.2012
i
—E—_F
MEFH RERK AUBEHEE ZA=T—H
ERF= TR—F 126 256 mERE EHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Non-derivative financial liabilities 474K AR
Trade and other payables JE A R0 B2 ALt PR 500R = 178,191 35,566 = 213,757 213,757
Bank loans - variable rate * BOER-ZE 211 749,794 - - 749,79 734,300
Other long-term payable Hth &SR 7E - - - 14,253 14,253 14,253
927,985 35,566 14,253 977,804 962,310
Derivatives - net settlement fIETE-F4E
Commodity forward contract EInE ! - 2619 - - 2619 2619
930,604 35,566 14,253 980,423 964,929

* The interest rates applied to projected undiscounted cash
flows of variable rate bank loans are the interest rates at

the end of the reporting period.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4%

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continuea)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

The amounts above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if
changes in variable interest rate differ to those estimates
of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting
period.

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 year” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March
2013, the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of
these bank loans amounted to HK$353,800,000 (2012:
HK$237,800,000). Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors do not believe that it is
probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such bank loans as at 31 March 2013 will be
repaid within six (2012: seven) years after the reporting
date in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows will amount to
HK$370,883,000 (2012: HK$258,883,000).

B MR
For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=-+—HILFE
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=+—HILLFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

° the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask
prices respectively;

° the fair value of derivative financial instruments of
foreign currency forward contracts are determined
using quoted forward exchange rates and yield
curves from quoted interest rates matching with
maturities of the contracts. The fair value of
derivative financial instruments of commodity
forward contracts are measured at fair value by
reference to the forward price of related metals
quoted from London Metal Exchange; and

o the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

For the year ended 31 March 2013
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_Z—=F=-A=+—RHLFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. MMBFIHR (»
Fair value (Continued) NIE (&)
Fair value measurements recognised in the RESHBMREEXAERZ L FEL
consolidated statement of financial position B (&)
(Continued)

At 31 March 2013
R-B-=5=A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& -t 1} E=H et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETR BETT BETT BETT

Financial assets at FVTPL FRBERENTE
HEHBEE
Listed equity securities RIEEEREZ
held for trading ERAES 372 - - 372
Foreign exchange forward INEFERL
contracts - 277 - 277
372 277 - 649
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BERBEREATE
HECHBAR
Other long-term payable H = B P& (< 3R - - 14,253 14,253
. 160 HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

Fair value (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(Continueq)

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=-+—HILFE
MBHEIA (#)
AEEE
RGEEHBRERAERZ L FER

B (&)

At 31 March 2012
W_ZE——%#=A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— E-; FE=MH BEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BET T AT T
Financial assets at FVTPL FREBERENTE
HECHBEE
Listed equity securities RIEEEREZ
held for trading EHRAES 283 - = 283
Foreign exchange forward SNEERER L
contracts - 213 - 213
283 213 - 496
Financial liabilities at FVTPL FREBERENTE
HEZHBARE
Commodity forward contracts AmAEEL 2,619 = = 2619
Other long-term payable H = B e (T 5UE - - 14,253 14,253
2,619 - 14,253 16,872
There was no transfer among Level 1, 2 and 3 during the RZE—=F=HA=+—HBk=F—=
years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012. FZA=1+—HLEFERNFE & %:,&
NE=ZHHBTE B R EEE-
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value F=MAFEAETZ2UKEEHER
measurements of financial liabilities
The other long-term payable represents contingent HEMRAENKEBAR_ZE—Z_F=A4

consideration payable for acquisition of a jointly controlled
entity during the year ended 31 March 2012. There
is no movement in the fair value of the contingent
consideration from the date of acquisition to the end of
the reporting period because the management considers
that it is highly likely payable by the Group. Details of the
acquisition transaction were set out in note 37.

=t—HILEFERE -—FEREHEE
ZERSARE - BREBRERERR
FAREBZRAFELEEZS EREEE
EZRIAEEFRBAREBNZELAR
B WER S 2 FBEHNRHEIT7 -

BRI IR AR AR
2012/2013 F R
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TURNOVER

Turnover represents the aggregate of the revenue earned
from construction contract work, interior and renovation
contracts, supply and installation of building materials,
sales of goods, gross rental income from property

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 B #3R K Mf 3T
For the year ended 31 March 2013
BT =F=A=1+—HIFE

LEBHEFARAREANTIE KN
HEAN HERLEEZEMH LEE
mMERBREZEHRSWA MEHER
RUDEREREEREHRN 2 WEZ

investment, sale of properties and provision of property REIHTWT :
agency and management services during the year, and is
analysed as follows:
2013 2012
—EBE—-=F —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Revenue from construction BEAHTIREZIWA
contract work 886,148 804,536
Revenue from interior and R REIEEH 2 /A
renovation contracts 29,761 10,133
Sale of building materials BEMBZEESS 31,000 27,600
Revenue from contracts for TRBEMBEGH WA
installation of building materials 195,025 177,622
Sale of health products EREMIHESE 56,074 52,639
Rental income from property MR E 2 el
investment 20,138 16,957
Sale of properties MEZIHESRE 325,800 138,000
Property agency and management #1312 & E 2R 2 W
service income 10,533 7,169
1,554,479 1,234,656

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
BHE-_Z—=—F=-A=+—HLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. HEEHR
The Group is organised into seven operating divisions: AEBFELLEHISD A BE £
construction, interior and renovation works, trading and HREETIR EEMPAEBERLE &
installation of building materials, sales of health products, FREMZIHE MERE WEEREY
property investment, property development and provision FREREERRB  RMH AEENULSE
of property agency and management services. These DN ME NI B ER G AR R THIT
divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its EE(RETELEARE)IEEHERIN
financial information internally and are regularly reviewed PSS EEZERERTHEPER 2K
by the executive directors of the Company, being the chief 3 o
operating decision makers, for the purpose of allocating
resources to segments and assessing their performance.
(a) Segment revenues and results (@) PEVNRESR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue TRTFPTAKEZLEDE W
and results by operating segment: ARFEBEH DT -
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE_Z—=F=H=+—HLHF
B
Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and Segment
Construction  renovation materials products  investment development management total ~ Eliminations  Consolidated
NERE
BE EBREL BENE  BEER  WERE WERRE REE  fEAG s 24
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BETn B¥Tn  B¥TR  BMTn  BMTn  BMTn  BMTn  BETn  BETn  BETn
TURNOVER E28
Edernal sales HiMaE 886,148 29761 226025 56074 20,138 325800 10533 1554479 1554479
Iersegmentsdes  HEETM e 155353 150676 46,136 8 1748 - 3152 37,073 (357,073) -
Tota a3t 1041501 180437 272,161 56082 21,886 325800 13685 1911552 (357,073) 1554479
Intersegment salesare ~ DEEBEZHED
charged by reference ~ 2ET{EE o
to market prices.
RESULTS T |
Segment resul HELE 9446 1648 2508 1331 100956 89,242 512 205733 (287) 205,446
Unallocated expenses ~ AAEHE (3,549)
Profit before taxation BRBATA 201,897

FEAZER AR A A

2012/2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_Z—=F=-A=+—RHLFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

= A\
fre R

7175 R Y

8. NEEN &)

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment results represent the
results from each segment without allocation of
administration costs incurred by head office and the
inactive subsidiaries. This is the measure reported to
the chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

(a) Segment revenues and results (Continued) (@) PEBMNREE (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-E——F=-A=1+—HILE
E
Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and Segment
Construction ~ renovation materials products investment  development  management total  Eliminations  Consolidated
NERE
BE ZBREE BREME  BRER  WERE  NEER REE SR M A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AT AT BETr  BETr  BETn  B¥Tr  B¥Tr BT BBTn
TURNOVER L
Extemnal sales Wi 8M5% 10133 205222 52639 16957 138000 7169 1234656 - 103465
Inter-segment sales PREBH L EE 29259 178351 27,630 8 1,548 = 1873 238669  (238669) -
Total Fee 833,795 188484 232,852 52,647 18,505 138,000 9042 1473325  (238669) 1,234,656
Intersegment salesare ~ AEEBEZHED
charged by reference 2B E
to market prices.
RESULTS E
Segment result PREE 13834 3,670 1,219 1,206 75,563 43123 693 139,308 (400) 138,908
Unallocated expenses AR EEX (2,831)
Profit before taxation FRBiRTRR] 136,077

BERED R G BORERE

ZERBR (HRMEI) —H -2
4

Y ARDERBREBRENERZ

FYE AR Z TR - it Ty £ 2

ERREZMAMEB R B R T

BffhzB®-



8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

N b E

For the year ended 31 March 2013
BHE-_Z—=—F=-A=+—HLFE

8. NEEN &)

b) PEEERER

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets TRAPAEESEED B EE
and liabilities by operating segment: FEaESN:
As at 31 March 2013 R-E—=F=H=+—H
Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and Segment
Construction  renovation materials products  investment development management total  Eliminations Consolidated
NERE
BE EBREL BENE  BEER  WERE WERRE REE  SEEH s by
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BY¥Tr BT BMTn  BMTn BT BT B¥Tn BMTn BMTn BMTn
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PEEE 414,233 49,419 180,714 39,113 829,904 996,055 66,768 2,576,206 - 2,576,206
Unallocated assets RAREE 3,649
Consolidated assets GREE 2,579,855
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities HREE 250,326 18,225 115,085 4,806 360,724 524,003 709 1,273,878 - 1,273,878
Unallocated liabilties FoRERE 89,592
Consolidated liabilties GREE 1,363,470
BRI 2 RA R A A

2012/2013 F
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HE-_Z—=F=-A=+—RHLFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A\
fre R

7175 R Y

8. NEEN &)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) b) PESEHERE &)
As at 31 March 2012 R-=E——-—H=H=+—H
Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and Segment
Construction ~ renovation materials products investment  development  management total  Eliminations  Consolidated
NERE
BE ZHREE REME BRER  WERE  NEER REER  HEt s A
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
AETT AT AETr  EETr  EETrn  #ETn  #¥Tn  #¥Tr A%t BETn
ASSETS 13
Segment assets PEEE 457,197 28630 186,615 35,671 456418 1073620 4278 2,280,936 - 2280936
Unallocated assefs RPBEE 9%1
Consolidated assets GREE 2,281,897
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities PEAE 270,282 32311 123982 5,607 136,030 590,973 642 1159827 - 1159827
Unallocated labilties FOREE 70,740
Consolidated liabities Faafk 1,230,567
For the purposes of monitoring segment REERSERRARDBEHNEIR
performance and allocating resources between paN Ve

segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than central bank balances and cash
of head office and other inactive subsidiaries,
taxation recoverable and deferred tax assets;
and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than other payables of head
office and the inactive subsidiaries, tax
payable and deferred tax liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
BHE-_Z—=—F=-A=+—HLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. HEEMN#)
(c) Other information (c) HEth&ER
Year ended 31 March 2013 —E2—=F=A=1+—HLFE

Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and
Construction  renovation materials products investment development management Consolidated
NERE
BE £BREE BEME  BERER  WERE  WEER REE Es)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT  BETr BT B%Tr  BMTr  E¥Tn  BMTn  E%Trn

Amounts included in the BREESEEEIHE
measure of segment results  AEZ &5
or segment assets:

Depreciation of property, N%E BERSEINE

plant and equipment 2,366 38 457 1,277 5 - 2,561 6,704
Gain on change in fair value of X EMEZATEEH

investment properties g - - - - (104,489) - - (104,489)
Gain on change in fair value of #{EBEE 2B Z AT E

investments held for trading 82 s (89) - - - - - - (89)
Loss on change in fair value  $T4B BT E 2 AFE

of derivative financial b Epd ]

instruments - - 427 - - - - 427
Impairment loss recognised B ERMEWGURRIESR

on trade debtors - - 3,000 - - - - 3,000
Gain on disposal of property, tH&E ¥ BB & 2 Wik

plant and equipment (57) - - - - - - (57)
Interest income %IJ A - - (16) (1) - - (618) (635)
Share of profit of an associate 215 %E 4 2 A1 - - - - (839) - - (839)
Share of (profit) loss of jointly 2 R 4| E 88

controlled entities (4 7)EE (1,201) - - - - 1,747 - 546
Finance costs BB - - 2,122 6 3,420 183 - 5,731
Additions to non-current REFERBEE (M)

assets (note) 3,458 - 1,045 702 335,420 - 473 341,098
Interest in an associate BENE ER - - - - 21,238 - - 21,238
Interests in jointly HREHEE ER

controlled entities 5,769 - - - - 123,823 - 129,592

Amounts regularly provided to AEEESEEEETH
the chief operating decision ~ Efia T EL 4
maker but notincluded in -~ JRIREZ S E:
the measure of segment

results:

Income tax expenses (credit)  HBZH (FHA) 492 193 294 (24) 427 14,741 588 16,711

Note: Non-current assets exclude pledged bank deposits, WeE: ERBEENBEEKFRTT
deferred tax assets, interest in an associate and FRBEEHBEEE BEQ
interests in jointly controlled entities. A2 R B R 2

hul}

FEBBIEIERABR AR
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

8. NEEN &)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 B #3R K Mf 3T
For the year ended 31 March 2013
BE-2-=H-A=+-ALFE

Other information (Continued) (c) Et&ER (&)
Year ended 31 March 2012 —E—_—_HF=-HA=+—HILEE
Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and
Consfruction ~ renovation ~ materials  products investment development management Consolidated
MERE
BE RHOREE BEME BEER MERE  NEEE RER e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT A%Tr BETr A%Trn #A%Tr AT A%Tr BETx
Amounts included in the BRESBEEIHE
measure of segment results  AEZ£H:
or segment assets:
Depreciation of property, N% BERSEINE
plant and equipment 1,331 38 380 1,166 425 4 2,148 5,492
Gain on change in fair value of X EMEZATEZHZ
investment properties Yrzs - - - - (72,19) - - (72,19)
Loss on change in fair value of H{EBE 7 A2 AT A
investments held for trading %2 E518 51 - - - - - - 51
Loss on change in fair value  $TERBTEZ AFE
of derivative financial 28 ER
instruments - - 2,100 - - - - 2,100
(Gain) loss on disposal HEME BRER
of property, plant and RfEz (s BB
equipment (109) - - - - - 327 218
Interest income ISYON (1) - ©) ) - - (28) (45)
Share of profit of an associate /5% & 72 & - - - - (1,467) - - (1,467)
Share of profit of jointly AERREHIEEEF
controlled entities (10,954) = = - (14,176) = (25,130)
Finance costs BHER - - 1581 1,594 2,203 - 5,382
Additions to non-current NEFREEE (M)
assets (note) 1321 - 237 966 205 - 182 2911
Interest in an associate BENRZER - - - - 20,399 - = 20,399
Interests in jointly LFEEHEE Ex
controlled entities 14,568 - - - - 124,112 - 138,680
Amounts regularly provided to A BFEAESBEEBTH
the chief operating decision ~ Efia T B4
maker but notincluded in ~~ RERBEZEB:
the measure of segment
results:
Income tax expenses HEXH 120 513 119 232 1333 5,037 556 7910
Note: Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets, M:E: ERBDEETERBRLEHEE

the interest in an associate and interests in jointly
controlled entities.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuead)
(c) Other information (Continued)
Geographical information

The Group's turnover which is generated from
customers located in Hong Kong, the Company’s
place of domicile, amounted to HK$1,531,481,000
(2012: HK$1,229,232,000). Accordingly, no further
analysis of the Group’s turnover by geographical
market based on geographical location of customers
has been prepared.

The analysis of the Group’s non-current assets
by geographical location of assets is presented as
follows (Note):

For the year ended 31 March 2013
BHE-_Z—=—F=-A=+—HLFE

8. NEEN &)

(c)

Hith&E# (&)
i EE R

AASRENEEEATEREES
(ARRIFTEMER) MRS IR
BEREFPIHEBEMNEREAME
MEDE - REEBEFNEERE
851 531,481,000 (ZE—=
4 ##51,229,232,0007T) °

AEBIERBEEREEE IR
EDHT2HRAT (M) -

31.3.2013 31.3.2012

—E—=F —E——F

=RA=+—-H | =A=1+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Hong Kong (place of domicile) & (FTEMR) 854,676 505,804
The PRC Fh 158,609 157,961
1,013,285 663,765

Note: Interest in an associate and interests in jointly
controlled entities are analysed by geographical
location of their respective operations.

MieE: BEARZESMAREE
B2 D R AR L E B 38
L EEDHT

BRI IR AR AR
2012/2013 F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 B #3R K Mf 3T

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_Z—=F=-A=+—RHLFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(c) Other information (Continued)
Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding
years individually contributing over 10% of the total

8. NEEN &)

(c)

Hit&# ()

BREEEFZEH

REEFERN KB ERITF 2K
=@ MBAAEEERAEANZ

turnover of the Group is as follows: T BRINAT
2013 2012
—_E—= —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Customer A (note) BEERF (M) 329,713 64,613
Customer B (note) BR (KsE) 180,073 258,687
Customer C (note) BEERN (M) 141,766 241,968
Customer D (note) BxET (M) - 173,635
651,552 738,903
Note: Revenue from construction contracts income MeE: WElERREBEIBIEES

within the construction segment.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4%

BB EwER M

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE_Z—=F=A=+—RHILFE

OTHER INCOME 9. Hiblg A
2013 2012
—E—-=5F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Other income includes: HWABE:
Dividend income B& B U A 9 9
Interest income FLEWA 635 45
Storage income FREWA 778 861
Sales of scrap materials BERL & 353 416
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BEM&E 2 K
plant and equipment 57 -
Reversal of impairment loss on HEME WER&EEBERD
property, plant and equipment 2,309 -
Reversal of impairment loss on TENMEERIAZ HEREE
prepaid lease payments 412 -
FINANCE COSTS 10. B EH
2013 2012
—E-=F T —=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interest on: AT 2 F &
Bank loans wholly repayable /,\ﬁAﬂEW%%IE%%Z
within five years (including bank fE ER(BEREX
loan with repayment on demand & 1%12%&1?5&)
clause) 14,417 14,121
Less: Amount capitalised in properties J& : 3R 2 5 &%
under development for sale BEERNbzEE (8,686) (8,739)
5,731 5,382

FEAZER AR A A
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11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

11. BB

A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 B #3R K Mf 3T

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_Z—=F=-A=+—RHLFE

Bl it 7

2013 2012
—_E—= —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Profit before taxation has been BRI A E R & (FTA) ¢
arrived at after charging and
(crediting):
Directors’ emoluments (note 12(1))  EEB < (MIsE123))
Fees e 775 664
Other emoluments HE i< 12,744 10,994
13,519 11,658
Other staff costs H 8 TRA
Salaries and other benefits e REMET 190,402 162,872
Retirement benefits scheme RIRAEFIFH BB FR
contributions 10,732 7,567
Total staff costs B TR AT 214,653 182,097
Depreciation of property, ME -BEMEHEZITE
plant and equipment 6,704 5,492
Auditor's remuneration % ERT B & 1,910 1,800
Impairment loss recognised B R H FE WS IE R (B B 1
on trade debtors 3,000 -
(Gain) loss on disposal of property,  HEWE BB MEREZ
plant and equipment (Uhzs) B 18 (57) 218
Net exchange gain F I H e (105) (131)
Contract costs recognised as TG ASHE KA
expense in cost of sales 1,039,462 928,713
Costs of inventories recognised as an 17 &K 25T A &5 & A A
expense in cost of sales 240,061 141,849
Gross rental income under operating &K S S U A 4258
leases (20,138) (16,957)
Less: Direct operating expenses BRAFEEEEARS KA
that generated rental income RHEELEST N
during the year 5,117 3,302
(15,021) (13,655)

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
BHE-_Z—=—F=-A=+—HLFE

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continuea) 1. BRFBRLER (2)
2013 2012
—E-=5F —=E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Sub-leasing income o HEMBA (778) (861)
Less: Direct operating expenses B RAEERHEE S EKAM S
that generated sub-leasing RREELEST N
income during the year 38 40
(740) (821)
Expenses included in cost of BEREHIRKARNZ Y H:
contract work:
Depreciation e 5,324 11,110
Release of prepaid lease payments 8178 & k18 2 8 84 218 215
Rentals under operating leases in  &&HE 2 HE :
respect of:
— plant and machinery — B K ik zs 8,452 3,237
— others —H A 473 351

FEAZER AR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 B #3R K Mf 3T
For the year ended 31 March 2013
BT =F=A=1+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(i)

12. EF THRARESEME

Details of directors’ and chief (i) UTREERITHARMEZ
executive’s remuneration are as =
follows:
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine ENSEGNE (ZE—=F: +%)EF
(2012: ten) directors were as follows: E2EBBMET
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—-HLEFE
Other emoluments
Hitti &
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefits
and other incentive scheme Total
Fees benefits payments  contributions  emoluments
&R ITHERR BAREA
ne Hitr @A ®EE BE L3 “ne
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETRT BETR BETT BETR
(Note)
(&)
Cha Mou Sing, Payson EME - - - - -
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart Tits - 2,801 5,000 420 8,221
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson ~ &= - - - - -
Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin ~ & /& - - - - -
Chan Pak Joe B{ak 225 - - - 225
Lam Chat Yu WEF 100 - - - 100
Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 272 225 - - - 225
Shen Tai Hing * JOAE * - - - - -
Sun Tai Lun YN 225 - - - 225
Tai Sai Ho Bt R - 1,759 2,500 264 4,523
775 4,560 7,500 684 13,519

* Shen Tai Hing resigned as a director of the
Company on 1 April 2012.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & BF i s & B 7%
For the year ended 31 March 2013
BHE-_Z—=—F=-A=+—HLFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 12. EE - ITHHREZ R EEMNE
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (&)
(Continued)
() Details of directors’ and chief (i) UTEREERTHEAZMEZ
executive’s remuneration are as HE:(#)

follows: (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-Z—_—=A=1+—-HLEE

QOther emoluments

Hit#e

Performance Retirement

Salaries related benefits
and other incentive scheme Total
Fees benefits payments  contributions emoluments

ek TERR RIKEF]
ika Hifa A 4k BEEE BHe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BB T BT BT

(Note)

(&)

Cha Mou Sing, Payson s - - - - -
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart FittiE - 2,668 4,000 400 7,068
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson ~ &#ikfz - - - - -
Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin ~ & /& - - - - -

Chan Pak Joe Biatk 188 = = = 188
Lam Chat Yu WEF 100 - = - 100
Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 2712 188 - - - 188
Shen Tai Hing N - _ _ _ _
Sun Tai Lun N 188 = = = 188
Tai Sai Ho AR - 1,675 2,000 251 3,926
664 4,343 6,000 651 11,658
Note: The performance related incentive payment is g LERRERSEREXFEN
determined based on the performance of the BEAZERBRAKE 2 RRME
individual and the Group's performance and &le

profitability for the year.

BRI IR AR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 B #3R K Mf 3T
For the year ended 31 March 2013
BT =F=A=1+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(i

(ii)

Details of directors’ and chief
executive’s remuneration are as
follows: (Continued)

Wong Sue Toa, Stewart is the Managing Director of
the Company who undertakes the roles and duties
equivalent to a chief executive and his emoluments
disclosed above included those for services
rendered by him in this capacity.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, one director
waived emolument of HK$100,000. No director
waived any emolument in the year ended 31 March
2013.

Employees’ emoluments

During the year, the five highest paid individuals
included two directors (2012: two directors), details
of whose emoluments are set out above. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2012: three)
highest paid individuals were as follows:

12. EF THRARESEME

(%)

(i)

(ii)

UTEESERITHARME <
5 (#)

FTHBERARANESALE H
A RBBERITHAEM A LS
HHBEE BREMETLBRE MR
HREH M S -

RBE_T—_F=HA=+—HF
B R —fI% F 3% 100,000
THME REBEE-_T—=F=A
=tT-HFE UEEZRELW
B < o

EESME

REE AERERFATEEME
BEFE(ZE—ZF - WMBES) %
MEBEEEZHeFBERR EX-H
B=R(ZB——F =R RaH
ATZBES0T:

2013 2012

—EBE—-=F —E—_F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Salaries and other benefits o MEHARER 2,643 2,471

Performance related incentive ~ L{EXRIFERF &

payments 2,700 2,000
Retirement benefits scheme  RAREFI T &I 5%

contributions 396 371

5,739 4,842

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
BHE-_Z—=—F=-A=+—HLFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 12. EE THHERZR KR EEME
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (%)
(Continued)
(i) Employees’ emoluments (Continued) (i) EEME &)
The emoluments of the aforesaid employees were ritEE 2B R5IAER :
within the following bands:
2013 2012
—Eg—= —F—=
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 ;&% 1,000,0017T — % #1,500,0007C - 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 ;&% 1,500,001t — % #2,000,0007T 2 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 %2 000,001t — % #2,500,0007T 1 -
During the year, no emolument was paid by the Group to RAFE  AEBYENEZEES T T E
the directors or highest paid employees as an inducement BXMNME  (ERSBIMAREESINA
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for RNEE 7 2R BB mEE-
loss of office.
13. TAXATION 13. HiIEXZ H
2013 2012
—E—=&F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEEMNEH
Current year KEE 17,128 8,960
(Over)underprovision in prior years — BfEEE (858 ) BE T T (185) 63
16,943 9,023
Deferred taxation (Note 34) EIERIA (K15E34) (232) (1,113)
16,711 7,910
Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided at 16.5% on the R E F E 2 B8 NS B A G 5T SR B
estimated assessable profits for both years. M E16.5%xT &

BRI IR AR AR
2012/2013 F
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=+—HILLFE

13. TAXATION (Continued)

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions i
rate prevailing in the relevant jurisd

arising in the PRC is calculated at 25% on the assessable

profits for both years.

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit

before taxation per the consolidated in
follows:

BT HR R MY R

13. HEZH 2

s calculated at the
ictions. Profits tax

come statement as

FEEMAREEFRELNBIE RREH
AR 2 R B R B WEEE
2 o B4 3 P19 B 0L 8 SR B 58 ) 19 25%
HE-

FREBIA M ER A W R 2 R B AR
FEERANT -

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Profit before taxation B 5% Bl g A 201,897 136,077
Tax at the domestic income RN G IR E16.5% 2 T8
tax rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) (ZE——F:165%) 33,313 22,453
Tax effect of share of profit of BB A Rlm | 2 RIS &
an associate (138) (242)
Tax effect of share of loss (profit) of ~ FE(G LRSI FEEEE CaF) 2
jointly controlled entities M2 90 (4,147)
Tax effect of expenses that are REBETERB R M BT HR 2
not deductible in determining RAx 2B E
taxable profit 1,603 1,860
Tax effect of income that is REGTE u%tft/mﬂ Bl BRI Z
not taxable in determining WAZ TG 2
taxable profit (17,392) (11,999)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax EERZAIRBERZRGEER 2
losses previously not recognised MBTE (1,005) (570)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7 &2 ZTR?I'%J% B RGTE 626 776
Tax effect of different tax rates of B 8 A B R Ho Aty 7&% = EER
subsidiaries operating in other A 5FR R E
jurisdictions (201) (284)
(Over)underprovision in prior years  BEEFE (HB%E) BETR (185) 63
Taxation for the year FEMEBEXH 16,711 7,910

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE_Z—=F=A=+—RHILFE

14. DIVIDENDS

14. E 2

BB EwER M

Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: RAFRNEERAEE DIREZREMNT
2013 2012
—EB—-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Ordinary shares: EmRR
Interim dividend for 2013 —E-=FRHRKRE—
— HK1.8 cents per share FRBBLISL (=T —=F:
(2012: HK1.5 cents per share ZE-—FERAKLIL)
for 2012) 8,777 7,314
Final dividend for 2012 —E-CZFERAKRE—
— HK2.7 cents per share FRBEB27IL(ZE—=F:
(2012: HK2.7 cents per share ZE——FEZREE2.7)
for 2011) 13,164 13,164
21,941 20,478
A final dividend of HK3.2 cents per share totalling EEERRBBE_ZT—=-F=A8

HK$17,162,000 in respect of the year ended 31 March
2013 (2012: final dividend of HK2.7 cents per share

totalling HK$13,164,000 in respect of the year ended E=

31 March 2012) has been proposed by the directors
and is subject to approval by the shareholders in general

meeting.

o o

BERB ?—%2 7ﬂJJ
TT) &S

=+— EZﬂiﬁzﬁﬂﬁgtﬁﬁ,ﬁm.zﬂuv

A HB#17,162,0007T (=
T——_F=A=t+—HILZRHER
& B %13,164,000

[= A WA=H

T —F B

BAGRRNEERERAE L

FEAZER AR A A

2012/2013 F R
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=+—HILLFE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the
year is based on the profit attributable to owners of
the Company for the year of HK$188,265,000 (2012:

15. SR &7

AEEBRERBNIRENRRER
A FEAG 5 2 % ) 8 #188,265,0007T (=
T — 4 : B ¥%128,167,0007T) K EE

HK$128,167,000) and on the 536,315,641 shares TR CF=ZA=t+—HIREFES

in issue for the two years ended 31 March 2013 after
adjusting for the effect of bonus issue of shares during the

year.

There were no potential ordinary share in existence for the

o
Ean

F 2536,315,641 8 2 BT (E SR

REFZRBITARZZEFEL ARG

BHE_T—=F="A=t—HIMAF

two years ended 31 March 2013. Accordingly, no diluted ElrEALBEHES LB Bt WiE

earnings per share has been presented.

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

EREREERTN -

16. IREWE

HK$'000
BT T
FAIR VALUE NS |
At 1 April 2011 N-_ZE——FWmWA—H 358,310
Additions NE 205
Disposals & (14,800)
Gain on change in fair value N EEE 2 W 72,195
At 31 March 2012 R-—ZE——F=A=+—H 415,910
Additions (Note a) NE (Mizta) 335,209
Disposals & (70,308)
Transfer to property, EREYE BEREE (HiEb)
plant and equipment (Note b) (29,710)
Transfer to assets classified ERESERFEHEEE (WH:E31)
as held for sale (Note 31) (8,500)
Gain on change in fair value N EEE 2 W 104,489
At 31 March 2013 R-ZE—=F=A=+—H 747,090

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 21 September 2012, Excel Pointer Limited (“Excel
Pointer”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement to
acquire an investment property for a consideration of
HK$318,000,000. The transaction was completed on
30 November 2012. On 1 November 2012, the Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreement to dispose of
the 40% issued share capital of Superior Choice Holdings
Limited (“Superior Choice”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company and immediate holding company of Excel
Pointer, to Sky Champion International Limited (“Sky
Champion”) for a consideration of US$4, representing
the relevant carrying value of the 40% equity interest
in Superior Choice at that time. Immediately upon the
completion of the disposal of 40% equity interests in
Superior Choice on 17 December 2012, Sky Champion
provided a shareholder’s loan of HK$63,600,000 to
Superior Choice. Details of the shareholder’s loan were set
out in note 38.

At 3 October 2012, the Group had vacated all tenants of
certain investment properties and commenced owner’s
occupation. The investment properties were transferred
to leasehold land and buildings at its fair value of
HK$29,710,000, which was determined on the basis of
a valuation carried out by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited
(“JLL") as at the date of transfer.

The carrying value of investment properties represents
properties in Hong Kong under medium-term leases

and

long-term lease of HK$420,090,000 (2012:

HK$415,910,000) and HK$327,000,000 (2012: Nil)

respe

ctively.

fra MR MR
For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=-+—HILFE

16. HEWE (©)

R-TBE——FEAA-+—H AQFE
EMBRRIEZEBRAR ([2&])F]
3B B o LA (B % #318,000,000
TWE—BREME RHR=ZT—=
F+—A=tHEK - R=ZT—=F
+—A—H AKEFVEBERRLE
ARz EfBRARIREERZEBE
J% 72 ®]Superior Choice Holdings Limited
(['Superior Choice | ) Z40% B 21T AR
FRBEEEER AR ([XE]) - KE
A4ZETT (18 E 7 & B Superior Choice
FIA0% AR AN #E 2 2 PG AR BABRE(E) ©
R_T——F+_A+EtHERHE
Superior ChoiceZ40%R% A #2515 - K
7 BB [ Superior Choicet® f —E 4 (E
75 63,600,000t 2 RERE K - IR E
R B HIFE3S -

R-ZB——F+A=0 KNEEKEL
DEREMEZ AR RFEBEA %
EREYEEBERELHRIETZA
(B /578 #29,710,0007T * Itk T3 4R # {F
EBROTAERAR ([FEHT])ELR
HEEHZAEMERE -

REME ERAERBEUNRETEZT
HEHEMEHBEEYNER BEI IR
75 #5420,090,000T (ZF ——F: B¥

415

,910,0007T ) K& 7 #327,000,0007T

—TF )

BRI IR AR AR
2012/2013 F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 B #3R K Mf 3T

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=+—HILLFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value of the Group'’s investment properties at 31
March 2013 and 2012 and the dates of transfer from
investment properties to property, plant and equipment
and assets classified as held for sale has been arrived
at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by
JLL, an independent property valuer not connected with
the Group. JLL has appropriate qualifications and recent
experience in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations. The valuation of properties amounting
to HK$110,200,000 (2012: HK$98,760,000) was arrived
at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices
of similar properties. The valuation of other properties
amounting to HK$636,890,000 (2012: HK$317,150,000)
was arrived at by reference to the income capitalisation
method which is based on the capitalisation of the net
income potential by adopting an appropriate capitalisation
rate, which is derived from analysis of sale transactions
and interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or
expectations.

All of the Group's property interests in land held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are measured using the fair value model and
are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

16. HEWE (&)

AREBREYWER_ZT—=ZF=A
—t+—Bk_ZE——F=ZA=+—HHE
MR ENEESEZYE BELEER
EREZEDHEARIFHEEECHBZA
FEDBEEEEYEGEM T ENT
REHZHEB] -HMEBRTEAEE
WEAE TEECEERABENITHE
FHELEEREDEETHE -2E
FEEMEITERSHERGBEZWEE
18 /47 #110,200,0007T (=T — — 4 :
75 #98,760,0007T ) ; FRA R AR T E A
FAHEZ W EE BB %636,890,000
gL (=& — =4 : % ¥317,150,0007T) -
WA ERBREBRABENER L XRE
BERAFHEEENML ERHEERS
DTG RIREE 2 Bk T8 BH#OAIm
S| ER R AY o

AEEMANKEHE T ARA - LAR
BMHEEHENBESB N LY ERE
DRBSREYE YR FERAT
EEO



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & BF i s & B 7%
For the year ended 31 March 2013
BHE-_Z—=—F=-A=+—HLFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. ME -BERERE

Leasehold Furniture
land and Plant and and Leasehold Motor
buildings equipment fixtures improvements vehicles Total
HELH
kEF HBERRHE HAREE £ AE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
COST B
At 1 April 2011 R-E——FMA—H 72,600 72,888 15,328 14,479 12,352 187,647
Exchange adjustments fE =% 1,056 451 84 6 62 1,659
Additions NE 22 11 714 930 1,029 2,706
Disposals/write offs HE /i - - (766) (720) (905) (2,391)
At 31 March 2012 R-_Z——f=A=1+—H 73,678 73,350 15,360 14,695 12,538 189,621
Exchange adjustments =R 366 158 39 3 22 588
Additions NE - 427 3,397 741 1,324 5,889
Transfer from investment BRERENE
properties 29,710 - - - - 29,710
Disposals/write offs HE /i - (26) (807) (532) (658) (2,023)
At 31 March 2013 =#=A=+—H 103,754 73,909 17,989 14,907 13,226 223,785
DEPRECIATION AND nEREE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2011 —T——%MWA—A 12,532 54,558 10,669 6,136 8,724 92,619
Exchange adjustments E $ HE 211 135 55 1 26 428
Provided for the year EEEG 2502 8,632 1,800 2389 1,259 16,602
Eliminated on disposalsiwrite offs  Hi%& / Hfi 8 5 i - - (766) (393) (905) (2,064)
At31 March 2012 —#=A=+-A 15,265 63,325 11,758 8,133 0104 10758
Exchange adjustments Bk 38 70 28 1 15 152
Provided for the year FERE 3,131 3,339 1,926 2,403 1,229 12,028
Eliminated on disposalsiwrite offs & /4 &5 B &4 - (15) (807) (532) (658) (2,012)
Impairment loss reversed BEEBEE (2,309) - - - (2,309)
At 31 March 2013 —=Zf#=h=1+—H 16,125 66,719 12,905 10,005 9,690 115,444
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2013 R-Z—=F=A=+—H 87,629 7,190 5,084 4,902 3,536 108,341
At 31 March 2012 ——#=R=1—H 58,413 10,025 3,602 6,562 3,434 82,036

FEAZER AR A A

2012/2013

3 F
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_Z—=F=-A=+—RHLFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates

per annum:
Leasehold land Over the unexpired term of HELTH R
and buildings the relevant lease period BF
from 30 to 50 years
Leasehold Over the shorter of the term of K&
improvements the lease period or 5 years
Other assets 5 years Hi&EE

The carrying value of leasehold land and buildings
comprises properties in Hong Kong except for certain
buildings amounting to HK$20,280,000 (2012:
HK$18,925,000) which are located in the PRC. The
properties located in Hong Kong and the PRC are under
medium-term leases.

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

17. % BB R&E (2)

AEME  BEEREBDREBEERESEE
AT EITE  FHOT

B RAEQRE R FH
H=tTEZR T+

BRABEQREREBH
FhF (UAREERE)

ke

18. R HE IR

B A% T AR E % %20,280,0007T (=& —=
F : /5#18,925,0007T ) (A BIEYAEF 51 -
ErRETHEBNMEER - LNEB R
REMEATHEE -

31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—_E—= —E——4F
=A=+-8 | ZA=+-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ST IT
The Group’s prepaid lease AEBZEMNEERIERIE:
payments represent:
Leasehold land in the PRC KA ZEE i
Medium-term lease FHIHE 7,242 6,955
Analysed for reporting purposes as: A& & B H) 2 DT
Current asset MBEE 218 215
Non-current asset EMEBEE 7,024 6,740
7,242 6,955

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & BF i s & B 7%
For the year ended 31 March 2013
BHE-_Z—=—F=-A=+—HLFE

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 10. BiE AR ZH#ERE

31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E—=F —E——F
=R=+—-H | =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T

Cost of unlisted investment RIE LM E QR 2 E KA
in an associate 16,576 16,576

Share of post-acquisition profit, D% 2 = A

net of dividends received (KRB W ZEE) 4,662 3,823
21,238 20,399

Details of the Group’s associate as at 31 March 2013 and

2012 are as follows:

R_E—=F=A=+—BRZT—Z
FZA=t—"HBAREEBRLERRZFE

LU
Place of
incorporation
and principal Attributable interest and
Form of place of Class of proportion of voting power
Name of associate business structure operation shares held held by the Group  Principal activity
A%
ot {1 B 32 3t B % R AERR
BENRZER EBEBEX TEEEMEY i R 40 48 51 REE 2B TEXH
2013 2012
ZE-ZF|ZE——F
Hoi Bun Godown Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary 50% 50% Property investment
Company Limited company B8 @R MERE
BEERBRAT BRAA

BRI IR AR AR
2012/2013 F

185 N
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_Z—=F=-A=+—RHLFE

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of the

Group’s associate is set out below:

19. Bt &

Y

NEZHEZE (&)

AEEBZEARCMBERRBEHIIM

2013 2012
—E-=5F —=E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Total assets BEMAE 47,083 45,407
Total liabilities BfERE (4,608) (4,608)
Net assets FEE 42,475 40,799
Group’s share of net assets of AEEELBERRFEE
an associate 21,238 20,399
Revenue Uz 1,054 990
Profit for the year RE[E i A 1,678 2,934
Group's share of result and REEREE
other comprehensive income of FE(LEE & N RIEE R
an associate for the year HEf2mEBA 839 1,467

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
BHE-_Z—=—F=-A=+—HLFE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

20. XEEFIERZER

ENTITIES
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-=5F —=E——4F
=A=+-8 | ZA=+-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cost of unlisted investments RIELTHRZEFIEE 2
in jointly controlled entities TE KA 115,977 125,977
Share of post-acquisition profitand 715 U iE 18 & 51| & E 2 E UK A
other comprehensive income, (FBREKRZEKRE)
net of dividends received 13,615 12,703
129,592 138,680

Details of the Group’s jointly controlled entities as at 31
March 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

R-E—=f=A=+—HBFk=_F—=

FZA=T—"BAEEHARZEGHERZ

EALUNNE
Attributable
Place of interest and
Form of incorporation proportion of
Name of jointly business and principal Class of voting power
controlled entity structure place of operation shares held held by the Group Principal activities
E B 3Lt 2 eS80 AEERER RS 2 LR
HEZHER2ER FBEEBKS RIEEXHE 55 REER LA TEEHR
2013 2012
“E-ZF | ZE—=%
Hip Hing-Hanison Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction for a
Joint Venture I ] o N basement, podium and
hE - E N E transfer plate at Tung Chung
IR R 2 T2 RE 7
BeRETR
Hanison-Hip Hing Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction for
Joint Venture W IEEE BB TER townhouse development at
s — ff g Tung Chung and property
development at Nos. 1 & 1E
La Salle Road
IR RB B LR E R
DHBIRIER 2 MEERE
LEETE

BRI IR AR AR
2012/2013 F
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_Z—=F=-A=+—RHLFE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

RE M BwRME

20. EEEHIERZERE (&)

ENTITIES (continuea)
Attributable
Place of interest and
Form of incorporation proportion of
Name of jointly business and principal Class of voting power
controlled entity structure place of operation shares held held by the Group Principal activities
LB 3L i 2 FiisiR 6 AEEEERTER 2L E
HEEZHER2EE EBEEBPL RITEXMHY L] REER 2L TEEHR
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-——F
Hip Hing-Hanison Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction for
Joint Venture WIEEE o TER superstructure work at
18— R s Tung Chung
fUREB EERETR
Hanison-Hip Hing Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction for
Joint Venture WIEE N NER superstructure work at Hong
5 155 — 17 L o R Kong International Airport
IREBERES  FERE
I
Crown Cosmos Limited liability ~ British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary 50% 50% Investment holding in
Investments Limited company Hong Kong LB Hong Kong
BEFREFRAR BRRA RERIHE/BA REBETREERES
Poly Rising Limited liability ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 50% 50% Property development in
Development Limited ~ company BB LBk Hong Kong
RERAERAR ARAF REBETMEERER
Hip Hing-Hanison Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction at Lam
Joint Venture TIEE B TER Tin
R — B D A UREACERTRE
Hip Hing-Hansion Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction at
Joint Venture WIEEE B TER Tin Shui Wai
10— st i 1 ) IR RKE 2 BETIE
Haining Jiafeng Real Limited liability ~ The PRC Registered 49% 49% Property development in
Estate Development company e capital Haining, the PRC
Limited BRAF & AR RPEEEETHR
BEZEEHME BRER
BRAA

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & BF i s & B 7%
For the year ended 31 March 2013
BHE-_Z—=—F=-A=+—HLFE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continuead)

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities attributable
to the Group’s interest therein, is set out below:

HEEHERZERS (2)

AEEDRIAEE R EGLRE
HER EaMHBERRBENT

2013 2012

—E—= —E——-F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Current assets MEEE 208,930 208,198
Current liabilities mEAE (80,260) (69,623)
Non-current assets EMBEE 922 105
Revenue recognised in profit or loss  EEzE R HER R U A 74,141 245,761
Expenses recognised in profit or loss 7E Bz R HER A X H (74,687) (220,631)
Other comprehensive income Hib 2 EIRA 1,458 2,441

FEAZER AR A A

2012/2013 F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B #3R K MfaT

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_Z—=F=-A=+—RHLFE

21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
FOR SALE

At the end of the reporting period, total cumulative
borrowing costs capitalised in the properties under
development for sale were HK$31,987,000 (2012:
HK$23,301,000).

The carrying value of properties under development for
sale comprises properties in Hong Kong under leases as

1. BRPZHFEYE

RBEAR HEMERBEERF ZF
EMEAZLREBERTBEAB
#31,987,000L (ZE—Z—F &%
23,301,0007T) °

BRIPZHEVEIREEDUNES
UHERAFENYE  JIRMT:

follows:
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E—-=5F —E——4F
=A=+-8 | ZA=+-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T ST IT
Long-term lease REHE 508,657 409,203
Medium-term lease FRERFAE 306,896 217,297
815,553 626,500

The amount is expected to be recovered more than twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.

BHZRBEBRBREPRETIR+ =
& A7 A e -

22. INVENTORIES 22, 7&
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E—= —E——F
=R=+—-8 | ZA=t+—H8
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT TT
Building materials BEME 13,385 17,882
Health products — finished goods PR Em— 2 m 13,794 10,403
Others — finished goods H i — Bk T 4,233 3,229
31,412 31,514

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
BHE-_Z—=—F=-A=+—RHLFE

23. AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE (PAYABLE) ON  23. fEW (FEfT) &4 TiE IR
CONTRACT WORK

31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E—-=5 —E——F
=A=+—-H | =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Contract costs incurred plus FRE&E 26 #9710
recognised profits less B R m AR
recognised losses B R EE 5,503,256 6,307,698
Less: Progress billings R ER K (5,449,805) (6,216,182)
53,451 91,516
Analysed for reporting purposes as: & B B Z DT
Amounts receivable FEW & 4 T2 KIA
on contract work 122,017 169,092
Amounts payable on contract work & 4 TI25K18 (68,566) (77,576)
53,451 91,516
Both balances of amounts receivable (payable) on FEW (FEF) & A T2 SRIBRI & B0 A5 8RS
contract work are expected to be settled within twelve TR EAREN T ZEA AR -

months after the end of the reporting period.

AR ERERAR
Poier - 1910
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ##=&

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=+—HILFE

24. PROGRESS PAYMENTS RECEIVABLE 24,
Progress payments receivable represent the amounts
receivable, after deduction of retention money, for
construction services which usually fall due within 30
days after the work is certified. Retention money is usually
withheld from the amounts receivable for work certified.
50% of the retention money is normally due upon
completion of construction services and the remaining
50% portion is due upon finalisation of construction
accounts. Retention money receivable is expected to
be settled within twelve-months after the finalisation of
construction accounts (note 25).

BT HR R MY RE

FE L HE FE SR IR

FEUCE E RIRIEEMRRE SR 2 B
BRI —RAR TIRESRER
=TEAXM - HERERE TR
PR REE-REEHNE EPBEOZ
A HBRRERERGTIREE  MER
BN BT RN B RRRERS
25 - EURE S TEMENEEIR R KIZ
BRET —EARNRE (5E25)

31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-=F —E——F
=ZA=+—H | =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Progress payments receivable from: JEUGHEE B K G :
Subsidiaries of HKR International EREXBEREEBRAA
Limited (“HKRI”) (Note) (IEBEE]) M B LA
(B &E) 8,183 41,342
A related company in which directors — B AN A& F1EH &)
of the Company have control )i NG 3,013 =
Third parties F=F& 65,326 67,198
76,522 108,540

Note: HKRI is a substantial shareholder of the Company and has
significant influence over the Company.

Management closely monitors the credit quality of
progress payments receivables. 94% (2012: 74%) of the
progress payments receivable that are neither past due
nor impaired are considered to be of good credit quality
based on historical repayment from the debtors.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

fiax: BEEE/ARAZEIERR BH
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BAZENELME EEERHRAR
4 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& 81 %% ¥ 2% fii 52

For the year ended 31 March 2013
BHE-_Z—=—F=-A=+—RHLFE

24. PROGRESS PAYMENTS RECEIVABLE

(Continued)

The aged analysis of progress payments receivable is as
follows:

24, FEWWEE FIE (&)

FEMGE EFIR 2 BRER D AT AA T

31.3.2013 31.3.2012

—E—-=5F —=E——4F

=A=+-8 | ZA=+-F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Within 30 days =+tHK 72,125 80,128
31 - 60 days =t+—&=x1+H 2,130 10,505
61 — 90 days ANt—=A+A 2,267 14,519
Over 90 days BidT+H - 3,388
76,522 108,540

The following is an aging analysis of progress payments

B 8 BB R AEIRE 2 8 WO TR 3R 2 Bk

receivable which are past due but not impaired: BT
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-=F —E——F
=ZA=t+—H | =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
31 - 60 days =+—Z%x1+H 2,130 10,505
61 — 90 days At—=A+AH 2,267 14,519
Over 90 days EBid+H - 3,388
4,397 28,412

FB AR ARAR
P sk 193 W
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 B 4 3R K MfaT

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_T—=F=-A=+—RHLFE

25. RETENTION MONEY RECEIVABLE 25. B iRE &

31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E—=F —E——F
=R=+—-H | =A=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T P IT

Retention money receivable from: FEURES KA :
Subsidiaries of HKRI BREE 2 HE AR 33,185 34,109
Third parties FE=F 81,506 85,397
114,691 119,506
Amount receivable within one year — —%f A FEURFIA 60,355 76,316
Amount receivable after one year — 1% B FKIE 54,336 43,190
114,691 119,506

26.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

26. BIHRIA - ZE RBAMKIEA

PREPAYMENTS
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—EB-=F —=E——4F
=A=+—-H | = A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ST IT
Trade debtors & U R IE 19,593 159,844
Other receivables H b e U 5RI8 2,449 16,055
Deposits Ze 10,788 22,236
Prepayments AT FRIR 9,582 8,192
42,412 206,327
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26. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Proceeds from property sales are receivable pursuant to
the terms of the sale and purchase agreements. Retention
money receivables in respect of construction services are
settled in accordance with the terms of the respective
contracts. In addition to the payment of rental deposits,
the Group is required to pay monthly rents in respect of
leased properties in advance. For other businesses, the
Group generally allows a credit period of not more than
90 days (2012: not more than 90 days) to its customers.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group will
internally assess the credit quality of the potential
customers and define appropriate credit limit. Other
receivables are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable
on demand.

Management closely monitors the credit quality of trade
debtors. 59% (2012: 90%) of the trade debtors that
are neither past due nor impaired to be of a good credit
quality based on their historical repayments. Included
in the Group’s trade debtors balance are trade debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$8,119,000 (2012:
HK$16,476,000) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances. There are no balances included in
other receivables which are past due.

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=-+—HILFE

26. BRI -ZEE RBAMKIE

(%)

KEMEHERWASHIBNIREE W
& H) IR R] - BRI RURE &
BEBEONIRREE AEEK M
HER2IN THEESEREEYEN
Al - ERNEMER NEE—RETH
BEFAZRATE (ZF—ZF:FZR
Nt R) ZHREH - BRI 28
AEBKBEERP 2 EEERIERF
it WER A EEERE - KRR
THEER R ERREBREEER-

EEEETYERRUGRAZEELE R
Hppo% (ZT—=F:90% ) BUKFKIA
PREE - TMERE MRBEERESL
me FEERRI -BaRAKEER
TRIR 44 SR AR T 2 42 388 8,119,000t 2
FEMRIE (—F — =% : 78%16,476,000
TC) A HASR 2 78 HA i 7 5 [ 3 St EL
RMEEBEL B AEEBERZES
ST A EAEA R R ARIAET &
REBHRZ &R

FRERIEZERABRAR
2012/2013 F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B #3R K MfaT

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_Z—=F=-A=+—RHLFE

26. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continuea)

The aged analysis of trade debtors presented based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

26. BRI -ZE REMKIE

(&)

FEWFRIR 2 BR e 0 AT T AR IR AR 3 o I
REBZEZARMB25I0T -

31.3.2013 31.3.2012

—E—-=F — =&

=ZA=t+—H | =A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT I

Within 30 days =+tHK 5,200 131,632
31 - 60 days =+t—Z1H 2,727 8,703
61 — 90 days ~Tt—Zh+H 4,050 5,327
Over 90 days BAENTH 7,616 14,182
19,593 159,844

The following is an ageing analysis of trade debtors which

EBHRERIEREZ BEHIAZ REK D

are past due but not impaired: Mo :
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—Eg—= —E—_F
=A=+—-H | = A=1—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Within 30 days =+HA 191 622
31 - 60 days =+—zx+A 307 707
61 — 90 days At—=hn+A 5 965
Over 90 days BiEA+H 7,616 14,182
8,119 16,476

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013
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26. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continuea)

Included in the above trade debtors are amounts due
from related parties of trading nature as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2013
BHE-_Z—=—F=-A=+—RHLFE

26. BIHRIA - ZE REAMKIE
(%)

A b RRIGERIA N B 1A E W AR A+ &
BHUE 2 RIBHNBWT

31.3.2013 31.3.2012

—E—-=5F —=E——4F

=B=+—R8 | = A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

A jointly controlled entity HEEH B 456 367

Indirect subsidiaries of CCM Trust CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited 2

(Cayman) Limited I B A7) ([CCM Trust )

(“CCM Trust”) (Note) (B E) 1,366 1,102

1,822 1,469

Note: CCM Trust is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and has significant influence over the Company. In
addition, CCM Trust is holding the shares of the Company
as the trustee of certain but not identical discretionary
trusts of which three directors, who are also substantial
shareholders, of the Company are among the discretionary
objects.

Movement in the impairment losses recognised on trade

=
B

f: CCM TrustBARRIZEERE A
HARRBERTE N HIN CCM
TrustA B T ARBIBETENETLAZ
BREBEEARRAKRG ZEETZH
BREANEFBE=ZFAEARAES"

R IEN E R EEIEE

debtors:
2013 2012
—_E—= —=E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT IT
Balance at the beginning of the year 5 #1145 8% 2,649 2,649
Impairment losses recognised EERHREEE 3,000 =
Balance at the end of the year FRE 5,649 2,649

FRERIZ IR AR AR
2012/2013 F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 B 7 3R X Mf 3T
For the year ended 31 March 2013
BE—_T—=F=A=1+—HIFE

26.

27.

28.

29.

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 26. B HRE -BEREMHKIE
PREPAYMENTS (Continuea) (#&)
Included in the impairment loss recognised on trade BEREEREWNAFIEREEEE P
debtors are individually impaired trade debtors with ) 45 B4 42 58 78 165,649,000 ( = &F ——
an aggregated balance of HK$5,649,000 (2012: F 1 B #2,649,0007T ) AfE B E < FE UL
HK$2,649,000) which have either been placed under IA BB 2 FEUGRTE IF )5 88 sk B 1%
liguidation or in financial difficulties. The Group does not HIFR S - REBMEGZE AT T
hold any collateral over these balances. I 5 o
Out of the Group’s trade debtors a balance amounting to REEZEYIEHR  INEHERER Y
HK$1,822,000 (2012: HK$1,956,000) is denominated in e EEE AN v BEEFIE 2 588 BIA A
RMB, a currency other than the functional currency of the REEBI|E 2 B #1,822,0000 (ZE—=
relevant group entity. £ :1,956,0007T) °
AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINTLY 27. HEH&J%IEJ}%%IJEE%/H%%/AE
CONTROLLED ENTITY/AN ASSOCIATE NIE
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on XA AR - 7 B K A Z 5k BNRHE
demand. Be
INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 28. HIEEEZHE
Investments held for trading comprise investments in HIEBEE 7 IRE BHENREBLF EHm2
equity securities listed on the Stock Exchange whose fair AR AR FEEH R E 7 N FE AA372,0007T
value amounted to HK$372,000 (2012: HK$283,000). (ZZ— = : ##283,0007T ) °
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29. ITHEMBIA
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-=f=ZH=t-H —E-—F=H=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BET R BB T T BT
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =L BE BfE
The Group’s derivative financial ~ AE B 2 7 4£ 8 7%
instruments comprises: TABHE:
Foreign exchange forward SNEERE & 49
contracts 277 - 213 -
Commodity forward contracts ~ EmEBAEA L - - - (2,619)
277 - 213 (2,619)

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013
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(Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& 81 %% ¥ 7% fi1 52

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following foreign exchange forward contracts in order to
manage the Group'’s foreign currency exposure in relation
to foreign currency forecast sales and foreign currency
denominated monetary items. The Group does not
currently designate hedging relationship on the foreign
exchange forward contracts for the purpose of hedge
accounting. Major terms of the foreign exchange forward
contracts are set out below:

As at 31.3.2013

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=F=-A=-+—HILFE

29. ITHEMBIAR (&)

RBERR NEEEATIHINEREESH
LAE TR R £R (B 0 i TR BRSNS 85 B M SN
SHEEREIR B &R SNE R o B R
SEYESEFEAMAIIERSAH
EEEMEHRR - INEREROERIF
HEFIANT

R-Z—=%=ZA=+-—H

Notional amount Maturity Exchange rate
EREH ZHA HRa®

Buy RMB990,000 8 April 2013 HK$1.25: RMB1.00

B A AR 990,000 —E—=FmANH 7E#1.25 « AR¥1.00
Buy AUD203,000 24 April 2013 HK$7.91: AUD1.00

& AR 71203,000 —E—=FMA=+mA 75#7.91 : 8B 7T1.00
Buy AUD100,000 21 May 2013 HK$8.03: AUD1.00

& AR 78100,000 —ET—=FRA=-+—H 75 #8.03 1 B 7r1.00

Sell USD500,000
& H1327T500,000

As at 31.3.2012

Notional amount

BRTHE

29 October 2013
—ZET—=F+A=+hB

Maturity
FIH B

RMB6.47 to RMB6.50: USD1.00
AR#6.47E AR¥#6.50 : %£7T1.00

R-ZE——-%=ZA=+-—H

Exchange rate

R

Sell USD500,000
= H 3= 7t500,000

29 October 2013
—ET-=F+H=Z+hH

RMB6.47 to RMB6.50: USD1.00
AR¥6.472 AR®6.50 - %£7T1.00

BRI Z IR AR AR
2012/2013 F
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29. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continueq)

During the years ended 31 March 2012, the Group used
commodity forward contracts to minimise its exposure to
price fluctuations of its raw materials. The Group does
not currently designate any hedging relationship on the
commodity forward contracts for the purpose of hedge
accounting. The fair values of commodity contracts were
determined by reference to the forward price of related
metals quoted from London Metal Exchange as at the end
of the reporting period. At the respective maturity dates,
the contracts are settled net in cash with the issuer. Major
terms of the commodity forward contracts are set out
below:

As at 31.3.2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B #3R K MfaT
For the year ended 31 March 2013
BT =F=A=1+—HIFE

29. ITEMBIAR (&)

RZE——F=ZA=+—HILFERN"
AEENAEMBESOKERMFE
RIRE 2 B E R - SRR E I &
AP ETMEAmBREAOEEER
R - EmmA N A ERRE MR
BB ZAREESBHNEER
RTE - EARERIHIR - SRR S EELT
FETFRAE AmPEANTEGRR
YT

R_E—-——_F=A=+—H

Quantity Commodity
Currency Commodity (in tonnes) Maturity forward price
B & m HE (M) EH#A BmBEER
usD Aluminium 300 2 May 2012 USD2,830/metric tonne
ETT iz —E—_—FHA-H B AME2 830 7T
usD Aluminium 200 5 September 2012 USD2,336/metric tonne
ETT i —E——FNAAA F/AMAE2 3363 7T
usD Aluminium 80 5 October 2012 USD2,385/metric tonne
ETT A —ET——F+AHAH FAME2,385% T
usD Aluminium 220 1 January 2013 USD2,420/metric tonne
ETT 7 —E—=F—H—H FAME2 4203 T

The Group’s derivative financial instruments which
amounted to HK$232,000 (2012: HK$2,406,000)
are denominated in USD, the currency other than the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013
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30. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less at interest rate of 0.01%
(2012: 0.01%) per annum as at 31 March 2013.

The Group’s bank balances that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=F=-A=-+—HILFE

30. RITHEHEERE

BITEKREREBEREAEEFEZRSE
RERRIBTEAESHA LR =@A K
“EAAZEBRIGER R —=F
= A=+—HB¥EAFEMNEE001% (=ZF
—Z4:001%) °

AEBAEHEBER ZIEEHE AN
ZEEIEZRITHEHBHIIMT :

31.3.2013 31.3.2012

—E-=5F —=E——4F

=A=+-A | =A=+—H©

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

MOP JBFIIT 643 1,354
AUD JBIT 363 2,041
usD =TT 2,294 1,334
RMB AR #& 7,829 7,886

At 31 March 2013, bank balances and cash of
HK$18,767,000 (2012: HK$11,719,000) were
denominated in RMB which is not a freely convertible
currency in the international market. The exchange rate of
RMB is regulated by the government and the remittance
of these funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange
restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged to
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
Deposits amounting to HK$24,401,000 (2012: Nil) have
been pledged to secure the bank loan borrowed by a
jointly controlled entity and are therefore classified as
non-current assets.

R—_ZTE—=ZF#=ZA=+—H %
18,767,00070 (=& — — 4 : B &
11,719,0007T) 2 RITEHR KBS IEAR
HBIE  ZERETRERREMSER R
o A\RBEXRZHBKTHRE RitH E
EHAEBESAZTRBNEREANINE
B 51 #R PR o

EEIFIRITIFRIE A EERAEBRTT
EEMERTRITOTR BB ABE
24,401,000 (— T — —F:8) 7 FX
R BIERRALRESEEAED
RITER A B ARERBEE-

FRERIZ IR AR AR
2012/2013 F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ##=&

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=+—HILFE

31. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE

On 22 February 2013, a sale and purchase agreement
(“the Agreement”) was signed between a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and an independent third
party to dispose of certain investment properties at
a consideration of HK$12,500,000 and a deposit
amounting to HK$1,250,000 was received by the Group
in March 2013. Completion of the transaction shall take
place in July 2013 as set out in the Agreement. At 31
March 2013, the fair value of the investment property is
HK$8,500,000. The fair value has been arrived at on the
basis as disclosed in note 16. As such these investment
properties are reclassified as assets held for sale at the
end of the reporting period.

31.

BT HR R MY RE

DEARBIEHERE

RZE—=F-_RA=-+=-H Fx5£E2
EBAREBYIE =AY EE
(T5a%]) - LA B % 12,500,0007T H
EEMREYE AEBER_Z—=F
= BB & 588 % 1,250,000 T M 5T & °
BERETSEN_S—=F+ ARk -
R-T—=F=fF=+—8 %&EYE
B A 18 & 7% #8,500,0007T ° A A T
RIRMI 162 EAEFTIER - FTAZERE
MERBERREEFTDERRFIELE
BE-

32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2. EMMERECEMNFE

31.3.2013 31.3.2012

—EB—-=F —E—_4F

=A=+—-H | =ZA=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Trade payables FET5RIR 89,890 130,164
Retention payable — amount payable B REES ——F R

within one year JE 1~ FE 55,942 48,027
Retention payable — amount payable EfI{REES ——F1%

after one year FE 3R IR 38,345 35,566

Accrued operating costs and charges FE&T4 B AN N & 74,674 71,683

Accrued costs for construction work ~ FE&TiEEE T2k A 107,198 91,622

Temporary receipts & BRr W B 2 I8 4,571 4,894

Deposits received B EZ & 7,531 6,182

Deposit received for disposal of BEWRBRESREMFERS
investment properties 1,250 -
379,401 388,138

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & BF i s & B 7%
For the year ended 31 March 2013
BHE-_Z—=—F=-A=+—RHLFE

32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2. EMHRERECEMFIE (&)
(Continued)
The aged analysis of trade payables based on the invoice ENERZER (REZAH) TN
date is as follows: S 8
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E—-=5F —=E——4F
=A=+-8 | =A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within 30 days =+tHK 79,055 115,769
31 - 60 days =+—&x1+H 1,708 7,535
61 — 90 days ~NtTt—Zh+H 3,226 2,250
Over 90 days AR = 5,901 4,610
89,890 130,164
Included in the above trade payables are amounts due to £ B ERRIBABRE RN @A TR
related parties of trading nature as follows: B 5ME 2 FIES|RMT -
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E—-=F — =&
=R=+—-H | =A=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ok

A subsidiary of Mingly Corporation ~ & H&EBEER AR A &)

(Note) (IBH&BE]) zHELE
(P &E) 4,467 4,467
Subsidiaries of HKRI BEEEEZHEB AR 3 21
4,470 4,488
Note: Mingly Corporation is ultimately controlled by a substantial fieE: BANEEAARAEERREKIE
shareholder of the Company. il o

FRERIZ IR AR AR
2012/2013 F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R&

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_Z—=F=-A=+—RHLFE

BT HR R MY RE

33. BANK LOANS 33. RITEK
The bank loans are repayable as follows: EEZEZIRITEFRYIBELT
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-= —EF——F
=A=+—8H | ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Carrying amount repayable (Note):  FEEZREE (MizE) :
Within one year —FR 456,900 496,500
In the second year RNEZER 326,800 1,000
In the third to fifth years inclusive RE=ZZFRFA
(BREEEMS) 3,000 211,800
After the fifth years BilAF 24,000 25,000
810,700 734,300
Analysis of carrying amounts: BREE T :
Amounts due within one year shown —FERNF D IE LTI EE
under current liabilities Z2E® 456,900 496,500
Carrying amount of bank loans BARBREHRET —FR
that are not repayable within BEEMFIERBRENRK
one year from the end of BB ZETEFERE
the reporting period but contain (RRBBEETZEY)
a repayment on demand clause
(shown under current liabilities) 353,800 237,800
810,700 734,300
Amounts shown under PERINBEECERE
non-current liabilities - =
810,700 734,300
Secured B 530,700 464,300
Unsecured 42 45 4 280,000 270,000
810,700 734,300

Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment
dates set out in the respective loan agreements.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013
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BANK LOANS (continuea)

The bank loans are secured by charges over certain
properties of the Group, which are disclosed in note 40.

In 2013, a bank loan was raised by the Group for the
acquisition of an investment property during the year.
The bank loan is pledged by the investment property and
is guaranteed in proportion by the Group and the non-
controlling interest of a subsidiary.

The Group’s bank loans are floating-rate borrowings
which are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The
interest is charged at a range from HIBOR + 0.75% to
HIBOR + 2.90% per annum (2012: from HIBOR + 0.65%
to HIBOR + 2.95% per annum).

The weighted average effective interest rates on the
Group's loans is 1.97% (2012: 2.11%) per annum.

DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

33.

34.

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=F=-A=-+—HILFE

RITER (2)

ZFRITEFUARNEEE TOREER
BB R 40 B2 55 o

R-E—=F AEEFE-FRTER
REEFRRE—BREY R - R R1T
ESARE YRR N i A SR B B —
B /B8 R B 2 FEARE B s IR LE B MR YR IR o

AEBZRITERETESBEINEZF
B EER - FHNEHEBRITEAER
BIN0.75% = BB IRIT RSB 12.90%
A (ZE——F - hBEBRITAE
¥ B M0.65% = F B RITR EHF B
2.95% ) °

AEBERZNETFHERENE A
197% (ZE——F:2.11%) o

JE FE i TR
R A R BERARE - & TIEEHIES

ENBEEEREE - AT SRR
HRRIEN IR SR Z DT -

31.3.2013 31.3.2012

—E-= —F——F

=R=+—-8 | ZA=t+—8

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Deferred tax assets RIETIEE B 848 784
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBE B (6,118) (6,286)
(5,270) (5,502)

FRERIZ IR AR AR
2012/2013 F
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=+—HILFE

34. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continuead)

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities
(assets) of the Group and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

4. EEFRIE (2)

AEEEFRRELERARE (BE) KRS
Bz AFERtMES 2 ZEHMT

Accelerated

tax Tax
depreciation losses Total
I
BHE BBER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T BT T AT
At 1 April 2011 RZE——FMA—H 10,269 (3,654) 6,615
Credit to consolidated income statement R ZEE A WS RS
for the year A (634) (479) (1,113)
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE——F=HA=+—H 9,635 (4,133) 5,502
Charge (credit) to consolidated income ~ RAEE &4 W25 KT
statement for the year S (FFA) 1,241 (1,473) (232)
At 31 March 2013 R-ZE—=F=HA=+—H 10,876 (5,606) 5,270

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$106,987,000 (2012: HK$101,501,000)
available for offset against future profit. A deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of HK$33,976,000
(2012: HK$25,046,000) of such losses. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$73,011,000 (2012: HK$76,455,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. All
the unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

RBEHAR AEEBRAZHBERA
75 #106,987,0000T (=T — —F : B ¥
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T — — 4 B ¥25,046,0007T ) FERIE T
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
BHE-_Z—=—F=-A=+—RHLFE

34. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 34. RERIE (&)

All investment properties of the Group are situated in AEBFEREMERUNES ZFR
Hong Kong, the presumption to be recovered through sale BYEWFUEZRELABERSER
is not rebutted as the properties are not held by the under BYENNEBESRAREBERN  MaMN
a business model whose business objective is to consume HEARZAREREERNFR - Bk -
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in AlE R HE W B MR Z B R - A%
investment properties over time, other than through sale. Bl EERISENELATEESHNET
No deferred tax has been recognised in respect of fair Hi18E -

value changes of investment properties.

35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. lg K
No. of shares HK$'000
RO E BT T
Authorised: ERE
Shares of HK$0.10 each BB E0.107T 2 1D
Balance as at 1 April 2011, R-_ZE——FWAHA—B8"
31 March 2012 and —E——F=A=+—Hk
31 March 2013 —E—=%=ZA=+—H
ZEEER 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRER:
Shares of HK$0.10 each BB E0.107T 2 %D
Balance as at 1 April 2011 and R-ZZE—FOH—ABK
31 March 2012 —E——#=HA=+—H
= 487,559,674 48,756
Bonus shares issued FADEITAR
during the year 48,755,967 4,876
Balance as at 31 March 2013 2 =%=A=+—H
= -o 536,315,641 53,632

BBAIRERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B 7 3R R M &%
For the year ended 31 March 2013
BE—_T—=F=A=1+—HIFE

35.

36.

37.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

By an ordinary resolution passed on 20 November 2012,
the issued share capital was increased by way of a
bonus issue by applying HK$4,876,000 charging to the
contributed surplus account in payment in full at par of
48,755,967 shares of HK$0.10 each on the basis of one
bonus share for every ten shares.

All bonus shares rank pari passu with the then existing
shares.

RESERVES

Contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the aggregate share capital of the
subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired by
the Company and the nominal amount of the Company’s
shares issued at the time of the group corporate
reorganisation, less the par value of the bonus shares
issued by the Company.

Special reserve of the Group represents the aggregate
of contributions from the then shareholders of the
companies comprising the Group and other subsidiaries
of HKRI before the group corporate reorganisation.

OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLE

On 15 April 2011, the Group entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement to acquire 100% of the
issued share capital of Wisdom Mount Investment Limited
(“Wisdom Mount”) and assignment of a shareholder’s
loan of RMB51,264,000 (approximately HK$61,081,000).

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

35.

36.

37.

BEA ()

BE_T——F+—AZ+HBBzE
BRBR BAARRBARBIRR B
4,876,0007T ' IR G A IR M 1] R
T—RRAL AR <« B4 - 381748,755,96 7R &
MR EEAEEO0. 10T E BB IR A 2 1A% - 18
B BEITARA -

PBARERBERNES TEZERS
-

&

ARBZBARLR  ERARFIRBZS
BRI  ZEMBRRZRAERK
RASEESEEKARREETROEE
ZER O REARRDETARZEE

AEBZRRHIFERIEAKAER 2 A
AIMRASBEAAE L BEERHE
BRRAIFERBRRZBRAES B -

H it = B FE 1 SR IR

R-ZE——FHA+HER AEEFL
BERHEERE WEETREBRA
al ([E7]) 100%E &7 R AR
51,264,0007t (48 & 7% #61,081,000
TO)ERBCRE K
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37. OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLE (cContinued)

Wisdom Mount, which was incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, is an investment holding company which
owns 49% equity interest in BEZLEMWEASR A
&) Haining Jiafeng Real Estate Development Limited
(“Haining Jiafeng”). The Group and the other joint
venturer have the right to appoint the same number
of directors of Haining Jiafeng and all of the strategic
financial and operating decisions require unanimous
consent of the Group and the other joint venturer.
Accordingly, the Group exercises joint control over
Haining Jiafeng with the other joint venturer. Haining
Jiafeng is engaged in property development, which owns
the land use rights and has the right to develop and
construct office premises on the land located in Haining,
the PRC (“the Haining Project”). The vendor, Clear
Shine International Limited, is an indirect 65% owned
subsidiary of Mingly Corporation, an indirect subsidiary of
a substantial shareholder of, and has significant influence
over, the Company. The acquisition was completed on 30
June 2011. Details of the consideration and the assets
and liabilities acquired were set out below:

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=F=-A=-+—HILFE

7. Ht REAE FIE (2)

BARRNABEXBREN L 2RERE
RAG HESEREREMERRAA
([BEZL]) 249%R ANz - AEE
RE—a&hBENEBERLEZEMERA
FEMESRABRBIUET B REER
EHABIAER RS —6EH — A
BBl AREREHES—AEFEE
ERBITE AT BERENEY
EBR A I FEREREERZE
UAFBREE, i FRMEREA
M (BEIEB]) - B KHABEER
A7) AMingly Corporation (£ H&E) &
BHEE6S% B AR - BHEBARR
BIEERE (HARABEATEN)Z
MEMNBAR - WERBER=S—F
NAZTHEHEK - WECREHEEERE
BE2FEHIET

Consideration transferred RiE=H=
HK$'000
BT T
Cash b 95,976
Contingent consideration HARE 14,253

Professional fees capitalised in interest BEARERERZESEE

in a jointly controlled entity HmEXER 1,221
Total st 111,450

FRRIEZERBRAR
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37. OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLE (Continued)

The contingent consideration of HK$14,253,000 is
payable by the Group on completion of the construction
project; or 5 years after the completion date of the
acquisition; or a date to be mutually agreed by the
vendor and the acquirer, whichever is the earliest, when
the accumulated net profit after tax generated from
the Haining Project exceeds RMB46,500,000. The fair
value of the contingent consideration is estimated to be
HK$14,253,000 because the management considers that
it is highly likely that the specified level of accumulated
net profit after tax of Haining Jiafeng can be achieved
within the time specified. The contingent consideration is
included as other long-term payable in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at
the date of acquisition

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B 7 3R R M &%
For the year ended 31 March 2013
BE—_T—=F=A=1+—HIFE

7. Hit REAE FIE (&)

EEFHEA R FEN (BRER®) B
B A R #46,500,0007T * 3 AR BB
14,253,0007c HR 3 EIE B 7T - kK
BEKBEERAF AEHHEEHHF
MEZBHBAREEXF (UAZFEEE
EHRE) - HAREHAFEGF BB
14,253,000t AREBREZRE =R
SRR Fm N (BREi.) A AT seETE
ERBERERIEEKFE HAREHN
AN BERE B EARR 2= 8 H Ath = B FE 11T 3K
15 o

REHEWBEERCHEIAR

HK$'000
BT T
Interest in a jointly controlled entity HEAEHIEE 2w 115,977
Bank balances and cash RITHEBERE 9
Other payables and accrued operating cost — Eth & {5 FRIE I fE 5T &k X (4,536)
Amount due to a shareholder e IR SR SRR (61,081)
Net assets acquired WHE B ESE 50,369
Shareholder’s loan assigned to the Group EETAEB ZREER 61,081
Total consideration RIEBE 111,450
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEE 2 FRE M
Cash consideration paid BEfNRERE 97,187
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances B WiERe RIReEE
acquired 9)
97,188

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& 81 %% ¥ 2% fii 52

AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

The amount is unsecured and non-interest bearing. The
amount will be repayable after at least twelve months from
the end of the reporting period on a date to be mutually
agreed by the Group and the non-controlling interests of
a subsidiary. Details of the shareholder’s loan were set out
in note 16.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s former share option scheme was adopted
on 3 January 2002 and was terminated on 21 September
2011. Pursuant to the Company’s new share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) which was adopted and became
effective on 21 September 2011, all directors (including
independent non-executive directors), full-time employees
and consultants of the Company, its subsidiaries and/or its
associates are eligible to participate in the Scheme.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the participants
who have been granted options under the Scheme to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interest in the Company
and to encourage them to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

38.

39.

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=F=-A=-+—HILFE

FE& 1t I B B R SN IR

%SRRI B A B o AERE K —fH
B8 A m) 2 FE IR R 2R AR B[R B % KR
BRBEMRERRD T —EAAKEFE
BRERERZ FHBEHN L6 o

B ESE

ARBEANEREAEN _TT =
—AZHERBER_-_T——FNA
T+ BRI RBARE B R R
a8 (%8 (R=ZT——F 1A
“t—BERARER) ARF - HIB
NER/SMERFTREES (B1EE
VIFMITES) =REBNERTE2
B2t 82 B

At 8z B MR BAIREZT SRR E
BRENRBERAAREBRz20EE 7
HBARRRRA LD 2 e WEE
SEERARNRNPREBRR 2 BB
REARARERNDZEBEMS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B 7 3R X Mt &%
For the year ended 31 March 2013
BE-_Z—=F=-A=+—HLEE

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Maximum number of shares available
for issuance

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of approval of
the Scheme. A total of 48,755,967 shares of the
Company is available for issue under the Scheme
which represents 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of approval of the
Scheme and the date of this report.

The overall limit on the number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each
participant

(1) The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each participant (including both exercised
and unexercised options) under the Scheme
or any other share option schemes adopted
by the Company in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue unless
otherwise approved by shareholders of the
Company.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

39. B #EEE ()

(a)

(b)

AT Z iR EE LR

AR IERZAT 8 R AR BMER E AT
B A BB ARAE T ATT R BT Y
MR BE - TS BBRNZAT 8 E
HEZHITZARBRMDEL0% © 5%
ETEIMRBEIT AR RIRGBEAE
48,7559678% - (h & st EI#LE A &
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) Maximum entitlement of each
participant (Continued)

(2) Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their
respective associates (as defined in rule 1.01
of the Listing Rules), would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted to
such person in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of the grant:

(i)  representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the shares in issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares on date of
grant in excess of HK$5.0 million,

such grant of option shall be subject to prior
approval of the shareholders of the Company
who are not connected persons of the
Company as defined in the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange.

(c) Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

Within ten years from the date on which an option
is granted or such shorter period as the Board of
Directors or the relevant committee thereof may
specify.

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=-+—HILFE

39. B H#ESTE ()

(b) F2HEEZBREMRELR

(%)

(2) fWRAARNARZEEZRELEL
FPTESRHZ A HE
AT (E&R EMHAANFELO0L
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=F=-A=+—HILLFE

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(d) Minimum period, if any, for which an
option must be held before it can be
exercised

At the time of granting an option, the Board of
Directors or the relevant committee thereof must
specify the minimum period(s) and/or achievement
of performance targets, if any, for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

Options may be exercised at any time after the
minimum periods of time held and/or achievement
of performance targets, if any, specified in the terms
of grant at the time of grant.

(¢) Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on
20 September 2021 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

The exercise price of the option shall be no less than the
highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be
a business day;

(i) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five Stock
Exchange business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and

(iii)  the nominal value of the shares of the Company on
the date of grant.

A consideration of HK$1 shall be paid upon the
acceptance of the option.

No option has been granted under the former share
option scheme and the Scheme since its adoption.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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40. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

41.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s bank loans
were secured by the Group's assets as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE_Z—=F=A=+—RHILFE

. BERA

ARERR - UAEKE 2 BEFRITER
ZAEFOR

31.3.2013 31.3.2012

—EB—-=F —T——F

=A=+—-H | ZA=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T ok

Investment properties LB 613,500 297,780

Leasehold land and buildings HEIHHRET 38,885 19,026

Pledged bank deposits EEBRITER 24,401 -
Properties under development BRPZFEYE

for sale 508,656 414,426

Properties held for sale BIERFEME - 167,306

Assets classified as held for sale SERRHELHEERE 7,200 =

1,192,642 898,538

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2004, legal actions
in respect of allegations of copyright infringement and
defamation have been taken against certain subsidiaries
of the Company carrying on its health products business.
No further steps have been taken against the Group
in respect of such actions after the court hearing for
directions to appoint experts and exchange witness
statements since 2004. At 31 March 2013, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that in view of the
uncertainty, it is not practicable to assess the financial
effect.

4. SR EE

R_BENF=A=1t—HILFEA" $
REAETHEREEREHZMBEAR
ﬁ1ﬂﬁ%&ﬁ%2h%ﬁhﬁ£@ﬁ
-8 _TTWFREZEFERIIEE
Rt E AR ZIETERAR  EFHARAH
BARKEZE—HTYH - R_F—=F=
A=1t—B ARBEFIR/ HERNET

I TR BT A E MR E -

_III

UJ

FRE AR AR AR
2012/2013 F R
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_Z—=F=-A=+—RHLFE

42. COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following commitments:

42.

B ARRIE

RARER  NREBGIATERALE

31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—EB-=F —T—_F
ZA=+—H | =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ok e
Contracted for but not provided in BB T B RFIRLRE BT T5
consolidated financial statements in & A :
relation to:
Acquisition of leasehold land BAREZEERAEN
for development purpose HELH - 58,650

As at the end of both reporting periods, the Group
had also committed with an independent third party to
contribute HK$231,500,000, representing 23.63% of the
anticipated project costs, for the joint development of a
site in So Kwun Wat, Hong Kong.

43. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
in respect of rented premises under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

43.

RREREHR AEEBEEAHER
VEZEHRRABER—MANEERFES
2 T3+ 231,500,000t 2 B4

1GTEETIE B AR 223.63% °

REHERIE
REA
ARSI AR BIRET TS

HEERERYE s ARREAERE
HEEMT

31.3.2013 31.3.2012

—E-=5F —E——fF

=A=+-8 | =ZA=+—*H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T ST IT

Within one year —F R 4,482 5,834
In the second to fifth year inclusive ~F_ZEFHFE (BREEERT) 3,328 3,383
After five years AF% 7,400 7,520
15,210 16,737

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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43. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

At 31 March 2012, included in the operating lease
commitments are future minimum lease payments of
HK$661,000 (2013: Nil) in respect of rented premises
under non-cancellable operating lease with an associate
of the Group which fall due within one year (2013: Nil).

Minimum lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for its office properties, warehouses and shops
which amounting to HK$846,000, HK$1,862,000 and
HK$5,647,000 (2012: HK$822,000, HK$2,345,000
and HK$4,601,000) respectively. Average leases are
negotiable and rentals are fixed for lease term of three
years.

There are certain lease agreements, according to which
the Group is committed to pay the higher of a minimum
guaranteed amount or a monthly payment equivalent
to a prescribed percentage of a monthly sales as rental.
The minimum guaranteed rental payments are included
above. The respective contingent rental payment for the
year ended 31 March 2013 amounted to HK$475,000
(2012: HK$430,000).

43.

/E\ilgﬁﬂzﬁ#&%’z nf

For the year ended 31 March 2013

BHE_Z—=—F-A=+—HULHFE
RETHBERIE (#7)
AN (&)

R-TE——F=F=1+—H K&EHE%X
EREEASE—HBEE R Z—FRN
(T —=F &) T gL
EFRARYE 2 B REAEREE
& RBH661,000L (ZE—=F &) -

REHERBEAEER/PLAEYME
EERBEHEMNZES ©EORIARE
#846,0007T * & #1,862,0007T & & ¥
5 647,0007T ( =& — — 4 : jE#882,000
T - 7% #2,345,0007T K& & #4,601,000
TE) c—REA A AR HER=FH

E—EHEARY BEAEBZ AR
xﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁiﬁajﬂﬁmﬁ(ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ
EEBIIETAEILIERES) MERR
BHRIE - ZIEREHASHRERER LR
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=F=-A=+—HILLFE

43.

44.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(Continueqd)

As lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

contracted with tenants for the following future minimum
lease payments in respect of the investment properties:

43. REFHERKIE (2)

HEA

RARERR  AKBCEBBEFETH A

AREMEZBEREHESO T :

31.3.2013 31.3.2012

—EB—-=F —E——4F

=ZA=+—H | =A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Within one year —F R 20,340 16,975
In the second to fifth year inclusive @RE_EZFERF (BEEEMFE) 5,153 10,852
25,493 27,827

Leases are negotiable for lease term of three years.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

With the implementation of Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme in Hong Kong on 1 December 2000, the
Group has maintained the defined contribution scheme
registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance and has obtained an exemption satisfying the
requirements of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (“MPFQ”).

To comply with the MPFO, a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) with voluntary contributions
has been established. New employees must join the MPF
Scheme since its commencement on 1 December 2000.
The Group contributes 5% to 10% of the relevant payroll
costs for each employee to the MPF Scheme, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000 (increase
to HK$25,000 effective 1 June 2012) for the MPF
Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

44.

MR R FHR=F-
BIKEF FHE

BEEXR _TTTF+_A—AFBENT
BHEATEE A AEEEARRIER
FORRE GBI M RS 2 E B A FRET
g WEEHRETREIEATESA S K
I (T2 RPI]) ZAR7E

ABERBBESKY AEEELRIA
BREEMER R RATEEE ([8TE
&) ER-_ZTTTHF+_-_A—HRAK
E1TRES 8% - FiEE MANARTE
SitE - AEBEABSUIEENRESE
HREELEXNANES ZCAZEEDZ
T B RRESFTEEERAERERA
820,000t (H-—T——F,xA—AH#
HINZE B #25,0007T ) - EH G EES
BHFE -
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44. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(Continued)

The amounts charged to the consolidated income
statement represent contributions paid and payable to
the schemes by the Group at rates specified in the rules
of the schemes less forfeitures arising from employees

44.

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE_Z—=F=A=+—RHILFE

BABEFE (&)

EHEAWRaRAMNGR 2 ERIEAEEIR
ZEFRTEIRAEE 2L RAE M EN
K RERED R WIRGGFE ERE
THAABEFEARE 2R BRI 2 H

leaving the Group prior to completion of qualifying service e RNFE ZFIBET ¢
period. The amount for the year is as follows:
2013 2012
—E—= —=E=——4F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Contributions paid and payable 2T R ER K 11,665 8,336
Forfeiture SR SR (249) (118)
11,416 8,218
At 31 March 2013 and 2012, there is no forfeited R-ZFB—=F=ZA=t+t—Hk=
contribution arose upon employees leaving the retirement F=ZA=t—H" ElﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂW?mﬂ
benefit schemes and which were available to reduce AHEImES KA BURERN 2 HR 2
contributions payable. R UK o

FRE AR AR AR
2012/2013 F R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 B #3R K Mf 3T

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=+—HILLFE

45. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND

TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the balances with related parties as

45. BN LT EHRER 5

BRI B MBI R B < BEBE A 45

disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial % E PR R RN FE24226 ~ [ 5F16

position, notes to consolidated financial statements 24 to
26, disposal transaction as described in note 16 and the
acquisition transaction as described in note 37, the Group

also entered into transactions with the following related

parties during the year:

Ptz & X 5 K M aE37Fr it 2 B R
5 REEF A IR T 51 BERE A =R

LK

2013 2012
—_Eg—= —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Subsidiaries of HKRI and REBBEHERBAR R
its associates: HEEA -
— Construction income (Note) —EEIA (KsE) 141,757 241,968
— Interior and renovation income —EEE R B (B5E)
(Note) 892 3
Indirectly subsidiaries of CCM Trust: R B CCM Trustf#Z M B A &l :
— Project management income —IHEERKA
(Note) (FF3E) 2,861 3,359
— Site supervision service income — M AR BS B RIS UL
(Note) (BfsE) 2,101 -
Jointly controlled entities of the Group: 2% &5 7N £ [ 3t [F) #22 i & 48
— Construction income —BEIWA 8,298 13,427
— Project management income —I5H BEERKA 954 766
— Site supervision service income —Hb AR BE B R A UK A
(Note) (Ft3E) 700 —
Related parties in which directors of ~ RBEANA A& FiEH 2
the Company have control: BAEE A
— Construction income —ZEEIA 3,348 =
- Disposals of investment properties —HEREME 23,828 =
An associate of the Group: REAREEHE QA :
— Rental expenses —HEER (819) (881)

Note: These related party transactions constitute continuing

B eE

connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Further details are included in the Report of

the Directors on pages 92 to 97.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
BHE-_Z—=—F=-A=+—HLFE

45. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 45. BN THEBR R 5 (&#)
TRANSACTIONS (continuea)
The non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the RN A —FEH B R RMFEIER R IT A
Company has also provided guarantee to the subsidiary RIRITE THBRARIMNRITEERHE
for banking facilities granted by the bank. Details of the R BRZFBHPMIFEIS ©

guarantee were set out in note 33.

Compensation of key management FTEEBABZIHM
personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key RFEEESERHMEFEEEAB ZHM
management during the year is as follows: R
2013 2012
—E-=F =&
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Fees e 775 664
Salaries and other benefits e kEMER 7,203 6,814
Performance related incentive TERIRERE
payments 10,200 8,000
Retirement benefits schemes R GBI 5K
contributions 1,080 1,022
19,258 16,500
Details of the remuneration of key management AERTREEAB (BREFERET)
personnel, which are the directors and employees, during ZE IS SN EL2A

the year were set out in note 12.

FB AR AR AR
Paes 221
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B #3R R Mf 3T

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_T—=F=-A=+—RHLFE

46. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

COMPANY

Financial information of the Company at the end of the

reporting period includes:

46. XN R ZMBER

RBERR ARRZHBERBRE:

31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-=5F —T——4F
=A=+—H | =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T PEEE T IT
Assets BE
Investment in a subsidiary wE—FHKBAR 326,740 326,740
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE W BT /B8 A B 7R IE 61,117 52,946
Bank balances and cash IRTTEHERS 969 564
388,826 380,250
Liabilities BE
Other payables and accrued HEMENRIBEREFTER
charges 578 277
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR ENEIE 1,069 862
1,647 1,139
Net assets EEFE 387,179 379,111
Capital and reserves IR R
Share capital N 53,632 48,756
Reserves s 333,547 330,355
387,179 379,111

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
BE-_Z—=—F=-A=+—RHLFE

46. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 46. KR ZEABER (#)
COMPANY (Continuead)
Movements in reserves: R EE) :
Share Share  Accumulated
capital premium profits Total
&N R B E 28R @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BT

At 1 April 2011 RoZ——f
U el = 48,756 277,984 52,936 379,676

Profit and total comprehensive 2N & 3 7 &2
income for the year 2HEHKA - - 19,913 19,913
Dividends paid BERZERE - - (20,478) (20,478)

At 31 March 2012 R-ZE——F
=ZH=T=—8 48,756 277,984 52,371 379,111

Profit and total comprehensive R4 E % F &
income for the year Z2EBA — = 30,009 30,009
Bonus shares issued BEBITAK 4876 (4,876) - -
Dividends paid BRI ZKRE - - (21,941) (21,941)

At 31 March 2013 RZZE—=%F
=—A=+—8H 53,632 273,108 60,439 387,179

FB AR ARA R
Piaes 223 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B 7 3R X Mt &%

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=+—HILLFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

47. T EWB LA RFH1E

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 R-E—=F=ZA=+—Bk=_ZT—=
March 2013 and 2012 are as follows: F=A=+—H ARAFEMBLFF
BT :
Issued and fully
Place of paid ordinary Effective
incorporation/ share capital/ equity interest
registration/ registered capital/ attributable
Name of subsidiary operation quota capital to the Group Principal activities
ERTREE
LERE
R,/ aMEx/ AEBERS
HEARERE E iR REERA BRR AR TEEH
(Note 1) 2013 2012
(M3t1) =8—=F —T—-F
Amwell Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Hong Kong IEy REER
RERELES/BA
Brilliant Advance Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
Hong Kong 2ETT REER
RBRLHES/BA
Camson Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Property holding
BEEERAA G BT MERE
Care & Health Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Trading of health products
RmEERA A B8 BT BEERES
Emwell Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
BEARAF B BB NERE
Excel Pointer Limited # Hong Kong HK$1 60% N/A  Property investment
ERER AR Bh BT MERE

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013
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HE-Z—=—F=-A=-+—HILFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Issued and fully

47. T EMB AR FHIE (2)

Place of paid ordinary Effective
incorporation/ share capital/ equity interest
registration/ registered capital/ attributable
Name of subsidiary operation quota capital to the Group Principal activities
ERTREE
EEREK
R,/ HMmER/ AEBERS
WEARERE XL REERA BHRAREE TEXK
(Note 1) 2013 2012
(WiEl) —B8-=F —ZT-=F%
Forever Gainer Development Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property development
Limited G BT NEER
KEERGRAF
General Target Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property investment
HMBRAT 0 75710,0007T WERE
Hamfield Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property holding
HROFAERRA N BT NERE
Hanison Construction Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Property construction
Company Limited B HK$1,000 MERE
BERERRAA Deferred shares
HK$60,000,000
(Note 2)
gl
71,0000
BT/ K
60,000,0007T
(BEF2)
Hanison Construction Holdings British Virgin Islands/ US$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
(BVI) Limited (Note 3) Hong Kong YESTH REZR
(PEE3) EREAHE/BE

BRI IR AR AR
2012/2013 F

pu)
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47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Issued and fully

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 B #3R K Mf 3T

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=+—HILLFE

47. T EWMB A EAFE (&)

Place of paid ordinary Effective

incorporation/ share capital/ equity interest

registration/ registered capital/ attributable
Name of subsidiary operation quota capital to the Group Principal activities

ERTREE
LERE/

R,/ &/ amEx/ AEBERS

WEARERE EEWH REERA BHRAREE TEER
(Note 1) 2013 2012
(fizFl) =8-=% —ZT-=F%
Hanison Contractors Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property construction
EBEEBERAA B BB YERE
Hanison Estate Services Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of property
HEMEREERAH BB BT management services
MEER R
Hanison Foundation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Property construction
EEHETEGRAR BB LT MERE
Hanison Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEERER AR BB BT REER
Hanison Interior & Renovation Hong Kong HK$4,200,000 100% 100%  Provision of interior and
Limited BB 84 200,0007T renovation services
FABEAREEERAT St R B R
Hanison (Macau) Limited Macau MOP25,000 100% 100%  Property construction
s ORM)BRAA R 25,0002 7T MERE
Hanison Project Management Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of property leasing
Limited B BT and marketing services and

HEHEAERARAA

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=-+—HILFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. TEWMB L AR (&)

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Issued and fully

Place of paid ordinary Effective
incorporation/ share capital/ equity interest
registration/ registered capital/ attributable
Name of subsidiary operation quota capital to the Group Principal activities
ERTREE
EEREK
g3V HMmER/ AEBERS
WEARERE XL REERA BERR AR TEXK
(Note 1) 2013 2012
(M) =8-=% —T—-F
Hantex Engineering Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Plant maintenance and
FEETRERDA BB BEIT servicing
W5 B RIEE
Healthcorp Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Trading of health products and
BELCEBRAA B BT investment holding
BREREHREEER
Heatex Ceramic Limited Hong Kong HK$400,000 100% 100%  Property development
nEARAH B ¥ #400,0007T WERER
Million Hope Industries Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$11,000,000 100% 100%  Supply and installation of
ETEXBRAA B #%11,000,0007T building materials
e R R BEM K
Protic Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
BEEARAA B LT MEER
Retailcorp Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Sales of health products
ZELRBRAT N BT REEMHEE
Rich Color Limited British Virgin Islands/ USs$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
FEERAA Hong Kong IEST KA
RBRELES/BA
Sanney Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
BREBRAT 0 LT MEERE
Senior Rich Development Limited  Hong Kong HK$10,380 100% 100%  Property investment
TmERERAA EE 7#%10,3807C MERE

BRI IR AR AR
2012/2013 F

pu)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=+—HILLFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Issued and fully

47. T EWMB A EAFE (&)

Place of paid ordinary Effective
incorporation/ share capital/ equity interest
registration/ registered capital/ attributable
Name of subsidiary operation quota capital to the Group Principal activities
ERTREE
LERE/
g3V amEx/ AEBERS
WEARERE EEWH REERA BERRAER TEXEK
(Note 1) 2013 2012
(M1) =8-=% —T—_F
Sunny Oriental Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
FMEERRR BB BT REER
Superior Choice Holdings Limited *  British Virgin Islands US$10 60% N/A" Investment holding
(Note 5) (Ft7E5) EBEAHES 10%(7T REER
Tai Kee Pipes Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100% 100%  Trading of building materials
R BRAA G #52,000,0007T BENHES
Team Forward Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
Hong Kong 2ETT REZR
RBRLHES/BA
Top Rising Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
RAERARAA N LT REZR
Trigon Building Materials Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Supply and installation of
EQEREMEBAT B oL building materials
fHIE R R RBENK
Trigon Interior Fitting-Out Works ~ Macau MOP25,000 100% 100%  Building materials, renovation
(Macau) Limited pod BF9#25,0007T and trading
EQEZTNEE (ORF) BREMK #ERES
BRAR
Triple Sky Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
0 LT MEER

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Issued and fully

47. T EMB AR FHIE (2)

Place of paid ordinary Effective
incorporation/ share capital/ equity interest
registration/ registered capital/ attributable
Name of subsidiary operation quota capital to the Group Principal activities
ERTREE
EEREK
R,/ HMmER/ AEBERS
WEARERE XL REERA BERR AR TEXK
(Note 1) 2013 2012
(M) =8-=% —T—-F
Vast Media International Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EEERBRAR BB BEIT REER
Wisdom Concept Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property development
Development Limited BB BT MEER
BYERERAA
Wisdom Mount Investment British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited EBRAHES IE REER
BEREBRAA
Bl (LB)ESERALE  ThePRC US$600,000 100% 100%  Trading of health products
(Note 4) (Kt7%4) H 600,000 T BRERES
EEFRZEMH (EM) The PRC HK$39,990,771 100% 100%  Manufacture and supply of
BRAF (Note 4) (HizF4) ##39,990,7717T building materials
g R R R
# Subsidiary which was newly incorporated during the year ’* REE-_E—=F=-A=1+—HIFE

ended 31 March 2013.

KL Z B AT

BRI IR AR AR
2012/2013 F

pu)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B 7 3R X Mt &%

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=—F=-A=+—HILLFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(1)

All being ordinary share capital except the registered
capital for the subsidiaries registered in the PRC and
quota capital for subsidiaries incorporated in Macau.

The deferred shares are shares whose shareholders
are neither entitled to receive notices, attend, vote at
any general meetings nor to receive any dividend out of
operating profit and have very limited rights on return of
capital of the subsidiary.

Other than Hanison Construction Holdings (BVI) Limited,
which is directly held by the Company, all other companies
are indirectly held by the Company.

A wholly foreign-owned enterprise.

On 1 November 2012, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement to dispose of the 40% issued
share capital of Superior Choice to Sky Champion for a
consideration of US$4, representing the relevant carrying
value of Superior Choice at that time. Details of the
disposal was set out in note 16.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
during the year or outstanding at the end of the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets and liabilities of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

47. T EWB A AFEE (&)

BRANERE AR KB EMAME AR
REMERRERFKINMERRR
REBEARI 2 RHEBBRIA-

ERERCE AR A ABRZBERMBEREX
gRE BEREFEEARRASRES
ERE EREEBMELEENIKEZ
BEREWMBARBEERAR ABEI
BAERENNRE-

BRAABEEFEAE ZHanison
Construction Holdings (BVI) Limited4h -
FrBHEM AT BHARRREEFE -

—RNEBERERE-

—2-—#t+—A—R A%E
E = 7% 1 & Superior ChoiceZ40%2
BIIBRAFRTE  RERIET HER
Superior Choices i Z HHE(E - H &
2B R K EELG o

I AL AP B A B ANF E 3 B TR
BRLSINAFERBRENERES

ARRESAR - ERAFINARFNE
REAYAEENEESEERRERSE
AREE - ARREZRR HINHEHE
RAMFBE R AREBR IR



FINANCIAL SUI\/II\/IARY

Year ended 31 March

Bz

BZ=A=1—-AHIt
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=f | 22— ZE——F ZZ-TF ZZTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BB BETT BETT
RESULTS EY
Turnover L] 1,554,479 1,234,656 723,242 884,370 1,828,475
Profit (loss) before taxation BRBLRTER] (B518) 201,897 136,077 180,158 123414 (66,326)
Taxation charge MBS (16,711) (7,910) (4,159) (2,350) (5,279)
Profit (loss) for the year FEmA (HE) 185,186 128,167 175,999 121,064 (71,605)
Profit (loss) attributable to: THALEERR (BE)
Owners of the Company ARAEE A 188,265 128,167 175,999 121,064 (71,605)
Non-controlling interest I (3,079) - - - -
185,186 128,167 175,999 121,064 (71,605)
As at 31 March
R=B=+-H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
“E-Zf | ZE--f ZZ——4 ZZ-TF ZZTnfF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BET T BETT BETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets EELE 2,579,855 2281897 1922489 1,807,327 1,736,305
Total liabilities BfERE (1,363,470) |  (1,230,567) (982,309)  (1,026,619)  (1,065,659)
1,216,385 1,051,330 940,180 780,708 670,646
Equity attributable to the owners of AEEEEER
the Company 1,219,464 1,051,330 940,180 780,708 670,646
Non-controlling interest IR (3,079) - - = =
1,216,385 1,051,330 940,180 780,708 670,646

FRERIZ IR AR AR
2012/2013 F R
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR

RENTAL PURPOSES

Saleable/gross

A BEREVEESHEESVANRE

floor/site Attributable
area (sq.ft.) interest of
BRBE/ Nature of the Group Category

Descriptions B EENE property rE of lease
B (FHER) MIxEME FEfE R & BAER
1.  Workshop 7, 1/F, Block A, 123,542 Industrial 100% Medium term

Workshops 9-10, 2/F, Block A, (excluding area lease

Workshops 1-5, 4/F, Block B, of flat roofs)

Workshops 1-18 &

maijority portion of

Workshop 23 (including

flat roofs of Workshops 5 & 6),

4/F, Block A,

Whole Floor, 5/F, Blocks A & B,

Whole Floor, 6/F, Block A,

Car Parking Spaces

V26, V31, V36, V49, V50,

Vb5, L42, 145 & 153

Shatin Industrial Centre

5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit

Shatin, New Territories

R 123,542 I 100% Gap-t

W H (TBEETE

TRIEESE 75 ZHEE)

YWHETEFH DN
ARE—HET{ER7 -

AR~ TEfH9E10 -
BEEHE T{ERI1ZES -
AR TEMLIZE18 R
T1EM23 2 EE 5 -
(BREITIERELR6ZZEIR)
ANBERERE -
ABEIERE

R BN 4R5EV26 V31 V36
V49 ~ V50 ~ Vb5 ~ 142 -
L4553

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013



SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES FZ¥%HE

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR A HEREVEERESZUNA

RENTAL PURPOSES (continued) = R -))
Saleable/gross
floor/site Attributable
area (sq.ft.) interest of
BRBE/ Nature of the Group Category

Descriptions B EENE property ~E of lease

BR (FER) YEME EihER HAER

2. Various lots 142,066 Agricultural 100% Medium term
in Demarcation District lease
No. 76
Ping Che
Fanling
New Territories
R 142,066 B 100% AR
NELEA765%

AT HER

3. Leasehold interest in the 2,731 Commercial 100% Medium term
Head-Lease for the residual lease
term of 30 years commencing
from 1 December 1989 with
an option to renew for a further
term of 30 years of whole of
No. 31 Wing Wo Street, Sheung Wan
Hong Kong
R—n B REHERB 2,731 [ 100% i Hj
BB LIRKME3LREE
ZHEMERD 2 HEER
MEFHHA-NNA\NEF+ZA
—HRE RR=TF (X
BB SI=TFHEBAZEF)

4. Various lots 214,106 Agricultural 100% Medium term
in Demarcation District No. 128 lease
Deep Bay Road, Yuen Long
New Territories
¥R 214,106 B 100% H AR
JLEA
R 2 4912855
ATFHE

FRERIZ IR AR AR
2012/2013 F

pu)




A.

SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES &%=

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR

A HEREVEEAEAESBANA

RENTAL PURPOSES (continued) BT E)
Saleable/gross
floor/site Attributable
area (sq.ft.) interest of
BRBE/ Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions B EENE property rE of lease
BR (FER) YEME EihER HAER
5. Workshop Unit 4,192 Industrial 100% Medium term
Nos. 4 to 6 (inclusive) on lease
2nd Floor and Lorry Carpark
Nos. L7 & L8
on Ground Floor,
Kin Wing Industrial Building,
No. 33 Kin Wing Street,
Tuen Mun, New Territories
R 4,192 T 100% A AR
Cls!
FE 1335
B TEANE _B4Z65 TIEM
(MEBEEA)
Rt NEEALARSRLT K L8
6. Various lots 60,277 Agricultural 50% Medium term
in Demarcation District lease
No. 132, Tuen Mun, New
Territories
R 60,277 =3:u 50% AR
P
L EAL325%E T HoER
7. No. 151 Hollywood Road 35,106 Commercial 60% Long term
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong lease
BB 35,106 [EES 60% K H
iR
R RB1515%

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

i 234



SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES FZ¥%HE

B. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT B. #RPZEHEEME

FOR SALE
Site Gross floor Expected Attributable
area area completion interest of
(sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Stage of date Nature of the Group
Descriptions WEEE AREEE  completion BitxI property r5E
R (FAR) (FAR) TR & = MERE i3y §
1. 121 Lots in Demarcation 815,886 Not yet Planning  No definite plan Residential 100%
District No. 129 determined in progress
Lau Fau Shan
Yuen Long
New Territories
R 815,886 RHEE gIRER EWEHE EE 100%
TCRARIE
LEN129%
121 {3 B
2. Various lots 44 583 Not yet Planning No definite plan Residential 100%
in Demarcation determined in progress
District No. 374
So Kwun Wat
Tuen Mun
New Territories
R 44,588 RHETE BIRER EWEHI FE 100%
HHRES
L 243745
TR
3. Nos. 91-93 Bedford Road 4,820 57,211 Work in 2013 Industrial 100%
Tai Kok Tsui progress
Kowloon
NE 4,820 57,211 TRETH 2013 I% 100%
AAR
WA B9 EI35%

eI RERARAT
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES F &%=

C. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE C. HIEHEZYWRE
Gross floor Attributable
area interest of
(sq. ft.) Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions EEEE property rEH of lease
BR (EFR) MEME iy £ HAER
Flat on 5/F, 2,446 Residential 100% Medium term
Car Parking Space No. PO2 lease
and Motor Parking Space
Nos. MO1 and MO2
Eight College
College Road
Kowloon Tong
Kowloon
-3 2,446 F= 100% 7R
FLBEVE E P B85
Eight College
BB BAIRIRPO2 K
B EHBEMNRITMOLEMO2
D. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR D. "EABKIEHEELE
SALE
Gross floor Attributable
area interest of
(sq. ft.) Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions EEEE property rEE of lease
B (FAR) MEME LR iR SE-
Workshop 8, 2/F, Block B, 2,635 Industrial 100% Medium term
Shatin Industrial Centre lease
5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit
Shatin, New Territories
Car Parking Spaces C2
R 2,635 I% 100% f Hj
W H

IRIEESZE 75
WHRIESD
BEE — 2 T {Ef8
NEBARIRC2

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013



HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
LG AR R AR AR

Unit 1, 4/F., Block B, Shatin Industrial Centre,
5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit, Shatin, Hong Kong
ERAVHREEREEZE L5
PDHEIERLBENE—E

www.hanison.com
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